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SHAREHOLDERS LETTER

Dear Fellow Shareholders:

In fiscal 2008, we celebrated our twentieth year in business at
Mitcham Industries and our fourteenth year as a public company.
Qver time, our customers' needs have changed; the scale of our
business has increased; our expertise has grown; and we have
successfully met the countless challenges that have confronted the
energy industry. Many aspects about our business have changed
during this time, and we believe we are a better company today.
We have grown from a single location in Huntsville, Texas with
five employees to seven offices strategically located throughout
the world, employing more than |20 people, Through it all, we
remain steadfast in our goal to supply the seismic industry with
equipment, whenever and wherever they need it, 24/7.

We achieved a number of financial milestones in our twentieth year!

*Record Revenues of $76.4 million, up 56%

*Record Leasing Revenues of $34.4 million, up 38%
*Record Seamap Sales of $24.7 million, up 121%
+Record Operating Income of $16.1 million, up 151%
*Record EBITDA of $28.3 million, up 83%

*Record Net Income of $1 1.4 million, up 23%

We were able to accomplish these results through our innovative
approach of consistently offering more than is expected of us and
by constantly exploring for ways to provide superior service to
our customer base.

We continued to be ever mindful of growth trends in our industry
as well as overall customer demand for seismic equipment, and
we capitalized on opportunities to meet the needs of customers’
backlogs. To these means, we added $26 million of new equipment
to our lease pool during fiscal 2008. Some of this equipment

was put to work almost immediately, but more than half was not
received until the fourth quarter. These recent additions. along
with the $25.5 million of new equipment added in fiscal 2007,
have helped us diversify and strengthen our world-wide mariket
presence. We currently have more than 78,000 land channels in
our lease pool, which continues to substantiate our position as the
waorld's largest independent supplier of seismic equipment.

Qur capital expenditures during fiscal 2008, included over 20,000
channels of land recording equipment, additional marine
equipment for wide-azimuth surveys utilizing four to six vessels;
additional Sercel Seal streamer sections and a wide array of
miscellaneous marine equipment for positioning. We also
committed to purchase an additional 1,000 stations, or 3,000
channels, of Sercel DSU3 428XL to add to our existing fleet, which
has continued to exceed our original utilization expectations.

Cur Seamap segment experienced outstanding revenue growth
and margin improvement as our manufactured products have
continued to gain traction in the seismic market. Driving this
segment’s revenue increase was strong demand for our Gunlink,
BuoyLink and ancillary products such as weight collars, as well as
training and support. Qur Seamap production facility in Singapore
has contributed to the improved profitability of this segment.
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Our Russian subsidiary in Ufa, Bashkortostan has provided

a strategic market location for accommeodating the surge of
exploration activity in the region, as well as a platform for
expansion into Eastern Europe and The Middle East. Qur Russian
lease pool began the year with just over 12,000 channels and
ended with 19,000 channels and very high utilization for the
important winter season. We are very excited about the success
we have seen from this operation and the opportunities that are
developing there.

We believe the seismic industry is currently experiencing a period
of sustained expansion. Fiscal 2008 continued a strong growth
pattern for Mitcham, fueled by robust customer demand for
seismic equipment worldwide as high commeodity prices continue
to drive oil and gas exploration. We continued to expand our
market area with 70% of our revenues generated outside of North
America. With oil and gas prices sustaining record levels, the need
to explore and discover untapped hydrocarbon reservoirs of
resources continues to increase. According to the International
Energy Agency (IEA), global demand for energy will grow by more
than half over the next quarter-century, exceeding 325 million
barrels of oil equivalent per day. We believe seismic services in
general and Mitcham Industries in particular will play a key role in
the successful delivery of energy to the world.

We have seen many changes during our twenty years in the
seismic industry, as well as in our company, but we have always
held fast to a single vision — Customer Service. We are very proud
of our reputation as THE Exploration Equipment Supplier™ to
the Seismic Industry. As we move into fiscal 2009, we continue

to put our customers and shareholders first in everything we do.
We believe fiscal 2009 will be another successful year for your
company and look forward to the next twenty years!

1 would like to thank our customers for their continued confidence
in our services; our vendors for their commitments to excellence;
our employees who always find a way to deliver 24/7; our Board

of Directors for its leadership and guidance; and you, our
shareholders, for your continued allegiance.

Sincerely,

Billy E Mitcham, Jr.
President and CEQ




MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.

8141 SH 75 SOUTH
P.O. BOX 1175
HUNTSVILLE, TEXAS 77342-1175

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD JULY 24, 2008

To our Shareholders:

We will hold the Annuval Meeting of Shareholders of Mitcham Industries, Inc., a Texas corporation, on
Thursday, July 24, 2008, at the Houston Marriott North, 225 North Sam Houston Parkway East, Houston,
Texas at 10:00 a.m., local time. At the Annual Meeting, shareholders will be asked to:

I. Elect six individuals to serve on our Board of Directors until the next annual meeting of shareholders
or until their respective successors are elected and quatified;

2. Ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors of Hein & Associates LLP as
our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009; and

3. Transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

COur Board of Directors has established the close of business on May 27, 2008 as the record date for
determining the sharcholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
-held July 24, 2008, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Sincerely,

Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer

EVEN IF YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE COMPLETE, SIGN AND
MAIL THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE IN THE ACCOMPANYING
ENVELOPE OR USE THE TELEPHONE OR INTERNET VOTING.

June 3, 2008
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MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.
8141 SH 75 South
P.O. Box 1175
Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To be Held July 24, 2008

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

Purpose, Place, Date and Time

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors (“Board”)
of Mitcham Industries, Inc., a Texas corporation, of proxies from the holders of record of our common stock,
par value $0.01 per share, at the close of business on May 27, 2008, for use in voting at the Annual Meeting
of Shareholders (“Annual Meeting”} to be heid at the Houston Marriott North, 225 North Sam Houston
Parkway East, Houston, Texas at 10:00 a.m., local time, on Thursday, July 24, 2008, and any adjournment or
postponement thereof:

The Notice of Annnal Meeting, this proxy statement, the attached proxy card and our Annual Report for
the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 are being mailed together on or about June 3, 2008 to each of our
shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Properly executed proxies will be voted as directed. If no direction is indicated therein, proxies received in
response to this solicitation will be voted FOR: (1) the election of each of the six individuals nominared for
election as directors; (2) the ratification of the selection of Hein & Associates LLP as our independent registered
public accounting firm by our Audit Committee for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009; and (3) as
recommended by our Board with regard to any other matters, or if no recommendation is given, at the discretion of
the appointed proxy holders.

Expenses of Solicitation

We will bear the entire cost of soliciting proxies, including the cost of the preparation. assembly, printing
and matling of this proxy statement, the proxy card and any additional information furnished to our
shareholders in connection with the Annual Meeting. In addition to this solicitation by mail, our directors,
officers and other employees may solicit proxies by use of mail, telephone, facsimile, electronic means, in.
person or otherwise. These persons will not receive any additional compensation for assisting in the
solicitation, but may be reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the solicitation.
We have retained Broadridge Investor Communication Services to aid in the distribution of proxy materials
and to provide voting and tabulation services for the Annual Meeting. For these services, we will pay
Broadridge a fee of $15,000 and reimburse it for certain expenses. In addition, we will reimburse brokerage
firms, nominees, fiduciaries, custodians and other agents for their expenses in distributing proxy material to
the beneficial owners of our common stock.

Shareholders Sharing the Same Last Name and Address

We are sending only one copy of our proxy statement and Annual Report to shareholders who share the
same last name and address, unless they have notified us that they want to continue receiving multiple copies.
This practice, known as “householding,” is designed to reduce duplicate mailings and save significant printing
and postage costs.

If you received a householded mailing this year and you would like to have additional copies of our
proxy statement and Annual Report mailed to you or you would like to opt out of this practice for future
mailings, we will promptly deliver such additional copies to you if you submit your request to our Corporate
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Secretary in writing at Mitcham Industries, Inc., P.O. Box 1173, Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175 or call us at
936-291-2277. You may also contact us if you received multiple copies of the annual meeting materials and
would prefer to reccive a single copy in the future.

VOTING OF SECURITIES

Record Date; Shareholders Entitled to Vote

Our Board has fixed the close of business on May 27, 2008 as the record date for determining the holders
of shares of common stock entitled to notice of and to vole at the Annual Meeting. As of the close of business
on May 27, 2008, there were 9,795,609 issued and outstanding shares of common stock, each of which is
entitled to one vote on each item of business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting.

For a period of 10 days prior to the Annual Meeting, a list of the shareholders entitled to vote at the
Annual Meeting will be available for inspection during normal business hours at our principal place of
business, which is located at 8141 SH 75 South, Huntsville, Texas 77340.

Quorum

Our Second Amended and Restated Bylaws provide that a majority of the outstanding shares of common
stock, represented either in person or by proxy, entitled to vote will constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business. Consequently, holders of at least 4,897,805 shares of our common stock must be present either in
person or by proxy to establish a quorum for the Annual Meeting.

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a
quorum for the transaction of business. In the election of directors, which requires a plurality of votes cast,
broker non-votes will have no effect. In the ratification of the appointment of our independent registered
public accounting firm, abstentions will have the same effect as a vote against ratification, and broker non-
votes will have no effect.

A broker non-vote occurs when & broker holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a
particular proposal because the broker does not have discretionary voting power with respect to the item and
has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner.

Vote Required

Assuming a quorum is present, the election of directors will require a plurality of the votes cast at the
Annual Meeting. The ratification of the selected independent registered public accounting firm will require the
affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on, and that vote, for, against or expressly abstain,
with respect to the proposal at the Annual Meeting.

All votes will be tabulated by the inspector of elections appointed for the Annual Meeting, who will
separately tabulate votes for and against, abstentions and broker non-votes.

Revocation of Proxies

If you are a registered stockholder {meaning your shares are registered directly in your name with our
transfer agent) you may revoke your proxy at any time prior to the vote tabulation at the Annual Meeting by
(1) sending in an executed proxy card with a later date, (2) timely submitting a proxy with new voting
instructions by telephone or over the Internet, (3) sending a written notice of revocation by mail to
P.O. Box 1175, Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175 marked “Proxy Information Enclosed, Attention: Corporate
Secretary” or (4) by attending and voting in person by completing a ballot at the Annual Meeting. Attendance
at the Annual Meeting will not, in itself, constitute revocation of a completed and delivered proxy.
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If you are a street name stockholder (meaning that your shares are held in a brokerage account by a bank,
broker or other nominee) and you vole by proxy, you may change your vote by submitting new voting
instructions to your bank, broker or nominee in accordance with that entity’s procedures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The following sections summarize information about our corporate governance policies, our Board and its
committees and the director nomination process.
Our Governance Practices
General

We are committed to sound corporate governance principles. To evidence this commitment, our Board has
adopted charters for its committees and a Code of Ethics. These documents provide the framework for our
corporate governance. A complete copy of the current version of each of these documents is available on our
website at htip://www.mitchamindustries.com or in print, free of charge, to any shareholder who requests it by
contacting us by mail at Mitcham Industries, Inc., PO. Box 1175, Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175, Attention:
Corporate Secretary, or by telephone (936) 291-2277. Our Board regularly reviews corporate governance
developments and modifies our governance documents as appropriate.

Code of Ethics

Our Board has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and our Corporate Controller, to ensure that our business is
conducted in a legal and ethical manner.

All of our directors, officers and employees are required to certify their compliance with the Code of -
Ethics. The code requires that any exception to or waiver for an executive officer or director be made only by
our Board and disclosed as required by law and the listing standards of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (the
“NASDAQ Listing Standards™). To date, we have neither received any requests for, nor granted, waivers of the
code for any of our executive officers or directors.

Among other things, the code addresses:

e conflicts of interest;

e insider trading;

* record keeping and ques‘tionab]e accounting or auditing matters;
® corporate opportunities;

» confidentiality;

® competition and fair dealing;

® protection and proper use of our company assets; and

® reporting of any illegal or unethical behavior.

It is our policy that there shall be no acts of retaliation, intimidation, threat, coercion or discrimination
against any individual for truthfully reporting, furnishing information or assisting or participating in any
manner in an investigation, compliance review or other activity related to the administration of the code.
Qur Board

Determination of Director Independence

Our Board has determined that Messrs. John F. Schwalbe, R. Dean Lewis, Robert I. Albers and Peter H.
Blum are each an independent director, as that term is defined in the NASDAQ Listing Standards.
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Messrs. Schwalbe, Lewis, Albers and Blum constitute a majority of the members of our Board. Mr. Billy F.
Mitcham, Jr. is not independent because he currently serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Robert P. Capps is not independent because he currently serves as our Executive Vice President of Finance
and Chief Financial Officer.

Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, our Board held four meetings. Each individual serving as
a director during such period attended all meetings of our Board and all meetings of the committees on which
such individual served, with the exception of one member of the Audit Committee who failed to attend one of
the seven meetings held by that committee during the year.

Attendance at Annual Meetings

We have a policy to encourage our directors to attend the annual meetings of our shareholders. All
nominees who are currently serving as directors attended the annual meeting of our shareholders in July 2007,
with the exception of Mr. Albers who was not appointed to the Board of Directors until January 30, 2008.

Shareholder Communications with Our Board

Our Board welcomes communications from our shareholders. Shareholders may send communications to
our Board, or any director in particular, by contacting us by mail at Mitcham Industries, Inc., P.O. Box 1175,
Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175, Attention: Corporate Secretary or via e-mail through our website at htip://
www.mitchamindustries.com. Each communication must (1) identify the sender, (2) identify the appiicable
director(s) and (3) contain the information necessary to enable the director(s) to contact the sender. Our
Corporate Secretary will relay this information to the applicable director(s) and request that the sender be
contacted as soon as possible.

Committees of Our Board

As of the date of this proxy statement, our Board has standing Audit, Compensation and Nominating
Committees. Qur Board, in its business judgment, has determined that each committee is comprised entirely of
independent directors as currently required under the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and
requirements and the NASDAQ Listing Standards. Each commitiee is governed by a written charter approved
~ by the full Board.

Audit Committee
The Audit Commiitee has been established to assist our Board in:

® overseeing the quality and integrity of our financial statements and other financial information we
provide to any governmential body or the public;

® overseeing our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e overseeing the independent registered public accounting firm’s qualifications, independence and
performance;

* overseeing our systems of internal contrals regarding finance, accounting, legal compliance and ethics
that our management and our Board have established;

¢ facilitating an open avenue of communication among the registered independent accountants, financial
and senior management, and our Board, with the registered independent accountants being account-
able to the Audit Committee; and

e performing such other duties as directed by our Board.

In connection with these purposes, the Audit Committee annually selects, engages and evaluates the
performance and ongoing qualifications of, and determines the compensation for, our independent registered
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public accounting firm, reviews our annual and quarterly financial statements, and confirms the independence
of our independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee also meets with our management
and external registered public accounting firm regarding the adequacy of our financial controls and our
compliance with legal, tax and regulatory matters and significant internal policies. While the Audit Committee
has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its charter, it is not the duty of the Audit Committee to plan or
conduct audits, to determine that our financial statements are complete and accurate, or to determine that such
statements are in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and other
applicable rules and regulations. Our management is responsible for the preparation of our financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and our internal controls. Our
independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for.the audit work on our financial statements. It
is also not the duty of the Audit Committee to conduct investigations or to assure compliance with laws and
regulations and our policies and procedures. Our management is responsible for compliance with laws and
regulaticns and compliance with our policies and procedures.

During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, the Audit Committee, which was comprised of
Messrs. Schwalbe (Chairman), Lewis and Blum, held seven meetings. In April 2008, Mr. Albers replaced
Mr. Blum on the Audit Committee. All members of the Audit Committee are independent as that term is
defined in the NASDAQ Listing Standards and Rule 10A-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Our Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee
is financially literate and that Mr, Schwalbe has the necessary accounting and financial expertise to serve as
chairman. Our Board has determined that Mr. Schwalbe is an “audit committee financial expert” following a
determination that Mr. Schwalbe met the criteria for such designation under the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and regulations. For information regarding Mr. Schwalbe’s business experience, see
“Proposal 1 — Election of Directors — Information Aboul Director Nominees.”

The report of the Audit Committee .appears under the heading “Audit Committee Report” below.

Compensation Committee
Pursuant to its charter, the purposes of our Compensation Committee are to:

* review, evaluate and approve the agreements, plans, policies and programs to compensate our officers
and directors;

# review and discuss with our management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis to be included in
the proxy statement for our annual meeting of shareholders and to determine whether to recommend
10 our Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the proxy statement, in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations;

# produce the Compensation Committee Report for inclusion in the proxy statement, in accardance with
* applicable rules and regulations;

s otherwise discharge our Board’s responsibilities relating to compensation of our officers and directors;
and

® perform such other functions as our Board may assign to the committee from time to time.

In connection with these purposes, our Board has entrusted the Compensation Committee with the overall
responsibility for establishing, implementing and monitoring the compensation for our executive officers. In
general, executive compensation matters are presented to the Compensation Committee or raised with the
Compensation Committee in one of the following ways: (1) at the request of the Compensation Cormmittee
Chairman or another Compensation Committee member or member of our Board, (2) in accordance with the
Compensation Committee’s agenda, which is reviewed by the Compensation Committee members and other
directors on an annual basis, (3} by our Chief Executive Officer or (4) by the Compensation Committee’s
outside compensation consultant.




The Compensation Committee works with the management team and our Chief Executive Officer to
implement and promote our executive compensation strategy. The most significant aspects of management’s
involvement in this process are: '

& preparing materials in advance of Compensation Committee meetings for review by the Compensation
Committee members;

e evaluating employee performance;
o establishing our business goals; and
¢ recommending the compensation arrangements and components for our employees.

Our Chief Executive Officer is instrumental to this process. Specifically, our Chief Executive Officer
assists the Compensation Committee by:

* providing background information regarding our business goals;
* annually reviewing performance of each of our executive officers (other than himself); and

* recommending compensation arrangements and components for our executive officers (other than
himself).

Our other executive officers do not play a role in their own compensation determination, other than
discussing individual performance objectives with our Chief Executive Officer.

Pursuant to its charter, the Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate any
compensation consultant to be used to assist in the evaluation of the compensation of our executive officers
and directors and also has the sole authority to approve the consultant’s fees and other retention terms. During
the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, the Compensation Committee engaged the services of Villareal &
Associates, a consulting firm experienced in executive compensation that has access to national compensation
surveys and our compensation information, to assist it in evaluating executive compensation matters,
Specifically, the Compensation Committee requested Villareal & Associates to provide information, insights
and advice regarding our compensation philosophy, objectives and strategy and selection of peer companies
for competitive analyses.

Together with management, Villareal & Associates and any counsel or other advisors deemed appropriate
by the Compensation Committee, the Compensation Committee typically reviews and discusses the particular
execulive compensation matter presented and makes a final determination.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Compensation Committee may form and delegate some or
all of its authority under its charter to subcommittees when it deems such action appropriate.

During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, the Compensation Committee held two meetings. The
Compensation Committee currently consists of Messrs. Schwalbe, Lewis, Albers and Blum (Chairman).

The report of the Compensation Committee appears under the heading “Compensation Committee
Report” below.

Nominating Committee

The purposes of the Nominating Committee, as stated in its charter, include the following:

* identify individuals qualified to become Board members; '

e recommend to our Board the persons to be nominated by our Board for election as directors at the
annual meeting of shareholders; and

e perform such other functions as our Board may assign to the committee from time to time.

During the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, the Nominating Committee held one meeting. The
Nominating Committee consists of Messrs. Schwalbe, Lewis, Albers and Blum (Chairman).
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Director Nomination Process

The Nominating Committee is responsible for establishing criteria for selecting new directors, actively
seeking individuals to become directors and recommending such individuals to our Board. In seeking
candidates for our Board, the Nominating Committee will consider the entirety of each candidate’s credentials.
Currently, the Nominating Committee does not require director candidates to possess a specific set of
minimum qualifications, as different factors may assume greater or lesser significance at particular times and
the needs of our Board may vary in light of its composition and the Nominating Committee’s perceptions
abourt future issues and needs. However, while the Nominating Committee does not maintain a formal list of
qualifications, in making its evaluation and recommendation of candidates, the Nominating Commitiee may
consider, among other factors, diversity, age, skill, experience in the context of the needs of our Board,
independence qualifications, and whether prospective nominees have relevant business and financial experi-
ence, have industry or other specialized expertise, and have high moral character.

The Nominating Committee may consider candidates for our Board from any reasonable source, including
from a search firm engaged by the Nominating Committee or shareholder recommendations, provided that the
procedures set forth below are followed. The Nominating Committee does not intend to alter the manner in
which it evaluates candidates based on whether the candidate is recommended by a shareholder or not.
However, in evaluating a candidate’s relevant business experience, the Nominating Committee may consider
previous experience as a member of our Board.

~ Shareholders or a group of shareholders may recommend potential candidates for consideration by the
Nominating Committee by sending a written request to our Corporate Secretary at Mitcham Industries, Inc.,
P.O. Box 1175, Humisville, Texas 77342-1175. For additional information, sec “Shareholder Proposals and
Director Nominations.”

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

No member of the Compensation Committee is now, or at any time has been, employed by or served as
an officer of Mitcham Industries, Inc. or any of its subsidiaries or had any substantial business dealings with
Mitcham Industries, Inc. or any of its subsidiaries. None of our executive officers are now, or at any time has
been, a member of the compensation committee or board of directors of another entity, one of whose executive

officers has been a member of the Compensation Committee or our Board.
H

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Policies and Procedures

Historically, our Board has reviewed and approved, as appropriate, related person transactions as they
have been put before our Board at the recommendation of management. In May 2007, our Board, recognizing
that related person transactions involving our company present a heightened risk of conflicts of interest and/or
improper valuation {or the perception thereof), adopted a formal process for reviewing, approving and ratifying
transactions with related persons, which is described below.

General

Under the policy, any “Related Person Transaction” may be consummated or may continue only if:

e the Audit Committee approves or ratifies the transaction in accordance with the guidelines set forth in
the policy and if the transaction is on terms comparable to those that could be obtained in arm’s
length dealings with an unrelated third party;

e the transaction is approved by the disinterested members of our Board; or

& the transaction involves compensation approved by the Compensation Committee.
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For these purposes, a “Related Person” is:

® a senior officer (which shall include, at a minimum, each executive vice president and Section 16
officer) or director;

¢ a sharcholder owning more than 5% of our company (or its controlled affiliates);
® a person who is an immediate family member of a senior officer or director; or

® an entity that is owned or controlled by someone listed above, or an entity in which someone listed
above has a substantial ownership interest or control of that entity.

For these purposes, a “Related Person Transaction” is a transaction between our company and any
Related Person (including any transactions requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K under the
Exchange Act), other than:

® (ransactions available to all employees generally; and

® transactions involving less than $5,000 when aggregated with all similar transactions.

Audit Committee Approval

Our Board has determined that the Auvdit Committee is best suited to review and approve Related Person
Transactions. Accordingly, at each calendar year’s first regularly scheduled Audit Committee meeting,
management recommends Related Person Transactions to be entered into for that calendar year, including the
proposed aggregate value of the transactions (if applicable). After review, the Audit Committee approves or
disapproves the transactions and at each subsequently scheduled meeting, management updates the Audit
Committee as to any material change 10 those proposed transactions.

In the event management recommends any further Related Person Transactions subsequent to the first
calendar year meeting, the transactions may be presented to the Audit Committee for approval or preliminarily
entered into.by management subject to ratification by the Audit Committee; provided that if ratification is not
forthcoming, management makes all reasonable efforts to cancel or annul the transaction.

Corporate Opportunity

QOur Board recognizes that situations exist where a significant opportunity may be presented to manage-
ment or a member of our Board that may equally be available to our company, either directly or via referral.
Before the opportunity may be consummated by a Related Person (other than an otherwise unaffiliated 5%
shareholder), the opportunity must be presented to our Board for consideration.

Disclosure

All Related Person Transactions are to be disclosed in our applicable filings as required by the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and regulations. Furthermore, all Related Person Transactions are to be
disclosed to the Audit Committee and any material Related Person Transaction are to be disclosed to the full
Board.

Other Agreements

Management assures that all Related Person Transactions are approved in accordance with any require-
ments of our financing agreements,

Transactions

Since the beginning of the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, we have not participated in (or proposed
to participate in) any transactions with related persons.




STOCK OWNERSHIP MATTERS

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers and persons who beneficially
own more than 10% of our outstanding common stock to file initial reports of ownership and changes in
ownership of common stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Reporting persons are required by
the Securities and Exchange Commission to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. Based
solely on our review of the copies of reports we received and written representations from our directors and
officers, we believe that all filings required to be made under Section 16(a} were timely made.

Principal Holders of Securities

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of the outstanding shares of common stock as of
May 15, 2008 with respect to each person, other than our directors and officers, we know to be the beneficial
owner of 5% or more of our issued and outstanding commen stock.

Common Stock Beneficially Owned
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares  Percent of Class

Essex Investment Management Co., LLC. .. ... .. ... ot 582,063 5.9%%
125 High Street
Boston, MA 02110

{1) In a Schedule 13F filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in May 2008, Essex Investment Management Co. LLC.
reported sole voting power with respect to 553,078 of the shares, sole dispositive power with respect to 582,063 of the shares and no
shares subject to shared voting power or shared dispositive power.

(2) Based on total shares outstanding of 9,795,609 at May 15, 2008.

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of common stock as of May 15, 2008 by (1) each
of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table below, (2) each of our.directors and
director nominees and (3) all current directors and executive officers as a group. All persons listed have sole
disposition and voting power with respect to the indicated shares except as otherwise indicated in the footnotes
to the table.

Common Stock Beneficially Owned

Name of Beneficial Owner Number of Shares  Percent of Class"
Billy FMICRAM, JE. oot e e et e et e e e e 625,472 6.1%
Peter Ho BIDIN. . .o oottt e e e ettt e e e e e e e 550,036 5.5%
John F. Schwalbe. . . ..ot 51,000 %
RoDean LEWIS . . ..ottt et ettt s 54,000 *%
Robert J. ALDEIS . . . oot 3,000 %
Paul GuY ROBEIS . « « v v o v o e e e e e e e e e e e 71,7947 *q,
ROBETE P CaPPS « o v v vt vt et e e n et i m e e e e e 77,0008 %
GUY MAalET. . o o\ ettt e e e e e 244179 _ %
All current directors and executive officers as a group (B persons) . . . . ... ... ... ... .. 1,456,394 13.5%
* Less than 1%

(1) Based on total shares outstanding of 9,795,609 at May 15, 2008. Also based on the number of shares owned and acquirable within
60 days of May 15, 2008.

(2) Includes 12,500 shares of restricted stock that vest over two years and an aggregate of 3,100 shares owned by Mr. Miicham’s spouse,
Also includes shares underlying exercisable options and options that will become exercisable within 60 days of May 15, 2008 (col-
lectively, the “Exercisable Options™) to purchase an aggregate of 418,833 shares of common stock.

(3) Includes 1,333 shares of restricted stock that vest over the next year, 270,000 shares underlying Exercisable Options, 6,000 shares
owned by Mr. Blum's spouse’s IRA and 6,500 shares owned by Mr. Blum’s minor son.
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(4) Includes 50,000 shares underlying Exercisable Options.

(5) Includes 50,000 shares underlying Exercisable Options.

(6) Includes 3.000 shares of restricted stock that vest over the next year.

(7) Includes 6,667 shares of restricted stock that vest over three years and 62,500 shares underlying Exercisable Options.
(8) Includes 2,000 shares of restricted stock that vest over three years and 65,000 shares underlying Exercisable Opliofls.
(9 Includes 6,667 shares of restricted stock that vest over lhrecj: years and 16,500 shares underlying Exercisable Options.

(10} Includes 932,833 shares underlying Exercisable Options and 28,166 shares of restricted stock.

PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

Six individuals will be elected at the Annual Meeting to serve as directors until the next annuval meeting
or until their respective successors are elected and qualified. Shares or proxies may not be voted for more than
six director nominees. Based on recommendations from the Nominating Committee, our Board has nominated
the six individuals listed below to serve until cur 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. All of the director
nominees are currently serving on our Board.

The persons appointed as proxies in the enclosed proxy card will vote such proxy “FOR” the persons
nominated for election to our Board, except to the extent authority to vote is expressly withheld with respect
to cne or more nominees. If any nominee is unable to serve as a director for any reason, all shares represented
by proxies pursuant to the enclosed proxy card, absent contrary instructions, wiil be voted for any substitute
nominee designated by our Board.

Our Board recommends a vote “FOR?” the election of each of the director nominees identified
below. '
Information About Director Nominees

The following table sets forth the names and ages, as of May 13, 2008, of our current directors, each of
whom is a director nominee. Our directors are elected annually and serve one-year terms or until their death,
resignation or removal. .

Name Age Positions Held Director Since
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. .. .. ... ... .. .. .. .. 60  Director, President and Chief Executive Officer 1987
Peter H.Blum . . ... .. ... ... ......._ .. 52 Non-Executive Chairman 2000
Robert P.Capps . ........... ... . ...... %4 Director, Executive Vice President of Finance and 2004
Chief Financial Officer

RDeanlewis......................... 65  Director 1995
John F. Schwalbe . . ....... ... ... ... ..., 04 Director 1994
Robert JLAlbers. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. 67 Director 2008

Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since our inception in 1987.
From 1987 until July 2004, Mr. Mitcham also served as Chairman of our Board. Mr. Mitcham has more than
28 years of experience in the geophysical industry. From 1979 1o 1987, he served in various management
capacities with Mitcham Associates, an unrelated equipment leasing company. From 1975 to 1979, Mr. Mit-.

- cham served in various capacities with Halliburton Services, primarily in oilfield services.

Peter H. Blum was elected Non-Executive Chairman of our Board on July 8, 2004. Mr. Blum is Vice
Chairman and Head of Capital Markets of Ladenburg Thalmann & Co., Inc., an investment banking firm.
From June 1998 until March 2003, Mr. Blum served as a Director, and from September 2001 until March
2003, as Executive Vice President, of Mallon Resources Corporation, an oil and gas exploration and
production company that merged with Black Hills Corporation in March 2003. Prior to 1998, Mr. Blum was a
senior investment banker with various Wall Street firms. Mr. Blum started his career with Arthur Young & Co.
and received a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the University of Wisconson-Madison.
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Robert P. Capps has been a member of our Board since July 2004. In June 2006, Mr. Capps was
appointed as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. From July 1999 untl May 2006, he
was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of TeraForce Technelogy Corporation
(“TeraForce™), a publicly-held provider of defense electronics products. On August 2, 2005, TeraForce filed
for protection under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code. On April 6, 2006, TeraForce’s Chapter 11
Plan of Reorganization was confirmed. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Capps was Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Dynamex, Inc., a NASDAQ-listed supplier of same-day transportation services. Prior to
his employment with Dynamex, Mr. Capps was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Hadson Corporation, a NYSE-listed energy company. Mr. Capps is a Certificd Public Accountant and was
formerly with Arthur Young & Co. Mr. Capps holds a Bachelor of Accountancy degree from the University of
Oklahoma.

R. Dean Lewis is the Dean of the Business School at Sam Houston State University and has served in
this capacity since October 1995. From 1987 to October 1995, Dr. Lewis was the Associate Dean and
Professor of Marketing at Sam Houston State University. Prior to 1987, Dr. Lewis held a number of executive -
positions in the banking and finance industries.

John E Schwalbe has had a professional career in public accounting for more than 30 years,
Mr. Schwalbe’s experience includes auditing of oil and gas exploration and production enterprises, school
districts and various banking institutions. Prior to his retirement in 2007, Mr. Schwalbe was in private practice
for more than 25 years, with primary emphasis in tax planning, consultation and compliance. Mr. Schwalbe is
a Centified Public Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Midwestern
University. ) :

Robert J. Albers was appointed to our Board in January 2008 based on the recommendation of the
Nominating Committee. Mr. Albers currently manages Bob Albers Consulting whereby he acts as corporate
management advisor to the management of the Sercel Group, a global manufacturer of geophysical equipment.
From 1995 to 2002, he was Executive Vice President of Sercel, Inc. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Albers served as
Vice President and General Manager of Halliburton Geophysical Products. In 1982, he joined Geosource, Inc.
and served as President and General Manager, Operations and Technology Group; from 1963 to 1982, he held
various management and leadership roles at Chevron Oil Company. Mr. Albers holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Mining Engineering from Lehigh University.
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INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth the names, ages and titles, as of May 15, 2008, of each of our executive
officers. Our executive officers are elected annually by our Board and serve one-year terms or until their death,
resignation or removal by our Board. There are no family relationships between any of our directors and
executive officers. In addition, there are no arrangements or understandings between any of our executive
officers and any other person pursuant to which any person was selected as an executive officer.

Name Age Positions Held

Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. ... ... ... ... . . 60  President and Chief Executive Officer

Robert P.Capps. . ... .. ... . ... . ... ... .. .. .. ... 54 Executive Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
PaulGuy Rogers . ... ... ...... ... . .. ... 58  Executive Vice President of Business Development
GuyMalden . ... ... .. .. ... . 56 Executive Vice President of Marine Systems

Billy F. Mitcham, Jr’s biographical information may be located under *“Proposal 1: Election of Directors -~
Information About Director Nominees.”

Robert P. Capps’ biographical information may be located under “Proposal 1: Election of Directors —
Information About Director Nominees.”

Paul Guy Rogers has served as our Vice President of Business Development since October 2001. From
February 1993 to September 2001, Mr. Rogers served as Senior Sales Representative with Geo Space LF, a
worldwide manufacturer of geophysical equipment, with responsibilities for sales in the United States and
Latin America. Mr. Rogers has 15 years of experience in the geophysical industry.

Guy Malden has served as our Vice President of Marine Systems since January 2004. Mr. Malden has
30 years experience in the geophysical industry and has been with Mitcham Industries since 2002. From 1999
to 2002, he served as Vice President of Operations for American International Exploration Group. From 1993
10 1999, he served in various management capacities with several seismic equipment manufacturers, most
notably Syntron, Inc. From 1975 to 1993, Mr. Malden served in various field and management capacities with
Geophysical Service Inc./Halliburton Geophysical Services. Mr. Malden holds a degree in Marine Geology
from Long Island University.

12




COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of Our Executive Compensation Program

" Our business strategy is to meet the needs of the seismic industry by providing leasing services for a
wide range of equipment. and to provide technologically advanced solutions for marine seismic applications.
To achieve this, we leverage one of our key strengths — the expertise of our executive officers.

Our executive compensation prograin is structured principally around one goal — attracting, motivating
and retaining top executive talent with the requisite skills and experience to execute our business strategy.
Because we have no direct public competitors in our industry, we compete with many larger companies for top
executive-level talent. Accordingly, we generally target compensation at competitive market levels. In addition,
we believe our executive officers should be rewarded for executing goals that are designed to increase
sharcholder value. As a result, the Compensation Committee of cur Board (for purposes of this Analysis, the
“Committee”’) considers company performance measures and evaluates individual performance when determin-
ing selected elements of our executive compensation program. These elements consist primarily of base
salaries, annual cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives. The Committee combines the compen-
sation elements for each executive officer in a manner that we believe optimizes the officer’s contribution to
our company.

Throughout this proxy statement, the individuals who served as our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, as well as the other individuals included in
the Summary Compensation Table, are referred to as “Named Executive Officers.”

Objectives of Our Executive Compensation Program

We have developed an executive compensation program that is designed to (1) recruit, develop and retain
key executive officers responsible for our success and (2) motivate management to enhance long-term
shareholder value. To achieve these goals, the Committee’s executive compensation decisions are based on the
following principal objectives:

¢ providing a competitive compensation package that attracts, motivates and retains gualified and highly
skilled officers that are key to our long-term success;

¢ rewarding individual performance by ensuring a meaningful link between our operational performance
and the total compensation received by our officers;

® balancing the components of compensation so that short-term (annual) and long-term performance
objectives are recognized; and

e avoiding the creation of an environment that might cause undo pressure to meet specific financial
goals.

Implementing Our Objectives
Role of the Committee, Management and Compensation Consultant

Our Board of Directors has entrusted the Committee with overall responsibility for establishing,
implementing and monitoring our executive compensation program. Our Chief Executive Officer also plays an
important role in the executive compensation process, by overseeing the performance and dynamics of the
executive team and generally keeping the Committee informed. However, all final decisions regarding our
Named Executive Officers’ compensation remain with the Committee, and, in particular, company manage-
ment has no involvement with the compensation decisions with respect to our Chief Executive Officer. During
fiscal 2008, the Committee engaged the services of Villareal & Associates (the “Compensation Consultant”), a
consulting firm experienced in executive and overall compensation practices and policies as well as having
.access to national compensation surveys and our compensation information to help the Committee calibrate
the form and amount of executive compensation, Additional information regarding the role and authority of
the Committee, the Compensation Consultant and management in the process for determining executive
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compensation is provided in this proxy statement in “Corporate Governance - Committees of Qur Board —
Compensation Committee.”

Determining Compensation

The Committee, which relies upon the judgment of its members in making compensation decisions, has
established a number of processes to assist it in ensuring that our executive compensation program supports
our cbjectives and company culture. Among those are competitive benchmarking, assessment of individual and
company performance and a total compensation review, which are described in more detail below.

Competitive Benchmarking. Although we have no public direct competitors, the Committee compares our
executive pay practices against other companies to assist it in the review and comparison of each element of
compensation for our executive officers. This practice recognizes that (1) our compensation practices must be
competitive in the marketplace and (2) marketplace information is one of the many factors considered in
assessing the reasonableness of our executive compensation program.

The Committee usvally begins its competitive market analysis in the first quarter of fiscal the year in
which the compensation decisions are made. The comparative compensation data used in the Committee’s
analysis is derived by the Compensation Consultant from comprehensive surveys performed by third parties.
For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, compensation indices from the ECS Industry Report on Top
Management Compensation, which was prepared by Watson Wyatt Data Services, and the Salary Assessor,
which was prepared by Economic Research Institute, were used in the Committee’s analysis. As part of this
analysis, the Committee compared the compensation of our executive officers with the companies in the
following groups (collectively, “Peer Companies™):

¢ Companies in all industries with comparable total revenues.
®* Companies in the Oil Services / Equipment Sector with comparable total revenues.

Because we have no public direct competitors, the Committee believes it is difficult to obtain directly
comparable data from which to derive an overall compensation program for our senior managers, including
our Named Executive Officers. We do, however, compele for management personnel with a number of
companies within the oil field services industry. Given the strong business environment within this industry, a
very competitive market for experienced senior management has developed.

In order to compete effectively for this senior level talent, the Committee determined during fiscal 2008
to develop an incentive compensation program for all of our senior managers, including our Named Executive
Officers. The Committee examined the public filings of several companies involved in the oil field services
industry, including some who are involved in the seismic industry, to determine the nature of incentive
compensation programs that they employ. These companies included Bolt Technology Corporation, Geo-
kinetics, Inc., Ton Geophysical Corporation, Omni Energy Services Corp., OYO Geospace Corporation and
Basic Energy Services, inc. The Committee believes these companies represent a sample of companies
comparable to ours as well as organizations with which we compete for senior management talent. In
particular, these companies are involved in oil field services industry and several are directly involved in the
seismic industry, either as service providers or as manufacturers. The Committee also believes that each of
these companies has experienced significant growth in recent periods. In addition, several of these companies
have international as well as domestic operations. The incentive compensation program adopted by the
Committee is described in more detail under “Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program — Annual
Incentive Compensation Program.”

Due to our organizational structure and diverse international operations, comparisons of survey data to the
job descriptions of our executive officers is sometimes difficult. Furthermore, the complexities of our
operations and the skills needed of our executive officers are, we believe, greater than those of most companies
with comparable total revenues. Therefore, we at times target base salary and annual cash incentive
compensation levels that are in the top quartile of the survey information for our Peer Companies. The
Committee believes that targeting this level of compensation helps to meet our overall total rewards strategy
and executive compensation objectives outlined above.
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Assessment of Individual and Company Performance. We believe that a balance of individual and
company performance criteria should be used in establishing total compensation. Company performance
determines a portion of amounts earned under our annual incentive compensation program and is a major
factor in the value of equity-based compensation. Individual performance is the primary determining factor in
establishing base salaries, as well as a significant portion of our annual incentive compensation program.
These performance measures are discussed in more detail below.

Total Compensation Review. Each April, the Committee reviews each executive offtcer’s base salary,
annual cash incentive and long-term equity-based incentives. In addition to these primary compensation
elements, the Committee pertodically reviews perquisites and other compensation as well as payments that
would be required under employment agreements and our equity-based plans. Following its April 2007 review,
the Committee determined that these elements of compensation were reasonable in the aggregate in relation to
the market data analyzed by the Committee.

Elements of Qur Executive Compensation Program

The Committee evaluates both performance and compensation to ensure that we maintain our ability to-
attract and retain superior employees in key positions and that compensation provided to our key employees
remains competitive relative to the compensation paid to similarly situated executive officers of our Peer
Companies. In furtherance of these goals, our executive compensation program consists primarily of three
basic components:

¢ base salaries;
& annual incentive payments; and
¢ long-term equity-based incentives.

The distribution of compensation among the various components of compensation is driven by our belief
that a significant portion of each Named Executive Officer’s compensation should be at risk. The practice of
emphasizing variable compensation suits our philosophy of linking pay to performance, both on an individual
and entity level.

The following table shows the allocation of base salary, annual cash incentives and long-term equity-
based incentives among fixed, short-term variable and long-term variable compensation for our Named
Executive Officers for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008:

Short-Term Long-Term
) Variable Variable
Named Executive Fixed (Annual Cash  (Equity-Based

Officer Title {Base Salary) Incentives) Incentives)
Billy F. Miicham, Jr. . ... President and Chief Executive Officer 33% 30% 31%
Robert P. Capps . ... ... Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 29% 26% 45%
Paul Guy Rogers . . . .. .. Vice President Business Development 33% 32% 30%
Guy Malden.......... Vice President Marine Systems 3% 34% 29%

The distribution of compensation between (1) the fixed element of base salary and the variable clements
of annual cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives and (2) the total mix of cash and equity
compensation is primarily influenced by the Committee’s competitive market analysis and its desire to balance
short-term and long-term goals. The distribution of compensation between short-term and long-lerm variable
compensation is primarily influenced by the Committee’s desire to provide our executive officers a longer-
term stake in our company, act as a long-term retention tool and align employee and shareholder interests by
aligning compensation with growth in shareholder value. '

Base Salaries

We provide our executive officers and other employees with an annual base salary to compensate them
for services rendered during the year. Our philosophy has been to establish base salaries near the top range of
such salaries at the Peer Companies.
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In addition to providing a base salary that is competitive with the market, we target salary compensation
to align each of our Named Executive Officer’s salary level relative to the other officers so that it accurately
reflects each officer’s relative skills, responsibilities, experiences and contributions to our company. To that
end, annual salary adjustments are based ont many individual factors, including:

® the responsibilitics of the officer;

¢ period over which the officer has performed these responsibilities;

® the scope, level of expertise and experience required for the officer’s position;

o the strategic impact of the officer’s position; and .

¢ .the potential future contribution and demonstrated individual performance of the officer.

In addition to individual factors listed above, the Committee considers our overall business performance,
such as our earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (or EBITDA), leasing growth, sales
growth and implementation of directives. While these metrics generally provide context for making salary
decisions, base salaries decisions do not depend on the attainment of specific goals or performance levels.

Base salaries are generally reviewed annually, but are not automatically increased if the Committee .
believes that the other elements of compensation are more appropriate in light of its stated objectives. After
consideration of the factors described above, the Committee approved increases in the annual base salary of
approximately 9.5% to 11.8% effective July 1, 2007. The Committee specifically considered increased
experience and years of service when granting these salary increases.

The following table provides the base salaries for our Named Executive Officers in fiscal years 2007 and
2008 and the percentage increase in their 2008 base salary from their 2007 base salary:

Named Executive Officer 2007 Base Salary 2008 Base Salary  Percentage Increase
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. .. ......... e . $335.000 $370,000 ' 95%
Robert P Capps. . ............. e P $175,000 $195,000 . 10.3% .,
Paul Guy Rogers . . ... .. ... . ... ... . . . . . .. $175,000 $195,000 10.3%

Guy Malden . ... ..... e e [T £172,000 $195,000 - 11.8%

Bonus Awards

In December 2007, a discretionary bonus was awarded to each of our Named Executive Officers in
connection with holiday bonuses given all of our U.S. based employees. These bonus awards are immaterial in
amount and ranged in size from 1.0% to 1.8% of base salary. The amounts awarded to our Named Executive
Officers during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 are set forth in the “Bonus™ column of the Summary
Compensation Table,

Annual Incentive Compensation Program

For the reasons set forth above under — Implementing Our Objectives — Determining Compensation,”
the Committee approved an annual incenive compensation program in October 2007 for our senior managers,
including, but not limited to, our Named Executive Offi icers. The program provides for incentive payments
(“Performance Awards”) based’ paﬂially on attainment of corporate-wide financial goals and partially on
discretionary factors. The program further provides for payment of a poruon of the earned amounts in cash
and a portion in phantom shares, as more fully described beiow The Committee wanted to provnde for a
portion of the potentlal payments based upon attainment of corporate-wide financial goals in order to provide
an incentive to our senior managers that was aligned with the financial success of our company as a whole. At
the same time, the Committee felt it was important to provide for a discretionary portion of potential payments
in order to provide flexibility to recognize contributions made by individual officers that may not be reflected
in corporate-wide financial results. The Commitiee believed that providing a significant discretionary compo-
nent would mitigate any undue pressure on the officers to achieve specific corporate financial goals. Further,
the Committee determined that a portion of any earned amounts should be paid in our common stock and that
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a service period should be required before such common stock could be sold. The Committee believed this
feature would help align the goals of cur senior managers with our sharecholders over a longer period of time.

The program consists of three components, each of which is described in more detail below. The total
value of the combined payments made under the three components may not exceed 100% of each Named
Executive Officer’s base salary. Each of our Named Executive Officers must remain an employee of our
company as of May 15, 2008 to receive payments under the program. If the officer’s employment terminates
due to death or disability after May 15, 2008 but prior to May 15, 2009, he will immediately vest in any
phantom shares awarded and be paid in common stock at that time. If the officer’s employment is terminated
for any other reason after May 15, 2008 but prior to May 15, 2009, he will forfeit his phantom shares.

Under the first component of the program (the “Threshold Component”), each of our Named Executive
Officers is entitled to receive an amount equal to 20% of his base salary if our consolidated earnings before
income taxes for the-fiscal year ended Fanuary 31, 2008 (the “Actual Earnings”) is equal to or greater than
90% of the target amount {the “Earnings Target”) established by the Committee. For fiscal 2008, the Earnings
Target was $14,147,000. The Committee believed this was an aggressive, yet achievable, target. This amount
represented an increase of approximately 90% over the comparable amount in fiscal 2007.

Under the second component of the program (the “Incentive Pool Component™), each of our Named
Executive Officers is entitled to receive his pro-rata share of an incentive. pool that is equal to 20% of (1) our
Actual Earnings less (2) the Earnings Target. The Named Executive Officer’s pro-rata share of the incentive
pool is calculated by multiplying the aggregate amount of the incentive pool by the ratio of the officer’s salary
compared to the aggregate salaries of all recipients of Performance Awards. However, the officer’s pro rata
share of the incentive pool may not exceed 55% of his base salary. Actual Earnings for fiscal 2008 was
$16,927,000. The amount by which Actual Eamings exceeded the Earnings Target was $2,780,000 and,
accordingly, the incentive pool was funded with $556,000. Each of our Named Executive Officers received a
payout amount equal to' 40.7% of his annual base salary.

Two-thirds of the amount earned under the first and second components of our annual incentive program
is payable in cash and one-third is payable in phantom shares (the “Equity Payout Value”). The number of
phantom shares is determined by dividing the Equity Payout Value by the trading price of our comnmon stock
on the date the award is made. The result is the number of phantom shares, rounded to the next highest whole
number, that is granted to the officer. The phantom shares vest one year from the date of grant and, upon
vesting, convert into one an equal number of shares of common stock.

Under the third component of the program (the “Discretionary Component™), each of our Named
Executive Officers is entitled to receive a cash payment equal up to 25% of his annual base salary at the
discretion of the Committee. The amount earned by each officer under this component is based on his
individual contributions as determined by the Committee. Factors considered in determining the amount for
fiscal 2008 included non-financial operational results and accomplishments in each Named Executive Officers’
area of responsibility, specific challenges faced by the Named Executive Officer and how those challenges
were addressed. The awards earned by each Named Executive Officer under this discretionary component of
the program during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 are reflected in the “Bonus” c¢olumn of the
Summary Compensation Table.

Long-Term Equity-Based Incentives

Our long-term equity-based incentive program is designed to give our key employees a longer-term stake
in our company, act as a long-term retention tool and align employee and shareholder interests by aligning
compensation with growth in shareholder value. To achieve these objectives, we generally rely on a
combination of grants of stock options and restricted stock, which are made pursuant to the Mitcham
Industries, Inc. Stock Awards Plan.

In determining the level of equity-based compensation, the Committee makes a subjective determination
based on the same factors that are used to determine the discretionary portion of the annual cash incentives
described above. In addition, when deciding whether to award restricted stock versus stock options, the
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Committee considers the total amount of awards and attempts to maintain a balance between the restricted
stock and stock options held by each executive officer. Providing a combination of restricted stock and stock
options balances the Committee’s concern that equity awards serve as a retention tool while also serving as an
incentive to increase shareholder value, with the expectation that each Named Executive Officer would focus
his efforts on improving our stock price performance. Existing ownership levels are not a factor in the total
award determination, as we do not want to discourage executives from holding significant amounts of our
common stock,

Messrs. Mitcham, Capps, Rogers and Malden each received grants of restricted stock in July 2007 and
grants of stock options in September 2007. One-third of the stock options vest and the restrictions on one-third
of the restricted stock lapse on the first, second and third anniversaries of the grants. We believe that these
vesting schedules aid us in retaining our executive officers and motivating longer-term performance.

The long-term equity-based incentive grants awarded to our Named Executive Officers during the fiscat
year ended January 31, 2008 are set forth in the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based
Awards Table.

Other Benefits

In addition to base salaries, annual cash incentives and long-term equity-based incentives, we provide the
following forms of compensation: ‘

e  Health and Welfare Benefits. Qur executive officers are eligible. to participate in medical, dental,
vision, disability insurance and life insurance to meet their heaith and welfare needs. These benefits
are provided so as to assure that we are able to maintain a competitive position in terms of attracting
and retaining officers and other employees. This is a fixed component of compensation and the
benefits are provided on a non-discriminatory basis to all of our employees in the United States.

®  Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits. We believe that the total mix of compensation and benefits
provided to our executive officers is competitive and perquisites should generally not play a large role
in our executive officers’ total compensation. As a result, the perquisites and other personal benefits
we provide 1o our executive officers are limited. Pursuant to our employment agreement with Mr.
Mitcham, we maintain a term life insurance policy in an amount equal to at least three times his
annual salary. In addition, we pay for club membership privileges that are used for business and
personal purposes by Messrs. Mitcham and Rogers. We also provide each of Messrs. Mitcham, Rogers
and Mr. Malden with the use of a company-owned automobile, as they are required to drive
considerable distances in order to visit existing and potential customers. All of our executive officers
participate in our 401(K) retirement plan that is available to all of our employees in the United States.

Employment Agreements, Severance Benefits and Change in Control Provisions
Employment Agreement with Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.

We maintain an employment agreement with our President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Mitcham, to
ensure that he will perform his role for an extended period of time. This agreement is described in more detail
elsewhere in this proxy statlement. Please read “Executive Compensation — Narrative Disclosure to Summary
Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table — Employment Agreement with Billy F.
Mitcham, Jr." This agreement provides for severance compensation to be paid if the employment of
Mr. Mitcham is terminated under certain conditions, such as constructive termination and termination without
cause, each as defined in the agreement.

The employment agreement between Mr. Mitcham and us and the related severance provisions are
designed to meet the following objectives: :

o Constructive Termination. In certain scenarios, the. potential for merger or being acquired may be in
the best interests of our sharehoiders. As a result, we have agreed to provide severance compensalion
to Mr. Mitcham if he terminates his employment within 60 days following a “constructive
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termination” (as defined in the employment agreement) to promote his ability to act in the best
interests of our shareholders even though his duties and responsibilities could be changed as a result
of the transaction.

o  Termination without Cause. If we terminate Mr. Mitcham’s employment without cause, we are
obligated to pay him certain compensation and other benefits as described in greater detail in
“Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control” below. We believe these payments are
appropriate because Mr. Mitcham is bound by confidentiality, non-solicitation and non-compete
provisions for a period of two years after termination and because Mr. Mitcham and we have mutually
agreed to a severance package that is in place prior to any termination event. This provides us with
more flexibility to make a change in senior management if such a change is in our and our
shareholders’ best interests.

We believe that the triggering events under Mr. Mitcham’s employment agreement represent the general
market triggering events found in employment agreements of companies against whom we compete for
executive-level talent at the time they were negotiated.

Equity-Based Plans

Under the terms of our equity incentive plans, any unvested grants will become vested and, in the case of
stock options, exercisable, upon the executive officer’s death or disability or upon a change in control of our
company (as defined in the applicable award agreement). We believe these triggering events represent the
general market triggering events found in comparable agreements of companies against whom we compete for
executive-level talent.

Other Matters
Stock Ownership Guidelines and Hedging Prohibition

Stock ownership guidelines have not been implemented by the Committee for our executive officers. Our
Insider Stock Trading Policy discourages, but does not prohibit, executive officers from entering into derivative
transactions related to our cormnmon stock. We will continue to periodically review best practices and re-
evaluate our position with respect to stock ownership guidelines and hedging prohibitions.

Tax Treatment of Executive Compensation Decisions

QOur Board has not yet adopted a policy with respect to the limitation under Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code, which generally limits our ability to deduct compensation in excess of $1,000,000 to a
particular executive officer in any year. On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was
signed into law, changing the tax rules applicable to nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements. While
the final regulations have not become effective yet, the Committee will evaluate any potential irmpact of the
proposed rules as necessary.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the disclosure set forth above under the
heading “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” with management and, based on the review and discussions,
it has recommended to the Board of Directors that the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” be included
in this proxy statement and incorporated by reference into Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008.

Respectfully submitted by the Compensation Committee,

Peter H. Blum (Chairman})
R. Dean Lewis
John F. Schwalbe
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation

The following table summarizes, with respect to our Named Executive Officers, information relating to
the compensation earned for services rendered in all capacities. Our Named Executive Officers consist of our
four current executive officers, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

Summary Compensation Table for the Year Ended January 31, 2008

Fiscal Year Non-Equity
Name and Ended Stock Option, Incentive Plan All Orther

Principal Position January 31, Salary Bonus  Awards'"' Awards” Compensation™ Compensation  Total

i$) () % %) ($) ($) $)
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. 2008 352,500 92,314 127906 257227 224,578 25671 1,080,196
President and Chief Executive Officer . . . 2007 322,500 8£9,794% 52447 330,601 — 75,039 870,481
Robert P. Capps 2008 185,000 48,314'® 13,563 278,998 118,359 — 644,234

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Office’™ ... ... ... ... .. 2007 105,449 54,503 — 27746947 — 12,500 449,921
Paul Guy Rogers 2008 185,000 33,6801 551590 91,091 118,359 —1% 483,298
Vice President Business Development . . . 2007 170.833 54.880"'2 19716 93,229 — — 338,067
Guy Malden 2008 183,500 4831445 55159 91,091 1183590 — 406,423
Vice President Marine Systems . . .. ... 2007 167,833 54,368"% 17545 92451 — — 332,197

{1) This column includes the dollar amount of compensation expense we recognized for the fiscal year ended January 21, 2008 in accor-
dance with Financial Accounting Standards Board's Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 123R, “Share-Based
Payment™ (“FAS 123R™). Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and regulations, the amounts shown exclude
the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. These amounts reflect our accounting expense for
these awards, and do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by our Named Executive Officers. Assumptions used
in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 12 (o our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31,
2008 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The awards for which compensation expense was recognized consist of awards
granted on (a) March 31, 2006 and September 11, 2006 1o Messrs. Mitcham, Rogers and Malden; and (b} July §2, 2007 10
Messrs. Mitcham. Capps, Rogers and Malden. See “Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based
Awards Table™ below for a description of the material features of these awards.

(2) This column includes the dollar amount of compensation expense we recognized for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 in accor-
dance with FAS 123R. Pursuani to the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and regulations, the amounts shown exclude the
impact of estimated forfeitures related 1o service-based vesting conditions. These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these
awards, and do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by our Named Executive Officers, Assumptions used in the
calculation of these amounts are incleded in Note 12 to our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The awards for which compensation expense was recognized consist of awards granted
on (a} January 31, 2005 and March 31, 2006 to Messrs. Mitcham, Rogers and Malden; (b) June 26, 2006 to Mr. Capps: and (c) Sep-
tember 7, 2007 to Messrs. Mitcham, Capps, Malden and Rogers. See “Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table” below for a description of the material featres of these awards.

(3) Includes amounts earned pursuant to the performance-based components of our Stock Awards Plan. See “Compensation Discussion

and Analysis — Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program — Annual Incentive Compensation Program.”

—

Amount for 2008 consists of $87,875 cash award paid in May 2008 under the Discretionary Component of the annual incentive com-
pensation program and holiday cash bonus of $4.439 paid in December 2007. Amount for 2007 consists of discretionary cash bonus
of $85,000 paid in July 2007 and holiday cash bonus of $4,439 paid in December 2006. Prior to July 2007, the Compensation Com-
mittee had not determined the amount of the discretionary cash bonus. if any. Accordingly, this amount was not reflected in our
proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.

4

—

(5) Consists of performance-based awards of $149.719 payable in cash and $74.859 payable in Phantom Stock Units under the Threshold
Component and Incentive Pool Component of the annual incentive compensation program.

(6} For the year ended Januvary 31, 2008, includes life insurance premiums of $18,000, automobile costs of $1.126, country club dues of
$5,312 and marching contributions to our 401(k} retirement plan of $1,233. For the year ended January 31, 2007, includes life insur-
ance premiums of $69,000, automobile costs of $1,126 and country club dues of $5,013. Automobile costs are determined by multi-
plying the Altemative Lease Value, as published by the Internal Revenue Service, by the percentage of personal use mileage versus
total mileage for the vear.

{7) Mr. Capps has served as a member of our Board since July 2004. On June 26. 2006, he also assumed the position of Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer,
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(8) Amount for 2008 consists of $43,875 cash award paid in May 2008 under the Discretionary Component of the annual incentive com-
pensation program and holiday cash bonus of $4,439 paid in December 2007. Amount for 2007 consists of discretionary cash bonus
of $50,000 paid in July 2007 and holiday cash bonus of $4,439 paid in December 2006. Prior to July 2007, the Compensation Com-
mittee had not determined the amount of the discretionary cash bonus, if any. Accordingly, this amount was not reflected in our
proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

(9)- Consists of performance-based awards of $78,906 payable in cash and $39,453 payable in Phantom Stock Units under the Threshold
Component and Incentive Pool Component of the annual incentive compensation program.

(10} Includes $73.355 related to awards made in connection with Mr. Capps’ role as a director before he became an executive officer.

{11) Represents “Fees Eamed or Paid in Cash” 1o Mr. Capps as a member of our Board for the period prior to his becoming an executive
officer.

(12) Amount for 2008 consists of $29,250 cash award paid in May 2008 under the Discretionary Component of the annual incentive com-
pensation program and holiday cash bonus of $4,439 paid in December 2007. Amount for 2007 consists of discretionary cash bonus
of 850,000 paid in July 2007 and holiday cash bonus of $4,489 paid in December 2006. Prior to July 2007, the Compensation Com-
mittee had not determined the amount of the discretionary cash bonus, if any. Accordingly, this amount was not reflected in our
proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

(13) Consists of performance-based awards of $78,906 payable in cash and $39,453 payable in Phantom Stock Units under the Threshold
Component and Incentive Pool Component of the annual incentive compensation program.

(14) Value of perquisites and personal benefits is less than $10,000 in the aggregate.

(15) Amount for 2008 consists of $43,875 cash award paid in May 2008 under the annual incentive compensation program and heliday
cash borus of $4.439 paid in December 2007. Amount for 2007 consists of discretionary cash bonus of $50,000 paid in July 2007
and holiday cash bonus of $4,368 paid in December 2006. Prior to July 2007, the Compensation Committee had not determined the
amount of the discretionary cash bonus, if any. Accordingly, this amount was not reflected in our proxy statement for the 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders,

(16) Consists of performance-based awards of $78,906 payable in cash and $39,453 payable in Phantom Stock Units under the Threshold
Component and Incentive Pool Component of the annual incentive compensation program.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table provides information concerting each grant of an award made to our Named
Executive Officers under any plan, including awards, if any, that have been transferred during the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2008.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for the Year Ended January 31, 2008

All Other
Stock All Other
Awards: Option Grant Date
Number Awards: Exercise or Fair
of Number Base Value of . -
Shares of of Securities  Price of  Stock and  Estimated Future Payments Under
Grant  Stock or  Underlying Option Option  Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards
Name Date - Units Options Awards Awards Threshold  Target Maximum
) # {$/Sh) ($ ' £)] ($). 4]
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. . ... 7-12-07 6,000 — — 120,000 — — —
9-07-07 — 25,000 17.70 232,959 — — —
— — _ — — — - — 74,0007
— - _ _ —_ — — 203,500
Robert P. Capps. ....... 7-12-07 2,000 — — 40,000 — — —
9-07-07 — 15,000 17.70 139,776 - — —
— — - — — — — 39,000
— — — — — — — 107,250
Paul Guy Rogers . . ... .. 7-12-07 2,000 —_ — 40,000 — — —
9-07-07 - 15,000 17.70 139,776 - — —
— - — — — — — 39,0001
— - — — — — — 107,250
Guy Malden . ......... 7-12-07 2,000 — — 40,000 — — —
9-07-07 — 15,000 17.70 139,776 — — _
— — — — — — — 39,0001
—_ — — — - = — 107,250

(1) Under the Threshold Component of our annuzl incentive compensation program, each Named Executive Officer will receive an award
equal 10 20% of his base salary if our eamings before income taxes for the year ended January 31, 2008 equals or exceeds 90% of the
Eamings Target. Two-thirds of the award is payable in cash and cne-third is payable in Phantom Stock Units. See “Compensation Dis-
cussion and Analysis — Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program — Annual Incentive Compensation Program” for a more
complete description of this award.

@

—

Under the Incentive Pool Component of our annual incentive compensation program, each Named Executive Cfficer will receive an
additional award if our earnings before income taxes for the year ended January 31, 2008 exceeds the Eamings Target. The amount of
this award will be equal to each Named Executive Officer's pro-rata share of an incentive pool amount, based on the base salary of all
participants in the program. The incentive pool amount will be equal to 20% of the excess, if any, of eamings before income taxes for
the year ended Januvary 31, 2008 over the Eamings Target. In no event, however will a participant’s award exceed 55% of his base sal-
ary. Two-thirds of the award is payable in cash and one-third is payable in Phantom Stock Units. See “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis — Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program — Annual Incentive Compensation Program” for a more complete
description of this award.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table
The following is a discussion of material factors necessary to an understanding of the information

disclosed in the Summary Compensation Table and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table.
Long-Term Equity-Based Incentive Compensation

In July 2007, the Compensation Committee granted Messrs. Mitcham, Capps, Rogers and Malden restricted
stock pursuant to our Stock Awards Plan. In September 2007, the Compensation Committee granted Messrs. Mitcham,
Capps, Rogers and Malden stock options pursuant to our Stock Awards Plan. For a description of the grants, including
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the vesting schedule for the stock options and the dates that the restrictions lapse on the restricted stock, please see
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis — Elements of Our Executive Compensation Program — Long-Term Equity-
Based Incentives.”

Salary and Cash Incentive Awards in Proportion to Total Compensation

The following table sets forth the percentage of cach Named Executive Officer’s total compensation that
we paid in the form of base salary and annual cash incentive awards.
Percentage of Total

Name Year Compensation
Billy FE. Mitcham, Jr. . ... ... e s 2008 41%
2007 A7%
ROBEt B CapPS" © o o o e et e e 2008 36%
2007 5%
Paul Guy ROGErs . . . . . e e e 2008 45%
2007 67%
Guy Malden . . . Lo e e 2008 47%
2007 67%

(1) Mr. Capps has served as a member of our Board since July 2004. On June 26, 2006. he also assumed the position of Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer.

Employment Agreement with Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.

Effective January 15, 1997, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Mitcham for a term of
five years, beginning January 15, 1997, which term is automatically extended for successive one-year periods
unless either party gives written notice of termination at least 30 days prior to the end of the current term. The
agreement provides for an annual salary of $150,000, subject to increase by our Board. Pursuant to the
employment agreement, we are required to maintain a term life insurance policy in an amount equal to at least
three times Mr. Mitcham’s annual salary.
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Outstanding Equity Awards Value at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table provides information concerning unexercised options, stock that has not vested, and

equity incentive plan awards for.our Named Executive Officers.

Ouitstanding Equity Awards as of January 31, 2008

Option Awards

Stock Awards

Number of Number of
Securities Securities
Underlying Underlying ., Number of Market Value of
Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Shares or Units Shares or Units
. Options Options Exercise  Expiration of Stock That of Stock That
Name (#) Exercisable {#) Unexercisable Price Date Have Not Vested Have Not Vested
3] #) %)

Billy F. Mitchamt, Jr. . . ... 70.500 — 156 2-23-09 — —
45,000 — 513 7-27-10 — —
80,000 — 5.00 7-18-11 — —
85,000 — 1.99 8-15-12 — —
30,000 — 1.90 7-17-13 — —
25,000 — 4.16 T-13-14 — —
50,000 — 6.18 1-31-15 - —
16,667 33,3349 16.64 3-31-16 — —
— 25,0002 17.70 9.07-17 — -
— — — — 17,0004 285,600
Robert P, Capps'™? .. .. ... és.ooo — 8.98 7-21-15 — —
20,000 60,0001 12.57 6-26-16 — —
— 15,000 17.70 9.07-17 — -
— — — - 2,000 33,600
Paul Guy Rogers .. . ... .. 10,000 - 4.60 10-23.11 - —
20,000 — 1.99 B-15-12 — —
12,500 — 1.90 7-07-13 — —_
10,000 — 6.18 [-31-15 — —
5,000 10,000"Y 16.64 3-31-16 — —
— 15,0007 17.70 9.07-17 — —
' — — — - 7,334 123211
Guy Malden . .. ........ 6,500 — 6.18 [-31-15 — —
5.000 10,000'Y 16.64 3.31-16 - —
— 15,000 17.70 9-07-17 — —
— ' - - — 73347 123211

(1) One-half of the underlying option shares for-the remaining unexercisable stock options granted on March 31, 2006 will become exer-

cisable on each of March 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009,

(2) One-third of the underlying option shares for the remaining unexercisable stock options granted on September 7, 2007 will become
exercisable on each of September 7, 2008, September 7, 2009 and September 7, 2010,

(3) The remaining unvested restricted stock awards granted on March 31, 2006 will vest as follows: 2,500 shares on March 31, 2008 and
2,500 shares on March 31, 2009. The remaining unvested restricted stock awards granted on September 11, 2006 will vest as follows:
3.000 shares on September 11, 2008 and 3,000 shares on September 11, 2009. The remaining unvested stock awards granted on
July 12, 2007 will vest as follows: 2,000 shares on July 12, 2008, 2,000 shares on July 12, 2009 and 2,000 shares on July 12, 2010,

(4) Mr, Capps has served as a member of our Board since July 2004. On June 26, 2006, he also assumed the position of Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer.
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(5) The underlying option shares for the remaining unexercisable stock options granted on June 26, 2006 will become exercisable as fol-
lows: 20.000 shares on June 26, 2008, 20,000 shares on June 26, 2009 and 20,000 shares on June 26, 2010.

(6) The remaining unvested restricted stock awards granted on July 12, 2007 will vest as follows: 666 shares on July 2, 2008; 667 shares
on July 12, 2009; and 667 shares on July 12, 2010.

(7) The remaining unvested restricted stock awards granted on March 31, 2006 will vest as follows: 667 shares on March 31, 2008 and
667 shares on March 31, 2009. The remaining unvested restricted stock awards granted on September 11, 2006 will vest as follows:
2,000 shares on September 11, 2008 and 2,000 shares on September 11, 2005. The remaining unvested stock awards granted on
July 12, 2007 will vest as follows: 666 shares on July 12, 2008, 667 shares on July 12, 2009 and 667 shares on July 12, 2010

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The following table.provides information concerning each exercise of stock option and each vesting of
stock, including restricted stock, restricted stock units and similar instruments, during the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2008 on an aggregated basis with respect to each of our Named Executive Officers.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested for the Year Ended January 31, 2008

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares Value Realized Number of Shares Value Realized
Name Acquired on Exercise Exercise Acquired on Vesting on Vesting
# 4] * (%)
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. . .................. -— — 5,500 87,895
Robert P.Capps . ......... ... ... ..., —_ — — —
Paul Gey Rogers. . .................... — - 2,667 , 43,952
GuyMalden......................... 3,500 44 879 2,667 43,952

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

We have entered into arrangements with certain of our Named Executive Officers that provide additional
payments and/or benefits upon a change in control of our company and/or in connection with the termination
of the Named Executive Officer's employment. For our Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Mitcham, these
agreements include both an employment agreement and the award agreements that govern his equity awards.
For the remaining Named Executive Officers, these agreements consist solely of the award agreements
governing the officers’ equity awards. The following is a discussion of each of these arrangements and their
applicability to a termination of employment andfor a change in control of our company. Unless otherwise
provided, the dollar amounts disclosed assume that the triggering event for the payment(s) and/or benefit(s)
was January 31, 2008, and the value of our stock on that day was $16.80. As a resuit, the dollar amounts
disclosed are merely estimates of the amounts or benefits that would be payable to the Named Executive
Officers upon their termination or a change in control of our company. The actual dollar amounts can only be
determined at the time of the Named Executive Officer’s termination or the change in control.

Equity-Based Plans

Stock options and shares of restricted stock awarded to the Named Executive Officers under our 1998
Amended and Restated Stock Awards Plan and our Stock Awards Plan will become vested and, in the case of
stock oplions, exercisable, upon the Named Executive Officer’s death or disability or upon a change in control
of our company. The equity awards will be cancelled without payment if the Named Executive Officer is
terminated for cause, or for a reason other than death or disability.

For purposes of our equity compensation plans, termination for cause shall result if: (1) the officer acts
dishonestly and the direct or indirect consequence of such action is a personal enrichment to that executive,
(2) the officer is unable to perform his duties in a satisfactory manner or (3) the officer fails to consistently
perform his duties at a level that our Board has. by written notice, informed the officer is expected from him.
An officer will be considered “disabled” if he becomes entitled to benefits under our long-term disability plan.
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Pursuant to our Stock Awards Plan, a change in control may occur in two ways. If a stock option or
restricted stock award is subject to Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code™), any event that would be considered a change in control under Section 409A of the Code will also
trigger accelerated vesting for the award. If the stock option or restricted stock award is not subject to
Section 409A of the Code, a change of control shall mean the occurrence of any of the following events:

® we are not the surviving entity in any merger, consolidation or other reorganization;
e we sell, lease or exchange all or substantially all of our assets to a third party;
e we dissolve or liquidate our company;

® any person or entity acquires ownership of our securities which represent 35% or more of the voting
power of our then outstanding securities entitled to vote in the election of directors; or

¢ achange in the composition of our Board, where less than the majority of the directors are
“incumbent directors.” An “incumbent director” is any director as of the date the Stock Awards Plan
was adopted, or who is elected to the Board after such time by the vote of at least a ma_]onty of the
directors in place at the time of the Stock Awards Plan’s adoption.

In order for our Named Executive Officers to receive value from the acceleration of vesting for stock
options, the value of the stock on January 31, 2008 (the date of the accelerated vesting and hypothetical
exercise of such options), must be a greater amount than the exercise price of the option. The following chart
shows the amounts that each of our Named Executive Officers would have received due to the accelerated
vesting on January 31, 2008 for a termination of employment due to death or disability, or a change in
control:

'

Value of Accelerated Equity Awards as of January 31, 2008

Name  Number of Securities  Exercise Price  Value'”
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.
Stock OPHONS ... ool vt e e - 33,334 $16.64 $ 5333
Restricted Stock . . . ... ................ e e - 17,000 — $285,600
Total . . . o e $290,933
Robert P, Capps .
SIOCK OPHONS . . o i e e 60,000 $12.57 $253,800
Restricted Stock . . . . . ... . ... e, 2,000 — $ 33,600
Total. . ... e $287,400
Paul Guy Rogers
Stock OPUONS . . ..o e e 10,000 $16.64 $ 1600
Restricted Stock . . . . o e 7,334 — $123.21
TOUE . - e ' $124,811
Guy Malden
Stock Options .. .................... e 10,000 $16.64 3 1,600
Restricted StOCK . . . .. .. 7,334 — $123,211
Total . . . e e e $124,811

(1) The stock option values in this column were calculated by multiplying (a) the number of stock options that had an exercise price
below the fair market value of the stock on January 31, 2008 by (b) the difference in the exercise price and the fair market value of
the stock. The restricted stock awards were calculated by multiplying (a) the shares of unvested restricted stock each officer held on
January 3i, 2008 by (b) $16.80, the fair market value of the stock on that day.
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Emplayment Agreement with Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.

We have entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Mitcham, the general terms of which are
described above. Mr. Mitcham's severance provisions are dependent upon the following terms:

e A for “cause” termination will occur if Mr. Mitcham: (1) materially breaches his employment
agreement, (2) appropriates a material business opportunity for his own personal benefit, (3) engages
in fraudulent or dishonest activities with respect to us or our business affairs or (4) is convicted of or
is indicted for a criminal offense.

® “Constructive termination” is defined as: (1) a material reduction in Mr. Mitcham’s duties and
responsibilities without his prior consent or (2) a reduction in, or our failure to pay, any portion of
Mr. Mitcham’s base salary.

s  Mr. Mitcham will have suffered a “disability” if, for physical or mental reasons, he is unable t0
perform his duties under the employment agreement for a period of 120 consecutive days, or 180 days
during any 12 month period.

Pursuant to this employment agreement, in the event his employmem is terminated by us “without cause”
or he terminates his employment with us within 60 days following a “constructive termination,” Mr. Mitcham
will be entitled to a severance payment in an amount equal to $450,000, payable in equal monthly payments
over a period of 24 months following the date of termination.

If Mr. Mitcham’s employment with us is terminated as a result of his disability, we will continue to pay
to him his base salary (determined as of the date of his disability) for the lesser of (1) six consecutive months
or (2) the period until disability insurance benefits commence under any disability insurance coverage
furnished by us to Mr. Mitcham. Under our long-term disability insurance program, cOverage commences on
the 61st day after the covered employee is unable to perform his or her job functions, thus Mr. Mitcham would
receive $58,750, which is two months of salary calculated according to the base salary Mr. Mitcham was
receiving as of January 31, 2008,

MTr. Mitcham’s employment agreement, provides for automatic expiration of any stock options Mr. Mit-
cham may hold at the time of either a for cause termination or a resignation. Upon a termination for any
reason other than a termination for cause, resignation or death, his options will remain exercisable and will
vest and expire in accordance with the terms of the applicable option agreements. If Mr. Mitcham’s
employment with us is terminated as a result of his death, all of his outstanding options will become fully
vested and exercisable as of the date of his death. All options will expire on the one-year anniversary of his
death. The value of the accelerated vesting upon these events in accordance with the option agreements is
disclosed in the “Value of Accelerated Equity Awards as of January 31, 2008” table above.

Mr. Mitcham’s employment agreement contains standard non-solicitation and non-compete provisions that
are effective during the term of the-employment agreement and for 24 months following his date of
termination.
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

General

Each year, the Compensation Committee reviews the total compensation paid to our non-employee
directors and Non-Executive Chairman of our Board. The purpose of the review is to ensure that the level of
compensation is appropriate to attract and retain a diverse group of directors with the breadth of experience
necessary to perform our Board's duties, and to fairly compensate directors for their service. The review
includes the consideration of qualitative and comparative factors. To ensure directors are compensated relative
to the scope of their responsibilities, the Compensation Committee considers: (1) the time and effort involved
in preparing for Board, committee and management meetings and the additional duties assumed by committee
chairs; (2) the level of continuing education required to remain informed of broad corporate governance trends,
and material developments and strategic initiatives within our company; and (3} the risks associated with
fulfilling fiduciary duties.

The following table sets forth a summary of the compensation we paid to our non-employee directors
during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008. Directors who are our full-time employees receive no
compensation for serving as directors.

Director Compensation for the Year Ended January 31, 2008

Fees Earned or

Name Paid in Cash Stock Awards'”  Option Awards™ Total
% % & %)
Peter H.Blom . ... ... . .o L 79,000 22,050 _ 417,987 519,037
John F, Schwalbe. . ...................... 35,000 — 208,993 243,993
R Deanlewis ............... ..., 32,600 —_ 2018,993 240,993

Robert J. Albers™ . ... ... ... ... ... ..., — — — —

(1)} This column includes the dollar amount of compensation expense we recognized for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 in accor-
dance with FAS 123R. Pursuant 1o the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and repgulations, the amonnts shown exclude the
impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. These amounts reflect our accounting cxpense for these
awards, and do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by our non-employee directors. Assumptions used in the cal-
culation of these amounts are included in Note 12 to our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. The awards for which compensation expense was recognized consist of an award
granted on March 3t, 2006 for Mr. Blum. Mr. Blum had 2,000 shares of restricted stock outstanding as of January 31, 2008, The
aggregate number of stock awards outstanding at January 31, 2008 for each of the directors is as follows: Mr. Blum 1,332 shares and
Mr. Albers 3,000 shares.

2

—

This column includes the doflar amournt of compensation expense we recognized for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 in accordance with
FAS 123R. Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and regulations, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated for-
feitures related to service-based vesting conditions. These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these awards, and do not correspond to the
actual value that will be recognized by our non-employee directors. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note 12
to our audited financial staterments for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, The awards for
which compensation expense was recognized consist of awards granted on July 27, 2006 and July 12, 2007 to Messrs. Blum, Schwalbe and
Lewis, See “Equity-Based Compensation” below for a brief description of these awards. The aggregate number of stock option awards outstand-
ing at January 31, 2008 for each of the directors is as follows: Mr. Blum — 350,000 shares; Mr. Schwalbe — 90,000 shares: Mr. Lewis —

90,000 shares; and Mr. Albers ~ 30,000. The grant date fair value for each option award granted during fiscal 2008 for each of the directors is as
follows: Mr. Blum - $645,024 ; Mr. Schwalbe - $322,512; Mr. Lewis — $322.512; and Mr. Albers - $228,299.

(3) Mr. Albers was appointed to cur Board on January 30, 2008. Upoen his election, he was granted an award of 3,000 shares of restricted
stock that vest on January 3¢, 2009 and options to purchase 30,000 shares of common stock. The options have an exercise price of
$16.83 per share and become exercisable in one-third increments on each of January 30, 2009, January 30, 2010 and January 30,
2011.
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Retainer/Fees

Each non-employee director receives the following compensation:

® an annual cash retainer fee of $25,000 per year, plus an additional $50,000 for the Non-Executive

Chairman of our Board;

® an additional cash retainer of $5,000 per year for each member of the Audit Commitiee, plus an

additional $3,000 per year for the chairperson of the Audit Committee; and

® an additional cash retainer of $2,000 per year for each member of the Compensation Committee, plus

an additional $2,000 per year for the chairperson of the Compensation Committee.

Equity-Based Compensation

In addition to cash compensation, our non-employee directors are eligible, at the discretion of our full
Board, 10 receive discretionary grants of stock options or restricted stock or any combination thereof under our
equity compensation plans. On July 12, 2007, the Board of Directors awarded options to purchase
30,000 shares of common stock to each non-employee director (except for the Non-Executive Chairman) and
options to purchase 60,000 shares to our Non-Executive Chairman pursuant our Stock Awards Plan. The grant
was made after a review of the prior compensation of our non-employee directors. The option awards vest
over a three year period beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date. Upon his appointment to our
Board in January 2008, Mr. Albers was granted 3,000 shares of restricted stock and options to purchase
30,000 shares of commons stock pursuant to our Stock Awards Plan. The restrictions on the restricted stock
lapse one year after the grant date and the stock options vest over a three year period beginning on the first

anniversary of the grant date.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Information regarding our equity compensation plans is a follows:

Number of securities

Number of remaining available for
securities to be future issuance under
issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding outstanding options  securities reflected in
' options and rights and rights column (a))

Plan Category a) (b) b

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders. . . . .. 1,390,000 59.80 636,000

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders . . . — — —

Total . . 1,390,000 $9.80 636,000
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PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF THE SELECTION OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee has selected Hein & Associates LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm to conduct our audit for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009.

The engagement of Hein & Associates LLP has been recommended by the Audit Commiuee and .
approved by our Board annually. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited consolidated
financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008,
and has recommended, and our Board has approved their inclusion therein. See “Audit Committee Report”
included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

Although shareholder ratification of the selection of Hein & Associates LLP is not required, the Audit
Committee and our Board consider it desirable for our shareholders to vote upon this selection. The affirmative
vote of the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on, and that vote for or against or expressly
abstain, on the proposal at the Annual Meeting is required to approve and ratify the selection of Hein &
Associates LLP. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee may, in its discretion, direct the
appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if it
believes that such a change would be in the best interests of our shareholders and us.

One or more representatives of Hein & Associates LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting
and will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. The representatives of Hein &
Associates LLP are expected to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Our Board recommends a vote “FOR’ the ratification of the selection of Hein & Associates LLP as
our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2009.

FEES AND EXPENSES OF HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP

The following table sets forth the amount of audit fees, audit-related fees and tax fees billed or expected
to be billed by Hein & Associates LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, for the fiscal years
ended January 31, 2008 and Janwary 31, 2007:

2008 2007
Audit fees' Y . L $426,835  $381,300
Auditrelated fees | . L — -
Tax feest L oo — 115948
Allother fees . L _— —
oAl FEES . . . . e e e e e e $426,835 5497248

(1) Includes the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, audit of our system of internal control over financial reporting and
review of Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

(2) During the indicated periods, our independent registered public accounting firm did not provide us with any services of this nature.

(3) Includes fees and expenses for services primarily related to tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning for certain acquisitions.

The Audit Committee also has approved a policy that requires commitiee pre-approval of the compensa-
tion and terms of service for audit services and any permitted non-audit services based on ranges of fees, and
any changes in terms, conditions and fees resulting from changes in audit scope or other matters. Any
proposed audit or non-audit services exceeding the pre-approved fee ranges require additional pre-approval by
the Audit Committee or its chairman.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee was established to implement and to support oversight function of the Board of
Directors with respect to the financial reporting process, accounting policies, internal controls and independent
registered public accounting firm of Mitcham Industries, Inc.

The Board of Directors, in its business judgment, has determined that each of Messrs. Schwalbe, Lewis
and Blum is an independent director, as that term is defined in Rule 4350 of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules,
and meets the Securities and Exchange Commission’s additional independence requirements for members of
audit committees. In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that each member of the Audit
Committee is financially literate and that Mr. Schwalbe has the necessary accounting and financial expertise to
serve as chairman. Our Board has determined that Mr. Schwalbe is an *“audit committee financial expert”
following a determination that Mr. Schwalbe met the criteria for such designation under the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and regulations.

In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Audit Committee:

& reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements contained in Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 with management and the
independent registered public accounting firm;

e discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed
by the statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, “*Communications with Audit Committees™,

e received from the independent registered public accounting firm the written disclosures and the letter
required by Independence Standards Board Statement No. 1, “Independence Discussions with Audit
Committees” and discussed the independent registered public accounting firm’s independence with the
firm; and

e considered the compatibility of non-audit services with the independent registered public accounting
firm’s independence.

Based on these reviews and discussions, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
that the audited financial statements be included in Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008.

The information contained in this Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material™
to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shali such information be incorporated by
reference into any future filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or subject to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that we specifically
incorporate it by reference into a document filed under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Respectfully submitted by the Audit Commitiee,

John F. Schwalbe (Chairman)
R. Dean Lewis
Robert J. Albers
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ANNUAL REPORT

Our Annual Report for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 accompanies this proxy statement. Except
for the financial statements included in the Annual Report that are specifically incorporated by reference
herein, the Annual Report is not incorporated in this proxy statement and is not to be deemed part of this
proxy soliciting material. Additional copies of the Annual Report are available upon request.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date hereof, our Board knows of no other business to be presented at the Annual Meeting. 1If
any other matter properly comes before the meeting, however, it is intended that the persons named in the
accompanying proxy will vote the proxy in accordance with the discretion and instructions of our Board,

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and regulations, shareholders interested in
submitting proposals for inclusion in our proxy materials and for presentation at our 2009 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders may do so by following the procedures set forth in Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act. In
general, shareholder proposals must be received by our Corporate Secretary at Mitcham Industries, Inc.,

P.O. Box 1175, Huntsville, Texas 77342-1175 no later than February 3, 2009 to be eligible for inclusion in
our proxy materials.

In addition, shareholders may present business at a shareholder meeting without having submitied the
proposal pursuant to Rule t4a-8 as discussed above. For business to be properly brought or nominations of
persons for election to our Board to be properly made at the time of our 2008 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, notice must be received by our Corporate Secretary at the address in the preceding paragraph by
April 19, 2009,

Detailed information for submitting shareholder proposals and director nominations is available upon
written request to our Corporate Secretary at Mitcham Industries, Inc., PO. Box 1175, Huntsville, Texas
77342-1175.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Form-10K”) may be deemed to be
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”) and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). This
information includes, without limitation, statements concerning:

» our future financial position and results of operations;

» planned capital expenditures;

= our business strategy and other plans for future operations;

» the future mix of revenues and business;

» future demand for our services; and

+ general conditions in the energy industry and seismic service industry.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonabte, we can
not assure you that these expectations will prove to be correct. When used in this Form 10-K, the words “anticipate,”
“believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may” and similar expressions, as they relate to our company and management, are
intended to identify forward-looking statements. The actual results of future events described in these forward-
looking statements could differ materially from the results described in the forward-looking statements due to risks
and uncertainties, including those set forth in Item 1A — “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere within this Form 10-K. We
caution readers to not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date hereof.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any of these forward-looking statements after the date they
are made, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.




PART I

Item 1. Business

Mitchamn Industries, Inc. (“MII"), a Texas corporation, was incorporated in 1987. We are engaged directly and
through our wholly owned subsidiaries in the leasing of seismic equipment to the oil and gas industry on a
worldwide basis. We are also engaged in the sale of new and used seismic equipment and in the design, manufacture
and sale of marine seismic equipment. Our operating subsidiaries are Mitcham Canada Ltd (“MCL"), Seismic Asia
Pacific Pty Ltd. (“*SAP”), Mitcham Seismic Eurasia LLC (“MSE”), Seamap (UK) Ltd (“Seamap UK")} and Seamap
Pte. Ltd (“Seamap Singapore”). Seamap UK and Seamap Singapore are collectively referred to as “Seamap.”

We operate our business in two segments, Equipment Leasing and equipment manufacturing. The equipment
manufacturing segment is conducted by our Seamap subsidiaries and therefore is referred to in this Form 10-K as
our “Seamap” segment. For additional information about ocur business segments, including related financial
information, see Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ of this Form 10-K.

We lease and sell geophysical and other equipment used primarily by seismic data acquisition contractors to
perform seismic data acquisition surveys on land, in transition zones (marsh and shallow water areas) and marine
areas. We conduct our operations on a worldwide basis and believe that we are the world’s largest independent
lessor of seismic equipment. We believe that our competitors, in general, have neither as extensive a seismic
equipment lease pool as we do, nor similar exclusive lease referral agreements with seismic equipment suppliers. In
recent periods, we have experienced a significant increase in the demand for our equipment. We believe this demand
is pnmarily driven by oil and gas exploration and development activities. Exploration and development activities
are impacted by the price of crude oil and natural gas, worldwide demand for these products, economic activity, the
maturation of certain petroleum producing basins, the cost of exploration activities and geopolitical issues.

Our equipment is utilized in a variety of worldwide geographic regions which are described in Item 1 —
“Business — Customers, Sales, Backlog and Marketing.” We lease seismic equipment worldwide, and, on
occasion, sell new or used seismic equipment through MII in Huntsville, Texas, and through MCL in Calgary,
Alberta. MSE, from its location in Ufa, Bashkortostan, Russia, leases seismic equipment primarily in the Russian
Federation and the Commonwealth of Independent States (“CIS”), which consists of 11 former Soviet Republics.
SAP, from its location in Brisbane, Australia, leases seismic equipment in Australia and other locations within the
Pacific Rim and also sells new seismic, oceanographic and hydrographic equipment throughout the Pacific Rim.
Seamap UK, located in Somerset, United Kingdom and Seamap Singapore, located in Singapore, design,
manufacture and sell marine seismic equipment throughout the world.

We own a variety of technologically advanced equipment acquired from the leading seismic manufacturers.
Our lease pool includes many types of equipment used in seismic data acquisition, including various electronic
components of land, transition zone and marine seismic data acquisition systems, geophones and cables, earth
vibrators, peripheral equipment, survey and other equipment. The majority of our seismic equipment lease pool is
provided by two manufacturers, the Sercel subsidiaries of Compagnie Generale de Geophysigue-Veritas (“Sercel”
and “CGV," respectively) and ION Geophysical Corporation. (“ION"). We believe that the majority of the advanced
seismic data acquisition systems in use worldwide are either Sercel or ION systems. At January 31, 2008,
approximately 51% of our equipment lease pool, on a cost basis, consisted of seismic recording channels and related
equipment, with the remainder consisting of geophones, compressors, energy source controllers and other
peripheral equipment.

We have a supply agreement and exclusive lease referral agreement with Sercel, which we believe provides us
with certain competitive advantages primarily due to preferential pricing and expediied delivery arrangements
under the agreements. Under this agreement, we are the exclusive worldwide short-term leasing representative for
certain products.

We lease our equipment on a short-term basis, generally for three to six months, 10 seismic contractors who
need additional capacity to complete a seismic survey. Short-term leasing agreements enable our customers to
achieve operating and capital investment efficiencies. A typical seismic crew uses a wide variety of equipment to
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perform seismic data acquisition surveys. Our customers may lease a small amount of equipment to expand an
existing crew’s capabilities or a complete seismic data acquisition system to equip an entire crew. Demand for short-
term seismic equipment leases is affected by many factors, including: (i) the highly variable size and technological
demands of individual seismic surveys, (ii) seasonal weather patterns and sporadic demand for seismic surveys in
certain regions, (iii) the term of the lease and (iv) cost of seismic equipment. We believe these factors allow seismic
contractors (o use short-term seismic equipment leasing as a cost-effective alternative to purchasing additional
equipment. Our equipment lease rates vary according to an item’s expected useful life, utilization, acquisition cost
and the term of the lease.

SAP sells equipment, consumables, systems integration, engineering hardware and software maintenance
support services to the seismic, hydrographic, oceanographic, environmental and defense industries throughout
Southeast Asta and Australia. MII and MCL also sell a broad range of used seismic equipment on a worldwide basis.
Seamap designs, manufactures and sells a broad range of proprietary products for the seismic, hydrographic and
offshore industries. Seamap’s primary products include the GunLink seismic source acquisition and conirol
systems, which provide operators of marine seismic surveys more precise control of energy sources, and the
BuoyLink GPS tracking system, which is used to provide precise positioning of seismic sources and streamers.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to meet the needs of the seismic industry by leasing a wide range of equipment and to
provide technologically advanced solutions for marine seismic applications, To accomplish this, we have identified
the following major objectives:

» Provide a technologically advanced seismic equipment lease pool. We intend 1o maintain the size and
diversity of our equipment lease pool, including the addition of marine equipment. We believe that the
availability of a large and diverse seismic equipment lease pool encourages seismic data acquisition
contractors to lease, rather than purchase, such equipment, due to the capital and operating efficiencies
provided by short-term leases.

» Continue to expand international operations.  'We intend 1o expand our international leasing activities in
new geographic areas, including the CIS, Europe, the Middle East and North Africa. We believe there are
significant opportunities to continue to expand our international leasing and sales activities. We believe that
we can conduct business in wide-ranging geographic areas from our existing facilities. However, for legal,
tax or operational reasons, we may decide in the future to establish facilities in additional tocations.

* Maintain alliances with major seismic equipment manufacturers. Our relationships with leading seismic
equipment manufacturers allow us to expand our equipment lease pool on favorable terms. We believe these
relationships provide a competitive advantage.

* Pursue additional business development opportunities. We regularly evaluate opportunities to expand our
business activities within the oil service industry, particularly in the seismic sector. These opportunities
could include the introduction of new products or services or the acquisition of existing businesses,

Seismic Technology and the Qil Service Industry

Seismic surveys are a principal source of information used by oil and gas companies to identify geological
conditions that are favorable for the accumulation of oil and gas and to evaluate the potential for successful drilling,
development and production of oil and gas. Seismic technology has been used by the oil and gas industry since the
1920’s, and has advanced significantly with improvements in computing and electronic technologies. Beginning in
the early 1990’s, the oil and gas industry significantly expanded its use of 3-D seismic data. 3-D seismic data
provides a more comprehensive subsurface image and is believed to have contributed to improved drilling success
rates, particularly in mature oil and gas basins such as those in North America. Additicnally, 2-D seismic data
continues to be used in many areas where 3-D data acquisition is cost prohibitive or logistical access is limited.

Oil and gas exploration companies utilize seismic data generated from the use of digital seismic systems and
peripheral equipment in determining optimal locations for drilling oil and gas wells, in the development of oil and
gas reserves and in reservoir management for the production of oil and gas. A complete digital seismic data
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acquisition system generally consists of (i) a central electronics unit that records and stores digital data (“CEU™),
(ii) seismic recording channel boxes that contain from one to eight seismic channels (“channel boxes™}, (iii) geo-
phones, or seismic sensors, (iv) energy sources including dynamite, air guns or earth vibrators that create the
necessary acoustic wave to be recorded, (v) cables that transmit digital seismic data from the channel boxes 10 the
CEU, (vi) geographic survey equipment, (vii) drilling equipment used in the seismic survey and (viii) other
peripheral, or accessory, equipment.

In seismic data acquisition, an acoustic wave is generated at or below the earth’s surface through the discharge
of compressed air, the detonation of small explosive charges or the use of large mechanical vibrators. As the
acoustic wave travels through the earth, it is partially reflected by the underlying rock layers and the reflected
energy is captured by sensors, such as geophones, which are situated at intervals along paths from the point of
acoustical impulse. The resulting signals are then transmitted to the channel boxes, which convert the signals from
analog to digital data and transmit this data via cable to the CEU. The CEU stores the seismic data on magnetic tape,
disk or other recording media for processing. The digital data is then input into a specialized seismic processing
system that uses sophisticated computer software programs to enhance the recorded signal and produce an image of
the subsurface strata. By interpreting seismic data, oil and gas exploration companies create detailed maps of
exploration prospects and oil and gas reservoirs.

Historically, a 2-D seismic survey had been the standard data acquisition technique used to map geologic
formations over a broad area. 2-D seismic data can be visualized as a single vertical plane of subsurface information.
Data gathered from a 3-D seismic survey is best visualized as a cube of information that can be sliced into numerous
planes, providing different views of a geologic structure with much higher resolution than is available with
traditional 2-D seismic survey techniques. 3-D seismic surveys generally require a larger amount of equipment than
2-D surveys. By using a greater number of channels and flexible configuration, 3-D seismic data provides more
extensive and detailed information regarding the subsurface geology than 2-D data. As a result, 3-D data allows the
geophysicists interpreting the data to more closely select the optimal location of a prospective drill site or define an
oil and gas reservoir.

In the exploration and development process, oil and gas companies establish requirements for seismic data
acquisition programs based on their technical objectives. Because of the expense associated with drilling oil and gas
wells, decisions regarding whether or where 1o drill are critical to the overall process. Since 3-D seismic data
increases drilling success rates and reduce costs, we believe that 3-D) seismic surveys are now predominant. As a
result of the increasing requirements for this higher resolution data, which in turn requires additional channels to
collect and transmit the data, seismic data acquisition systems have been expanding in size during the past several
years.

Industry advances include the use of high resolution 3-D, three-component geophones {3D-3C"), which
enhance the 3-D image of the sub-surface, and time lapse (*4-D”) seismic techniques, where surveys are
periadically reacquired to allow the menitoring of producing oil and gas fields for optimal production and reserve
recovery, These and other technical advances have contributed to increased drilling success rates and reduced oil
and gas finding costs.

With the expanded use of seismic technology, particularly 3-D seismic surveys, the size of data acquisition
surveys has increased substantially in the past several years. Demand for higher resolution data, larger surveys and
more rapid completion of such surveys is now requiring seismic contractors to use data acquisition systems with a
greater number of seismic recording channels. Additionally, the size of seismic surveys varies significantly,
requiring frequent changes in the configuration of equipment and crews used for seismic surveys. As a result of
these advances, seismic survey channel count has increased from smaller 2-D surveys, which typically averaged
120 channels, to larger 3-D surveys, which today average more than 5,000 channels and sometimes use 10,000 or
more channels, We believe that many seismic contractors will continue to meet changes in equipment needs by
leasing incremental equipment to expand crew size as necessary, thereby reducing the substantial capital expen-
ditures required to purchase such equipment.

Seismic surveys utilizing 2-D, 3-D or 4-D techniques require essentially the same equipment. The manner in
which the equipment is deployed and the resulting data analyzed differs, however. Accordingly, our equipment can
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generally be utilized in 2-D, 3-D and 4-D seismic surveys. Since 3-D and 4-D seismic surveys generally utilize
significantly more equipment than 2-D seismic surveys, the potential to lease our seismic equipment is increased.

Business and Operations

Equipment Leasing. 'We own a comprehensive lease pool of seismic equipment for short-term leasing to our
customers, who are primarily seismic data acquisition contractors. We iease this equipment multiple times until the
end of its useful life or its sale. Our equipment leasing services generally include the lease of the various
components of seismic data acquisition systems and related equipment to meet a customer’s job specifications.
These specifications frequently vary as to the number of required recording channels, geophones, energy sources
(e.g., earth vibrators) and other equipment. Our customers generally lease seismic equipment to supplement their
own inventory of recording channels and related equipment.

QOur land equipment lease pool includes a total of approximately 76,000 seismic recording land channels (each
channel capable of electronically converting seismic data from analog to digital format and transmitting the digital
data), geophones and cables, and other peripheral equipment. Our lease pool of marine seismic equipment includes
streamers {recording channels that are towed behind a vessel), air compressors, air guns, streamer positioning
equipment, energy source controllers and other equipment. Our lease pool equipment is manufactured by leading
seismic equipment manufacturers and is widely used in the seismic industry. Our marine lease pool includes energy
source conirollers and GPS tracking systems that are manufactured by our Seamap segment.

Qur equipment leases generally have terms of three to six months and are typically renewable on a month-to-
month basis. Qur equipment lease rates vary according to an item’s expected useful life, utilization, initial cost and
the term of the lease. We provide maintenance of our leased equipment during the lease term for malfunctions due to
failure of material and parts and will provide replacement equipment, as necessary. In addition, we provide field
technical support services when requested by our customers. The customer is responsible for the cost of repairing
equipment damages other than normal wear and tear and replacing destroyed or lost equipment under the terms of
our standard lease agreements. The customer is also normally respensible for the costs of shipping the equipment
from and to one of our facilities and is responsible for all taxes, other than income taxes, related to the lease of the
equipment. The customer is required to obtain and maintain insurance for the replacement value of the equipment
and a specified minimum amount of general liability insurance. While it is our general practice to lease our seismic
equipment on a monthly basis, we may from time to time lease some equipment on a day rate usage basis in
response (o market conditions.

Seismic equipment leasing is susceptible to weather parterns in certain geographic regions. In Canada and
Russia, a significant percentage of the seismic survey activity occurs in the winter months, from December through
March or April. During the months in which the weather is warmer, certain areas are not accessible to trucks, earth
vibrators and other heavy equipment because of the unstable terrain. In other areas of the world, such as Southeast
Asia and Pacific Rim, periods of heavy rain, known as monsoons, can impair seismic operations. We are able, in
many cases, to transfer our equipment from one region to another in order to deal with seasonal demand and to
increase our equipment utilization.

Upon completion of a lease, the equipment must generally be returned to one of our facilities for inspection,
testing and, if necessary, repair. While the customer is normally responsible for the costs of shipping and repairs,
during this time the equipment is not available for lease to another customer. Therefore, managing this process and
the utilization of the equipment is an important aspect of our operations. Given the short term of most of our leases,
we believe that the highest achievable annual utilization for most of our equipment is approximately 65%. However,
many factors can affect this utilization, including the term of our leases, the shipping time required to return
equipment to one of our facilities, the time required to inspect, test and repair equipment after return from a lease
and the demand for the equipment.

Historically, the majority of the inspection, testing and repair has been done in our Huntsville, Texas or
Calgary, Alberta facilities. In fiscal 2008 we added inspection and testing capabilities to our facility in Ufa,
Bashkortostan, Russia and inspection, testing and limited repair capabilities to our facility in Singapore. We believe
that by expanding these capabilities we will be able to more effectively utilize our equipment and reduce costs
associated with these operations. The incremental cost for the additional facilities was not material.
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Lease Pool Equipment Sales.  On occasion, we sell used equipment from our lease pool, normally in response
to specific customer demand or to declining demand for rental of specific equipment. Used equipment sold from our
lease pool can have a wide range of gross margin depending upon the amount of depreciation that has been recorded
on the item. When used equipment is sold from our lease pool, the net book value plus any cost associated with the
sale is recorded to cost of goods sold. Sales of our lease pool equipment typically occur as opportunities arise and do
not have a significant seasonal aspect, We generally expect sales of lease pool equipment in future periods to be a
smaller component of our business than they have been in the past. However, we will evaluate any opportunities for
the sale of equipment from our lease pool, and based upon our evaluation, may sell additional equipment. Such sales
of lease pool equipment could be material.

Other Equipment Sales. The “Other equipment sales” included in our Equipment Leasing segment fall into
two broad categories:

* Sales of new seismic equipment.  On occasion, we will sell new seismic equipment in response to a specific
demand from a customer. These sales are made in cooperation with our suppliers of lease pool equipment.

*» Sules of hydrographic and oceanographic equipment.  SAP sells equipment, consumables, systems inte-
gration, engineering hardware and software maintenance support services to the seismic, hydrographic,
oceanographic, environmentat and defense industries throughout Southeast Asia and Australia. SAP is a
manufacturer’s representative for an array of equipment lines.

Seamap Equipment Sales.  Seamap designs, manufactures and sells a broad range of proprietary products for
the seismic, hydrographic and offshore industries. Seamap’s primary products include (i) the GunLink seismic
source acquisition and control systems, which are designed to provide operaiors of marine seismic surveys more
precise control of energy sources, and (ii) the BuoyLink GPS tracking system used to provide precise positioning of
seismic sources and streamers. Seamap’s design and manufacturing facilities are located in the United Kingdom and
in Singapore.

Key Supplier Agreements
The Sercel Lease Agreement

In September 2006 we entered into a new Exclusive Equipment Lease Agreement with Sercel under which we
are generally the exclusive worldwide authorized lessor for Sercel's DSU3 428XL products (the “Exclusive
Products™), except that we have agreed not to lease the Exclusive Products for use in mainland China and we have
non-exclusive rights to lease the Exclusive Products in the CIS. The geographic area covering the exclusive
arrangement is referred to as the “Exclusive Territory.”

Under the agreement, we have also agreed not to offer financing leases or leases with terms greater than one
year related to the Exclusive Products without Sercel’s prior consent. Sercel has agreed to refer any inguires for
short-term rentals of the Exclusive Products for use within the Exclusive Territory to us and to not recommend any
competitor of ours as a source of such rentals. Sercel and we have agreed to cooperate in the promotion and
marketing of the Exclusive Products.

The agreement provides that Serce! will grant us specified pricing for the purchase of the Exclusive Products
and certain other products. In return, we agreed to purchase a total of 9,000 stations, or 27,000 channels, of the
Exclusive Products by December 31, 2008. However, the agreement allows us to purchase other equipment with a
comparable value from Sercel in order to satisfy our purchase obligation. We have met our purchase obligations
under this agreement.

Other Agreements

SAP has a number of manufacturer’s representation agreements for major product lines, including: acoustic
positioning systems, data acquisition systems, geophones, hydrophones, connectors, cables, test equipment, GPS
systems, heave compensators and attitude sensors, hydrographic data acquisition systems, magnetometers, tide
gauges and current meters, radio positioning equipment, side-scan sonar and sub-bottom profiling systems,
underwater communications and location devices, echo sounders and transducers.
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Certain software utilized by Seamap’s GunLink products was developed by Tanglesolve Instrumentation, Lid.
(“Tanglesolve™) under a cooperation agreement with Seamap. Under this agreement, Tanglesolve received a royalty
payment from the sale of each GunLink product. In December 2007 Seamap acquired all of the capital stock of
Tanglesolve. At the time, essentially Tanglesolve’s only assets were the cooperation agreement and the intellectual
property related to the GunLink software. In connection with this transaction Seamap entered into a new
cooperation agreement with the former shareholders of Tanglesolve whereby they provide certain on-going
support services.

Customers, Sales, Backlog and Marketing

Qur lease customers generally are seismic data acquisition contractors. We typically have a small number of
lease customers, the composition of which changes yearly as leases are negotiated and concluded and equipment
needs vary. As of January 31, 2008, we had approximately 55 Jease customers with 87 active leases of various
lengths, but typically for less than a year.

We do not maintain a backlog of orders relating to our Equipment Leasing segment. As of January 31, 2008,
our Seamap segment had a backlog of orders amounting to approximately $4.1 million. We expect all of these
orders to be fulfilled during our fiscal year ending January 31, 2009.

We participate in both domestic and international trade shows and expositions to inform the industry of our
products and services and we advertise in major geophysical trade journals.

A summary of our revenues from customers by geographic region, outside the US,, is as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006

UK/EUTOPE . o vttt e e e e e e e e e $27.892 $ 9318 3 2355
Canada . .. e e e 6,820 8,302 8,914
South AMEIICA . ..ottt it e e e e 4,153 3,050 3,220
AsiafSouth Pacific . . ... ... ... ... ... . e 9.431 9,713 10,479
Burasia(l) .. ... e 10,180 4,998 —
Other ) . e e e 4119 1,940 233

Totals . . e $62,595 $37,321  $25,201

(1) Comprised of Eastern Evrope, the Russian Federation and the CIS
(2) Includes Africa and the Middle East

The net book value of our fixed assets in our various geographic locations is as follows (in thousands):
As of Januvary 31,

Location of Property and Equipment: 2008 2007 2006
United SIS . . . . . .o e e e e $19,602 $12,969 $11,649
Canada . . ... e e e 27,108 18,062 5,883
Australia . . ... ... e 1,861 1,057 2,167
RUSSIA. . ot et et e e e 3,399 1,965 —
SIngaPOTE . . it 634 623 97
United Kingdom . ... ... ... . .. o i 575 756 128
Total ..o e e e $53,179  $35432 $19,924

For information regarding the risks associated with our foreign operations, see Item 1A — “Risk Factors.”

For fiscal 2008, we had one customer, CGV, which represented approximately 21% of our consolidated
revenues, CGV was created from the merger of Compagnie Generale de Geophysique (“CGG”) and Veritas DGC,
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Inc. (“Veritas™), which was effective from January 12, 2007. Both CGG and Veritas were our customers prior to the
merger. Had CGV been in existence for all of our fiscal year ended January 31, 2007, sales to that entity would have
represented approximately 14% of our total consolidated revenues. Neither CGG nor Veritas individually accounted
for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues in fiscal 2007. Veritas represented approximately 10% of fiscal
2006 total revenues. No other customer exceeded 10% of revenues for fiscal 2006.

Competition

Our major competitors are the major seismic equipment manufacturers who sell equipment on financed terms.
We face lesser competition from several companies that engage in seismic equipment leasing, but competition has
historically been fragmented and our competitors have not had as extensive a seismic equipment lease pool as we
do. We compete for seismic equipment leases on the basis of (i} price and delivery, (ii) variety and availability of
both peripheral seismic equipment and complete data acquisition systems and (iii) length of lease term. We believe
that our infrastructure and broad geographic presence also provide a major competitive advantage by contributing to
our operational efficiencies.

We compete in the used equipment sales market with a broad base of seismic equipment owners, including
seismic data acquisition contractors, which use and eventually dispose of seismic equipment, many of which have
substantially greater financial resources than our own,

Suppliers

We have several suppliers of seismic equipment for our lease pool. We acquire the majority of our seismic lease
pool equipment from, Sercel, a subsidiary of CGV. However, we also acquire lease pool equipment from a number
of other suppliers including ION, Bauer Compressors, Inc. and OYO Geospace Corporation. Management believes
that our current relationships with our suppliers are satisfactory. For additional information regarding the risk
associated with our suppliers, see Item |A “Risk Factors”

Employees

As of January 31, 2008, we employed 126 people full-time, none of whom is covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. We consider our employee relations to be satisfactory.

Intellectual Property

The products designed, manufactured and sold by our Seamap segment utilize significant intellectual property
that we have developed or have licensed from others. Our internally developed intellectual property consists of
product designs and trade secrets. We currently have no patents covering any of this intellectual property. For
additional information regarding the risks associated with our intellectual property, see Item 1A — “Risk Factors.”

Website Access to Qur Periodic SEC Reports

Our internet address is http://www.mitchamindustries.com. We file and fummish Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports, with the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), which are available free of charge through our website.
Materials we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an internet website at http://www.sec.gov that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding our company that we file and furnish
electronically with the SEC.

We may from time to time provide important disclosures to investors by posting them in the investor relations
section of our websilte, as allowed by SEC rules. Information on our website is not incorporated into this Form 10-K.

8




Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations and the actual outcome of matters as to which forward-looking statements are made in this Form 10-K.
The risk factors described below are not the only ones we face. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations may also be affected by additional factors that are not currently known to us or that we currently consider
immaterial or that are not specific to us, such as general economic conditions.

You should refer to the explanation of the gualifications and imitations on forward-looking statements on
page 1 of this Form 10-K. All forward-looking statements made by us are qualified by the risk factors described
below.

Demand for Seismic Data Is Not Assured

Demand for our services depends on the level of spending by oil and gas companies for exploration, production
and development activities, as well as on the number of crews conducting land, transition zone and marine seismic
data acquisition worldwide. The levels of such spending are influenced by:

« oil and gas prices and industry expectations of future price levels;
« the cost of exploring for, producing and delivering oil and gas;

¢ the availability of current geophysical data;

« the discovery rate of new oil and gas reserves; and

* local and international political and economic conditions.

The cyclical nature of the oil and gas industry can have a significant effect on our revenues and profitability.
Historically, oil and gas prices, as well as the level of exploration and developmental activity, have fluctuated
significantly. These fluctuations have in the past, and may in the future, adversely affect our business. We are unable
to predict future oil and gas prices or the level of oil and gas industry activity. A prolonged low level of activity in the
oil and gas industry will likely depress development activity, adversely affecting the demand for our products and
services and our financial condition and results of operations.

Loss of Significant Customers Will Adversely Affect Us

We typically lease and sell significant amounts of seismic equipment to a relatively small number of
customers, the composition of which changes from year to year as leases are initiated and concluded and as
customers’ equipment needs vary. Therefore, at any one time, a large portion of our revenues may be derived from a
limited number of customers. In the fiscal years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, our single largest customer
accounted for approximately 21%, 14% and 10%, respectively, of our consolidated revenues. Our five Jargest
customers accounted for approximately 46% of our consolidated revenues in the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008.
There has recently been considerable consolidation among certain of our customers and this trend may continue.
This consolidation could result in the loss of our customers and could result in a decrease in the demand for our
equipment.

Significant Defaults of Past-Due Customer Accounts Would Adversely Affect Our Results of Operations

On January 31, 2008, we had approximately $19.7 million of customer accounts and contracts receivable, of
which approximately $4.9 million was over 90 days past due. At January 31, 2008, we had an allowance of
approximately $1.5 million to cover losses in our receivable balances. Significant payment defaults by our
customers in excess of the allowance would have a material adverse effect on our financial position: and results of
operations.

We Derive Significant Revenues from Foreign Sales, Which Pose Additional Risks to Our Operations

Our results of operations are dependent upon the current political and economic climate of several countries in
which our customers either operate or are located. International sources of revenues (including Canada) accounted
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for approximately 82% of our revenues in the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008. Accordingly, our business and
results of operations are subject to various risks inherent in international operations, These risks include, but are not
limited to, the following:

« instability of foreign economies, governments and government-owned oil and gas companies;
* risks of war, political unrest or seizure of assets;

» foreign exchange restrictions, laws and other policies affecting trade and investment; and

¢ the difficulty and cost of enforcing contracts.

In addition, many of our operations are conducted in currencies other than U.S. dollars. Those currencies
include the Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar, the Singapore dollar, the Russian ruble and the British pound
sterling. Therefore, we are subject to risks from fluctuations in the value of those currencies. Our internationally-
sourced revenues are also subject to the risk of currency exchange controls (in which payment could not be made in
U.S. doltars), taxation policies, and expropriation, as well as to political turmoil, civil disturbances, armed
hostilities, and other geopolitical hazards.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates Have Increasingly Materially Affected Our Financial Statements

For accounting purposes, balance sheet accounts of our operating subsidiaries are translated at the current
exchange rate as of the end of the accounting period. Statement of operations items are translated at average
currency exchange rates. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a separate component of compre-
hensive income within shareholders’ equity. This translation adjustment has in the past been, and may in the future
be, material because of the significant amount of assets held by our international subsidiaries and the fluctuations in
the foreign exchange rates.

Our Operations and Financial Condition Will Be Materially Adversely Affected if We Are Unable to Con-
tinually Obtain Additional Lease Contracts

Our seismic equipment leases typically have a term of three to six months and provide gross revenues that
recover only a portion of our capital investment on the initial lease. Our ability to generate lease revenues and profits
1s dependent on obtaining additional lease contracts after the termination of an original lease. However, lease
customers are under no obligation 1o, and frequently do not, continue to lease seismic equipment after the expiration
of a lease. Although we have been successful in obtaining additional lease contracis with other customers after the
termination of the original leases, we cannot assure you that we will continue to do so. Qur failure to obtain
additional leases or extensions beyond the initial lease term would have a material adverse effect on our operations
and financial condition.

Our Failure to Attract and Retain Key Personnel Could Adversely Affect Our Operations

Our success is dependent on, among other things, the services of certain key personnel, including specifically
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr., our President and Chief Executive Officer. The loss of the services of Mr. Mitcham or other
personnel could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Our Seismic Lease Pool is Subject to Technological Obsolescence

We have a substantial capital investment in seismic data acquisition equipment. The development by
manufacturers of seismic equipment of newer technology systems or component parts that have significant
competitive advantages over seismic systems and component parts now in use could have an adverse effect on our
ability to profitably lease and sell our existing seismic equipment. Significant improvements in technology may also
require us to recognize an asset impairment charge to our lease pool investment and to correspondingly invest
significant sums to upgrade or replace our existing lease pool with newer-technology equipment demanded by our
customers, which could affect our ability to compete as well as have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition,
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Seasonal Conditions Cause Fluctuations in Our Operating Results

The first and fourth quarters of our fiscal year have historically accounted for a greater portion of our lease
revenues than do our second and third quarters. This seasonality in leasing revenues is primarily due to the increased
seismic survey activity in Canada and Russia from January through March or April. This seasonal pattern may cause
our results of operations to vary significantly from quarter to quarter. Accordingly, period-to-period comparisons
are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied on as indicative of future results.

We Face Competition in Our Seismic Equipment Leasing Activities

We have several competitors engaged in seismic equipment leasing and sales, including seismic equipment
manufacturers and data acquisition contractors that use seismic equipment, many of which have substantially
greater financial resources than our own. Competition exists 1o a lesser extent from seismic data acquisition
contractors that may lease equipment that is temporarily idle. There are also several smaller competitors that, in the
aggregate, generate significant revenues from the sile of seismic survey equipment. Pressures from existing or new
competitors could adversely affect our business operations.

We Rely on a Small Number of Suppliers and Disruption in Vendor Supplies Could Adversely Affect Our
Results of Operations

We purchase the majority of our seismic equipment for our lease pool from a small number of suppliers.
Should our relationships with our suppliers deteriorate, we may have difficulty in obtaining new technology
required by our customers and maintaining our existing equipment in accordance with manufacturers’ specifica-
tions. In addition, we may, from time to time, experience supply or quality control problems with suppliers, and
these problems could significantly affect our ability to meet our lease commitments. Reltance on certain suppliers,
as well as industry supply conditions, generally involve several risks, including the possibility of a shortage or a lack
of availability of key products and increases in product costs and reduced control over delivery schedules; any of
these events could adversely affect our future results of operations.

The Operations of Seamap are Subject to Special Risks

The design and manufacturing operations of our Seamap segment are subject to risks not associated with our
equipment leasing business. These risks include the following:

Risks Associated with Intellectual Property. We rely on a combination of copyright, trademark and trade
secret laws, and restrictions on disclosure to protect our intellectual property. We also enter into confidentiality or
license agreements with our employees, consultants and corporate partners and control access to and distribution of
our design information, documentation and other proprietary information. These intellectual property protection
measures may not be sufficient to prevent wrongful misappropriation of our technology. In addition, these measures
will not prevent competitors from independenily developing technologies that are substantially equivalent or
superior to our technology. The laws of many foreign countries may not protect intellectual property rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States. Failure to protect proprietary information could result in, among other
things, loss of competitive advantage, loss of customer orders and decreased revenues. Monitoring the unauthorized
use of our products is difficult and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent unauthorized use of
our technology, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in
the United States. If competitors are able to use our technology, our ability to compete effectively could be impaired.

We may be subject to infringement claims and other intellectual property disputes as competition in the
marketplace continues to intensify. In the future, we may be subject to litigation and may be required to defend
against claimed infringements of the rights of others or to determine the scope and validity of the proprietary rights
of others. Any such litigation could be costly and divert management’s attention from operations. In addition,
adverse determinations in such litigation could, among other things:

= result in the loss of our proprietary rights to use the technology;

= subject us to significant liabilities;




* require us to seek licenses from third parties;
* require us to redesign the products that use the technology; or
* prevent manufacturing or sale of our products that incorporate the technology.

If we are forced to take any of the foregoing actions, our business may be seriously harmed. Any litigation to
protect our intellectual property or to defend ourselves against the claims of others could result in substantial costs
and diversion of resources and may not vltimately be successful.

Risks Related to Product Performance. The production of new products with high technology content
involves occasional problems while the technology and manufacturing methods mature, If significant reliability or
quality problems develop, including those due to faulty components, a number of negative etfects on our business
could result, including:

* costs associated with reworking the manufacturing processes;
+ high service and warranty expenses;

* high inventory obsolescence expense;

* high levels of product returns;

* delays in collecting accounts receivable;

+ reduced orders from existing customers; and

» declining interest from potential customers.

Although we maintain accruals for product warranties, actual costs could exceed these amounts. From time to
time, there may be interruptions or delays in the activation of products at a customer’s site. These interruptions or
delays may result from product performance problems or from aspects of the installation and activation activities,
some of which are outside our control. If we experience significant interruptions or delays that cannot be promptly
resolved, confidence in our products could be undermined, which could have a material adverse effect on our
operations.

Risks Related to Raw Materials. We depend on a limited number of suppliers for components of our
products, as well as for equipment used to design and test our products. Certain compenents used in our products
may be available from a sole source or limited number of vendors. If these suppliers were to limit or reduce the sale
of such components to us, or if these suppliers were to experience financial difficulties or other problems that
prevented them from supplying us with the necessary components, these events coutd have a material adverse effect
on our business, finrancial condition and results of operations. These sole source and other suppliers are ¢ach subject
to quality and performance issues, materials shortages, excess demand, reduction in capacity and other factors that
may disrupt the flow of goods to us; thereby adversely affecting our business and customer relationships. Some of
the sole source and limited source vendors are companies who, from time to time, may allocate parts to equipment
manufacturers due to market demand for components and equipment. We have no guaranteed supply arrangements
with our suppliers and there can be no assurance that our suppliers will continue to meet our requirements. Many of
our competitors are much larger and may be able to obtain priority allocations from these shared vendors, thereby
limiting or making our sources of supply unreliable for these components. If our supply arrangements are
interrupted, we cannot assure you that we would be able (o find another supplier on a timely or satisfactory
basis. Any delay in component availability for any of our products could result in delays in deployment of these
products and in our ability to recognize revenues.

If we are unable to obtain a sufficient supply of components from alternative sources, reduced supplies and
higher prices of components will significantly limit our ability to meet scheduled product deliveries to customers. A
delay in receiving certain components or the inability to receive certain components could harm our customer
relationships and our results of operations.

Failures of components affect the reliability and performance of our products, can reduce customer confidence
in our products, and may adversely affect our financial performance. From time to time, we may experience delays
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in receipt of components and may receive components that do not perform according to their specifications. Any
future difficulty in obtaining sufficient and timely delivery of components could result in delays or reductions in
product shipments that could harm our business. In addition, a consolidation among suppliers of these components
or adverse developments in their businesses that affect their ability to meet our supply demands could adversely
impact the availability of components that we depend on. Delayed deliveries from these sources could adversely
affect our business.

Qur Stock Price is Subject to Volatility

Energy and energy service company stock prices, including our stock price, have been extremely volatile from
time to time. Stock price volatility could adversely affect our business operations by, among other things, impeding
our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel and to obtain additional financing.

Recent Growth Many Not Be Sustainable

In recent periods we have experienced significant growth in revenues, driven in large part be generally
favorable economic conditions within the oil and gas industry in general and within the seismic services industry
specifically. This growth may not be sustainable and, accordingly, our recent growth may not be indicative of future
results of operations.

Because We Have No Plans to Pay Any Dividends for the Foreseeable Future, Investors Must Look Solely
to Stock Appreciation for a Return on Their Investment in Us

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock since our incorporation and do not anticipate paying
any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support our
operations and growth. Any payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent on the amount of funds
legally available, our financial condition, capital requirements and other factors that our Board of directors may
deem relevant. Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may
never occur, as the only way (o realize any future gains on their investment.

Provisions in Our Articles of Incorporation and Texas Law Could Discourage a Takeover Attempt, Which
May Reduce or Eliminate the Likelihood of a Change of Control Transaction and, Therefore, the Ability
of Our Shareholders to Sell Their Shares for a Premium

Provisions of our Articles of Incorporation and the Texas Business Corporation Act may tend to delay, defer or
prevent a potential unsolicited offer or takeover attempt that is not approved by our Board of Directors but that our
shareholders might consider to be in their best interest, including an attempt that might result in shareholders
receiving a premivm over the market price for their shares. Because our Board of Directors is authorized to issue
preferred stock with preferences and rights as it determines, it may afford the holders of any series of preferred stock
preferences, rights or voting powers superior to those of the holders of common stock. Although we have no shares
of preferred stock outstanding and no present intention to issue any shares of our preferred stock, there can be no
assurance that we will not do so in the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
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Item 2. Properties

We occupy the following facilities that we believe are adequately utilized for our current operations:

Lacation Type of Facility

Huntsville, Texas Office and warehouse
Calgary, Alberta, Canada Office and warehouse
Salisbury, Australia Office and warehouse
Singapore Office and warehouse
Shepton Mallet, United Kingdom Office and warehouse
Ufa, Bashkortostan, Russia Office and warehouse

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Size (In Square Feet)

QOwned or Leased

25,000 (on six acres)
33,500
4,400
20,000
12,300
6,000

Owned
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased
Leased

From time to time, we are a party to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We are not

currently a party to any litigation that we believe could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or

financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information for Common Stock

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “MIND.” The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market.

_High _Low

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2008:
FIrst QUAMET . . . v e v e e e e e e e e e e e e e $16.43  $12.75
Second QUarter . . ...t e e e 20,64 14.00
Third QUarter . ... ... e e 21.98 15.30
Fourth Quarter ... ... . ... i e e 21.92 15.76

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2007:
FIrst QUATTEr . & o v e ot et et e e e e $2595 $14.62
Second QUANET . . ... .ot e e e 17.66 10.60
Third QUArEr . . . .o e e e e 13.94 9.58
Fourth Quarter . .. ... ... e 14.99 10.78

As of April 2, 2008, there were approximately 6,000 holders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not paid any cash dividends on the common stock since our inception, and our Board of Directors does
not contemplate the payment of cash dividends in the foreseeable future. It is the present policy of our Board of
Directors to retain earnings, if any, for use in developing and expanding our business. In the future, our payment of
dividends will also depend on the amount of funds available, our financial condition, capital requirements and such
other factors as our Board of Directors may consider.

As of January 31, 2008, we had deposits in foreign banks equal to approximately $7.7 million. These funds
may generally be transferred to our accounts in the United States without restriction. However, the transfer of these
funds may result in withholding taxes payable to foreign taxing authorities. Any such transfer taxes generally may
be credited against our federal income tax obligations in the United States. Additionally, the transfer of funds from
our foreign subsidiaries to the United States may result in currently taxable income in the United States. These
factors could limit our ability to pay cash dividends in the future.




Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or
subject to Section 18 of the Exchange Act, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any of our filings
under the Securities Act of 1933,

The following graph compares our common stock’s cumulative total shareholder return for the period
beginning January 31, 2003 through January 31, 2008, to the cumulative total shareholder return on (i) the
S&P’s Smallcap 600 stock index and (ii) an index of peer companies we selected. The cumulative total return
assumes that the value of an investment in our common stock and each index was $100 on January 31, 2003, and that
all dividends were reinvested.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN#*
Among Mitcham Industries, Inc., The S&P Smallcap 600 Index
And A Peer Group
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* $100 invested on 1/31/03 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending January 31.

Copyright © 2008, Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. All rights reserved.
www.researchdatagroup.com/S&P.htm

1731403 1/31/04 131405 1131706 13107 V31108
Mitcham Industries, Inc. $100.0 $259.03 | $429.17 | $1773.61 | $936.81 | $1166.67
S&P Smallcap 600 100.0 147.86 172.29 205.71 223.02 207.21
Peer Company Index 100.0 221.14 322.14 528.11 815.33 921.32

The peer companies index consists of: Compagnie Generale de Geophysique-Veritas (NYSE: GGV), Dawson
Geophysical Company (NASDAQ: DWSN), lon Geophysical Corp. (NYSE: I0) and Omni Energy Services Corp.
(NASDAQ: OMNI).

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

We did not purchase any of our equity securities during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended January 31,
2008.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial information contained below is derived from our Consolidated Financial
Statements and should be read in conjunction with Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Anatysis of Financial
Condition and Resulis of Operations” and our audited consolidated financial statements including the footnotes thereto.

Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
{Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

Total revenues . . ........ ...t $ 76,421 348910 $34,5890 $26,368  $22,406
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . ..., .., 11,439 9,285 10,855 2,049 (3,574)
Income (loss) from continuing operations per

common share —basic. . ................... 1.18 0.97 1.19 0.23 {0.41)
Income (loss) from continuing operations per

common share —diluted .. ................. 1.11 093 1.10 0.22 0.41)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and short-term investments ............... 13,884 12,582 18,988 13,138 6,834
Seismic equipment lease pool and property and

equipment, net. . ... ..... ...t 53,179 35,432 19,924 19,725 25,359
Total assets . ... ... . . e 103,901 83,302 57,620 41,395 40,730
Long-termdebt ...... .. .. ... ... ... .. ...... — 1,500 3.000 — 2,418
Total liabilities. . .. ......... ... ... ... ...... 28,133 23,796 10,169 7,518 9,933
Total shareholders’ equity. . ........ ...t uunn 75,768 59,506 47.451 33,877 30,797

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We operate in two segments, equipment leasing and equipment manufacturing. The equipment manufacturing
segment is conducted by our Seamap subsidiaries and therefore is referred to as our “Seamap” segment, Our equipment
leasing operations are conducted from our Huntsville, Texas headquarters and from cur locations in Calgary, Canada;
Brisbane, Australia; and Ufa, Russia. This includes the operations of our MCL, SAP and MSE subsidiaries, We acquired
Seamap in July 2005. Seamap operates from its locations near Bristol, United Kingdom and in Singapore.

Manag‘é'mem believes that the performance of our Equipment Leasing segment is indicated by revenues from
equipment leasing and by the level of our investment in lease pool equipment. Management further believes that the
performance of our Seamap segment is indicated by revenues from equipment sales and by gross profit from those
sales. Management menitors EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, both as defined in the following table, as key
indicators of our overall performance.
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The following table presents certain operating information by operating segment:

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Revenues:
Equipment Leasing . . ... ... it $51,701  $37,683  $30,569
SEAMAP . .. 25,383 12,274 4,020
Less inter-segment sales . . . .. ... ..ottt e (663) (1,047 —
Total FEVENUES . ...ttt e e e e e 76,421 48,910 34,589
Cost of sales:
Equipment Leasing .. ... ... it i e 23,830 17,531 15,129
SeamaAD . . .. e e e 17,381 8,927 1,735
Less inter-Segment COSIS . . . . . .\t v it oo e e (596) {(631) —
Total direct COSIS. . . ... ... i e 40,615 25,827 16,864
Gross profit
Equipment Leasing .. ... ... ... e 27,871 20,152 15,440
AP . . .t e e 8,002 3,347 2,285
Less Inter-segment amounts .. ...... ... iuittteniune .. 67) (416) —_
Total gross profit ... ... .. .. e 35,806 23,083 17,725
Operating expenses:
General and administrative . . ... oot e e e 17,425 14,970 9,437
Provision for doubtful accounts . ........ ... .. .. . i 460 251 188
Depreciation and amortization ... ... ......... ... . i 1,476 1,307 648
Total operating EXpenses . . . .. ...ttt 19,361 16,528 10,273
Operating income. . . . ... ... ... .. . it $led4d45 3 6555 § 7452
EBI DA (L) . ... e e e e e $28,327  $15,540 517,044
Adjusted EBITDA(L) .. ... ittt e e $30,580 $17,185 $17,197
Reconciliation of Net Income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA
L [ AT T3 11T $11,439 $ 9,285 $10,855
Interest income, Met . . .. .. .. ... ... e e (479) (836) (422)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment . ... ...................... 11,879 8,919 9,575
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes . .......... ... i, 5,488 (1,828) (2,964)
EBI DAL .o e e e e e e e 28,327 15,540 17,044
Stock-based compensation . ....... .. . e 2,253 1,645 153
Adjusted EBITDA(L) . . .. .. it e e e e et $30,580 $17,185 §17,197

(1) EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before (i) interest income, net of interest expense, {ii) provision for (or
benefit from) income taxes and (iii) depreciation, amortization and impairment. Adjusted EBITDA excludes
stock-based compensation. We consider EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to be important indicators for the
performance of our business, but not measures of performance calculated in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). We have included these non-GAAP
financial measures because they provide management with important information for assessing our perfor-
mance and as indicators of our ability to make capital expenditures and finance working capital requirements.
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not measures of financial performance under GAAP and should not be
considered in isolation or as alternatives to cash flow from operating activities or as alternatives to net income as
indicators of operating performance or any other measures of performance derived in accordance with GAAP.
Other companies in our industry may calculate EBITDA or Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do and
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable with similarly titled measures reported by other
companies.
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In our Equipment Leasing segment, we lease seismic data acquisition equipment primarily to seismic data
acquisition companies conducting land, transition zone and marine seismic surveys worldwide. We provide short-
term leasing of seismic equipment to meet a customer’s requirements. The majority of all active leases at January 31,
2008 were for a term of less than one year. Seismic equipment held for lease is carried at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation. We acquire some marine lease pool equipment from our Seamap segment. These amounts are carried
in our lease pool at the cost to our Seamap segment, less accumulated depreciation. From time to time, we sell lease
pool equipment to our customers. These sales are usually transacted when we have equipment for which we do not
have near term needs in our leasing business. We also occasionally sell new seismic equipment that we acquire from
other manufacturers. In addition to leasing seismic equipment, SAP sells equipment, consumables, systems
integration, engineering hardware and software maintenance support services to the seismic, hydrographic,
oceanographic, environmental and defense industries throughout Southeast Asia and Australia.

Our Seamap segment designs, manufactures and selis a variety of products used primarily in marine seismic
applications. Seamap’s primary products include the (i) GunLink seismic source acquisition and control systems,
which provide marine operators more precise control of exploration tools, and (ii) the BuoyLink GPS tracking
systemn used to provide precise positioning of seismic sources and streamers (marine recording channels that are
towed behind a vessel).

Seismic equipment leasing is susceptible to weather patterns in certain geographic regions. In Canada and
Russia, a significant percentage of the seismic survey activity occurs in the winter months, from December through
March or April. During the months in which the weather is warmer, certain areas are not accessible to trucks, earth
vibrators and other heavy equipment because of the unstable terrain. In other areas of the world, such as Southeast
Asia and Pacific Rim, periods of heavy rain, known as monsoons, can impair seismic operations. We are able, in
many cases, to transfer our equipment from one region to another in order to deal with seasonal demand and to
increase our equipment utilization.

The oil and gas exploration industry has enjoyed generally sustained growth in recent periods, fueled primarily
by historically high commodity prices for oil and natural gas. We, along with much of the seismic industry, have
benefited from this growth, Our revenues are directly retated to the level of worldwide oil and gas exploration
activities and to the profitability and cash flows of ¢il and gas companies and setsmic contractors, which in turn are
affected by expectations regarding the supply and demand for oil and natural gas, energy prices and finding and
development costs. Land seismic data acquisition activity levels are measured in terms of the number of active
recording crews, known as the “crew count,” and the number of recording channels deployed by those crews, known
as “‘channel count.” Because an accurate and reliable census of active crews does not exist, it is not possible to make
definitive statements regarding the absolute levels of seismic data acquisition activity. Furthermore, a significant
number of seismic data acquisition contractors are either private or slate-owned enterprises and information about
their activities is not available in the public domain. Nonetheless, we believe the seismic industry is currently
enjoying a period of stable and sustained growth. This is evidenced by increased demand for our equipment,
improving financial results as reported by many seismic contractors and announcements by some seismic
contractors of increased crew count and channel count. We believe that this increase is being driven by relatively
high world oil and North American natural gas prices. combined with the maturation of the world’s hydrocarbon
producing basins. The future direction and magnitude of changes in seismic data acquisition activity levels will
continue to be dependent upon oil and natural gas prices to a large degree.

The market for products sold by Seamap and the demand for the leasing of marine seismic equipment is
dependent upon activity within the offshore, or marine, seismic industry, including the re-fitting of existing seismic
vessels and the equipping of new vessels.

Current prices of oil and natural gas have resulted in increased activity in the oil and gas industry and in turn
resulted in an increased demand for seismic services. This has contributed to an increased demand for leasing of our
equipment. We cannot predict how long the current trend will last, but we believe that a depressed oil and gas
industry results in lower demand, thus lower revenues from the leasing of our equipment. We do not quantitatively
calculate utilization rates for our equipment lease pool. However, we do subjectively monitor factors which we
believe reflect trends in utilization. We have relatively fixed costs within certain revenue ranges and, as a result, our
earnings are particularly sensitive to changes in utilization and demand for our lease equipment.
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We have responded to the increased demand for our services and preducts by adding new equipment to our
lease pool and by introducing new products from our Seamap segment. During fiscal 2008 and 2007 we added
approximately $26.0 million and $25.5 million, respectively, of equipment to cur lease pool. We have also
attempted 1o improve the utilization of our lease pool by establishing test facilities in Russia and in Singapore.
Should the present growth for the seismic industry continue, we expect to add new equipment to our lease pool, We
may also establish operating locations in new geographic areas, but we have no plans to do so at the current time.

We also may seek to expand our lease pool by acquiring different types of equipment or equipment which can
be used in different types of seismic applications. We have done this in the past such as adding marine seismic
equipment to our lease pool. We recently placed an order for equipment used in vertical seismic profiling (“VSP”)
applications. VSP is a technology in which seismic recording devices are introduced into a well bore, such as an oil
or gas well. VSP technology has a wide array of application, some of which are not related to cil and gas
exploration. These applicatiens include 3D surface seismic surveys, well and reservoir monitoring, analysis of fluid
treatments of oil and gas wells and underground storage monitoring. The amount of equipment that we have
committed to acquire has not been material to date but could be in the future.

A significant portion of our revenues are generated from foreign sources. For the years ended January 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, revenues from international customers totaled approximately $62.6 million, $37.3 million and
$25.2 million, respectively. These amounts represent 82%, 76% and 73% of consclidated revenues in those fiscal
years, respectively. The majority of our transactions with foreign customers are denominated in United States,
Australian, Canadian and Singapore dollars, Russian rubles and British pounds sterling.

Our revenues and results of operations have not been materially impacted by inflation or changing prices in the
past three fiscal years, except as described above.

Results of Operations

For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008, we recorded operating income of approximately $16.4 miilion,
compared to approximately $6.6 million for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2007 and approximately $7.5 million
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2006. The improvements in operating income are primarily attributable to
increased equipment leasing activity and the contribution of the Seamap segment. However, our results for the year
ended January 31, 2007 were negatively impacted by issues in our Seamap segment related to a new product that
was introduced during this period as more fully discussed below.

Our Equipment Leasing segment recorded increased gross profit in the year ended January 31, 2008 of
approximately $27.9 million, as compared to approximately $20.2 million and $15.4 million for the years ended
January 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These increases were due primarily to the increased rental activity and the
expansicn of our lease pool of equipment during these periods.

Our Seamap segment recorded gross profits of $8.0 million, $3.3 million and $2.3 million in the years ended
January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These increases are primarily the result of increased sales of our
GunLink and BuoyLink products and are in spite of the new product issues identified above.

Effective February 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(“SFAS”) No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (*SFAS 123R"). Accordingly, the amount of expense recognized related
to stock based compensation during the year ended January 31, 2008 was approximately $2.3 million, as compared
to approximately $1.6 million in the year ended January 31, 2007 and $153,000 in the year ended January 31, 2006.
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Revenues and Cost of Sales
Equipment Leasing

Revenues and cost of sales from our Equipment Leasing segment is comprised of the following:

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2007 2006
{In thousands)

Revenues:
Equipment leasing . . ... ...ttt $34,364  $24942  $22,104
Lease pool equipment sales . ............ ... ... . ... .... 3,488 4,207 5,218
New seismic equipment sales . . ........... ... ... ....... 9,350 5,071 1,046
SAPequipment sales . ... ....... ... .. L . 4,499 3,373 2,201

51,701 37,683 30,569
Cost of sales:

Lease pool depreciation . .. ........... ... ... ... ...... 10,403 7,612 8,310
Lease pool impairment. . . ........ . ... .. .. o ... — — 617
Direct costs — equipment leasing ... ....... ... ... ... 1,846 2,167 2,907
Cost of lease pool equipment sales . . .. ................... 1,019 1,961 950
Cost of new seismic equipment sales . .................... 1,376 3,884 826
Costof SAPequipmentsales .. .............. ... ... ... 3,186 1,907 1,519
23,830 17,531 15,129
Grossprofit ... ... ... ... . .. ... $27.871  $20,152  $15,440
Grossprofitmargin............... ... ... . ... ... ..., 54% 53% 51%

In fiscal 2008 our equipment leasing revenues increased approximately $9.4 million, or 38% over fiscal 2007,
and fiscal 2007 equipment leasing revenues increased approximately $2.8 million, or 13% over fiscal 2006.
Equipment leasing revenues have increased in each of the past three fiscal years due to increased demand for
seismic equipment, expansion into new geographic markets, including Russia and the CIS, and expansion of our
lease pool, including equipment for marine applications. The demand for seismic equipment is primarily driven by
the globa! oil and gas exploration issues discussed above. In fiscal 2008, we acquired approximately $26.0 million
of new lease pool equipment due to additional demand from customers. However, approximately $13.0 million of
this equipment was acquired in the fourth quarter and did not contribute significantly to our leasing revenues in
fiscal 2008. Likewise, in fiscal 2007 we added approximately $25.5 million of new lease pool equipment, of which
approximately $15.4 million was added in the fourth quarter of that year.

From time to time, we sell equipment from our lease pool based on specific customer demand or in order to
redeploy our capital in other lease pool assets. These transactions tend to occur as opportunities arise and
accordingly are difficult to predict. The gross profit and related gross profit margin from the sales of lease pool
equipment amounted to approximately $2.5 million (71%) in fiscal 2008, $2.3 million (54%) in fiscal 2007, and
$4.3 million (82%) in fiscal 2006. Often the equipment that is sold from our lease pool has been held by us, and
therefore depreciated, for some period of time. Accordingly, the equipment sold may have a relatively low net book
value at the time of the sale, resulting in a relatively high gross profit from the transaction. The amount of the gross
profit on a particular transaction varies greatly based primarily upon the age of the equipment.

Occasionally, we sell new scismic equipment that we acquire from other manufacturers. Often these
arrangements are structured with a significant down payment, with the balance financed over a period of time
at a market rate of interest. In the year ended January 31, 2008, we entered into two such transactions in which we
financed a portion of the selling price for periods of approximately 12 to 24 months. SAP regularly sells new
hydrographic and oceanographic equipment to customers in Australia and throughout the Pacific Rim. The gross
profit and related gross profit margin from the sale of new seismic, hydrographic and oceanographic equipment
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amounted to approximately $3.3 million (24%), $2.7 million (31%), and $895,000 (28%) in the years ended
January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Depreciation expense related to lease pool equipment for fiscal 2008 amounted to approximately $10.4 million,
as compared to approximately $7.6 million in fiscal 2007 and approximately $8.3 million in fiscal 2006. The
increase in depreciation expense from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 was attributable to the additions we made to our
lease pool in fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2008. However, as a significant portion of the equipment was added in the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2008 the impact of that equipment on depreciation expense for fiscal 2008 was not significant. The
decline in depreciation expense from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 was due to more of our equipment becoming fully
depreciated. At January 31, 2008, lease pool assets with an acquisition cost of approximately $46.7 million were
fulty depreciated, yet remained in service. This compares 10 $41.0 million at January 31, 2007 and approximately
$41.1 million at January 31, 2006. These assets, though fully depreciated, are expected to continue to generate
revenues through leasing activity.

Our business generally parallels trends in the oil and gas industry. When the oil and gas industry was depressed
over the period from 1998 to 2004, we experienced net losses for those periods. As the oil and gas industry is on an
upward trend, we are experiencing increased demand for our equipment, including equipment that has been fully
depreciated. Increased demand for cur equipment results in higher revenues and generally has no impact on
depreciation in the short term as our equipment is depreciated from the first month it is placed in service until it is
fully depreciated. Depreciation expense is recorded monthly whether or not the equipment is actually generating
revenues on a lease contract. During periods of high demand, such as the one we are currently experiencing, our
ability to lease older equipment, (including fully depreciated equipment) is enhanced; whereas in periods of low
demand, the opposite is true. As a result, revenues and depreciation expense will not necessarily directly correlate.
Over the long-term, depreciation expense is impacted by increases in equipment purchases to meet growing demand
for our leased equipment. We have been able to purchase equipment at discounts through volume purchase
arrangements. A lower purchase price results in lower depreciation expense than in previous periods. Although
some of the equipment in our lease pool has reached the end of its depreciable life, given the increased demand, the
equipment continues to be in service and continues to generate revenues. Because the depreciable life of our
equipment in our industry is determined more by technical obsolescence than by usage or wear and tear, some of our
equipment, although fully depreciated, is still capable of functioning appropriately. Currently, in our industry,
higher demand is generating more leasing revenues and older equipment is more in demand than in prior periods.

We recorded direct costs related to seismic leasing for fiscal 2008 in the amount of approximately $1.8 million
as compared to approximately $2.2 million in fiscal 2007 and approximately $2.9 million in fiscal 2006. Direct
costs {ypically fluctuate with leasing revenues, as the three main components of direct costs are freight, repairs and
sublease expense. Costs in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007 decreased in spite of higher leasing revenues, primarily due to
greater reimbursement of costs from our customers and lower costs to lease certain equipment from others.

We recorded a non-cash impairment charge of approximately $600,000 against our seismic equipment lease
pool in fiscal 2006 attributable to land systems, cables, geophones, land peripherals, marine and other equipment.
Seamap

Revenues and cost of sales for our Seamap segment are as follows:

Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006
{In thousands)
Equipment sales .......... 0t $25.383  $12274 %4020
Costof equipment sales. . . ... inrnnnnns.. 17,381 8,92 1,735
Gross profil. . .. ..o e $ 8002 % 3347 52,285
Gross profit margin . .. ... ... i e e 32% 27% 57%

We acquired Seamap in July 2005; accordingly, our fiscal 2006 results do not include results related to Seamap
for the full period. Aside from this effect, sales of Seamap equipment have increased significantly due primarily to
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sales of our GunLink and BuoyLink products, as well as ancillary products such as umbilicals and handling systems.
In addition, fiscal 2007 and 2008 results were impacted by cerlain timing issues as discussed more fully below.

In September 2006, we were notified by a customer of certain mechanical failures relating to a specific version
of our GunLink 4000 product that was introduced by our Seamap segment earlier that year. The GunLink product
line is utilized on seismic vessels to coordinate and control the energy sources utilized in marine seismic surveys.
This version of the GunLink 4000 product is designed to operate with an energy source, an air gun in this case,
recently introduced by another manufacturer. In cooperation with our customer, we immediately began to
investigate the cause of the failure. The investigation revealed a design flaw in this particular version of the
GunLink 4000 product. The design flaw did not affect the functionality of the conventional air gun version of this
product, which we confirmed through an evaluation of the conventional version. We have completed changes to
correct the design flaw. Certain of these changes were implemented in all versions of the GunLink 4000 product to
ensure compatibility in the production process. During this process we incurred significant costs, which we expect
to be non-recurring, amounting to approximately $1.7 million in fiscal 2007. These costs include the cost to
investigate and redesign the product, costs to support the operations of our customers during the process, including
replacement compoenents and on-site support, and replacement and refurbishment of some components of our
inventory.

As a result of these problems, one GunLink 4000 system that we had expected to ship during the year was
delayed and not delivered until March 2007. In addition, the order for an additional GunLink 4000 that had been
scheduled for delivery during the year ended January 31, 2008 was converted to an order for a GunLink 2000
system, which was delivered in fiscal 2008. Had these shipments occurred as originally anticipated, revenues for
equipment sales would have increased by approximately $2.0 million for the year ended January 31, 2007 and
decreased by the same amount in fiscal 2008.

The gross profit margin for fiscal 2006 is not comparable to fiscal 2007 or fiscal 2008 due to the significantly
lower level of sales and the product mix during that period. The gross profit margin increased in fiscal 2008 to 32%
from 27% in fiscal 2007. This increase is impacted by a number of factors. During fiscal 2008 we moved the
production of our GunLink products to our Singapore facility from our facility in the U.K. which resulted in
generally lower labor and material costs for these products. Additionally, as the production process for the GunLink
products has matured we have gained production efficiencies which have contributed to higher gross margins.
Furthermore, the gross margin for fiscal 2007 was negatively impacted by the costs related to the design issue
discussed above. Offsetting these factors, however, was the impact of sales in fiscal 2008 of various ancillary
products such as umbilicals and handling systems which produced a much lower gross margin than our other
products.

Prior to December 2007 in connection with the sale of each GunLink system we were required to pay a royalty
to a party who had developed certain software utilized by those products. In December 2007 we purchased the
intellectual property related to that software and, accordingly. are no longer required to pay the royalty. Had we
owned this intellectual property during fiscal 2008 and 2007, we estimate that our gross profit for those periods
would have been improved by approximately $1.7 million and $964.000, respectively.

Operating Expenses

General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2008 amounted to approximately $17.4 miltion, compared to
approximately $15.0 million and $9.4 million in fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in fiscal 2008 from
fiscal 2007 was attributable to additional stock-based compensation expense, increased expense related to our
incentive compensation program for senior managers and higher costs associated with our generally higher level of
operations. A significant portion of the increase from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 was attributable to the operations of
Seamap. We acquired Seamap in July 2005 and accordingly, fiscal 2007 was the first year to include a full twelve
months of these operations as compared 1o seven months of operations in fiscal 2006.

In fiscal 2008, we recorded stock-based compensation expense of approximately $2.3 million, as compared to
approximately $1.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $153,000 in fiscal 2006. Under SFAS 123R, which we adopled
effective February 1, 2006, the fair value of stock-based awards, such as stock options and restricted stock, is
estimated at the time of the grant. This estimated value is then amortized over the expected vesting period of the

23




award as compensation expense. Prior to our adoption of SFAS 123(R), compensation expense was only recognized
in connection with restricted stock awards. In fiscal 2008 we adopted an incentive compensation program for our
senior managers in order to attract and retain key personnel. As our operations have expanded we have incurred
higher level of general and administrative costs related to personnel, facilittes and travel.

During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we recorded a provision for doubtful accounts in the amount of $460,000,
$251,000 and $188,000, respectively. At January 31, 2008 and 2007, we had trade accounts and note receivables
over 90 days past due of approximately $4.9 million and $4.0 million, respectively. In ouor industry, and in our
experience, it is not unusual for accounts to become delinquent from time to time and this is not necessarily
indicative of an account becoming uncollectible. As of January 31, 2008 and 2007, our allowance for doubtful
accounts and notes receivable amounted to approximately $1.5 million and $1.2 million, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization, other than lease pool depreciation, amounted to approximately $1.5 million in
fiscal 2008 as compared to approximately $t.3 million in fiscal 2007 and $648,000 in fiscal 2006. This increase
reflects the impact of amortization of intangible assets acquired with Seamap and depreciation of office furniture,
equipment and leasehold improvements.

Interest and Other Income, net

Net interest and other income for fiscal 2008 amounted to approximately $482,000, compared to approx-
imately $902,000 in fiscal 2007 and net interest expense of approximately $439,000 in fiscal 2006. The decrease
from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 and the increase from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 reflect higher levels of invested funds
in fiscal 2007. In fiscal 2008 we utilized a significant portion of our cash resources to acquire additional lease pool
equipment and therefore funds available for temporary investment were lower on average during this period.

Provision for Income Taxes

In fiscal 2008 our provision for income taxes amounted to approximately $5.5 million. This amount included
current taxes of $4.0 million, deferred taxes of $1.1 million and estimated penalties and interest of $400,000 related
to the potential impact of uncertain tax positions. The current tax provision is made up of approximately $2.9 million
in United States taxes and approximately $1.1 million payable to foreign jurisdictions, primarily Australia,
Singapore and Russia. Income taxes currently payable in the United States were reduced by approximately
$1.9 million due to deductions arising from the exercise of non-qualified stock options. This amount did not reduce
our current tax provision but is credited directly to paid-in capital in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R.
In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48™) we have estimated the amount of penalties and interest that might accrue
during the period should certain uncertain tax positions be resolved not in our favor. This amount is recorded as
income tax expense. (See Note 10 — to our consolidated financial statements).

Our provision for income taxes for fiscal 2007 consisted of a current provision of approximately $690,000 and
a deferred benefit of approximately $2.5 million. Income taxes currently payable in the United States were reduced
by approximately $390,000 due to deductions arising from the exercise of non-qualified stock options. This amount
did not reduce our current tax provision but is credited directly to paid-in capital in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS 123R. The deferred tax benefit arose from the recognition of deferred tax assets, for which we had partially
provided a valuation allowance in prior periods. The deferred tax assets consist primarity of net operating losses
carry forwards from prior periods and book/tax differences related to fixed assets. In prior periods we had not fully
recognized these deferred tax assets as their realization was not assured beyond a reasonable doubt. However, given
our profitable operations in fiscal 2007 and 2006 and our expectation of profitable operations in future periods, we
relieved the remaining valuation allowance and recognized the remaining deferred tax assets in the year ended
January 31, 2007.

In fiscal 2006 we had a current tax provision of approximately $36,000 and a deferred income tax benefit of
$3.0 million as a result of a reduction of our valuation allowance by that same amount. At January 31, 2007, we
evaluated potential realization of our deferred tax assets and as a result reduced the valuation allowance.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity and capital over the past three fiscal years has been cash flows provided by
operating activities. The principal factor that has affected our cash flows is a marked increase in oil and gas
exploration and development activities. Increases in the price of oil and natural gas have improved market
conditions and have increased demand for our equipment.

As of January 31, 2008, we had working capital of approximately $14.0 million and cash and cash equivalents
of approximately $13.9 million as compared to working capital of approximately $13.7 million and cash and
temporary investments of approximately $12.6 million at January 31, 2007. Our working capital was essentially
unchanged at January 31, 2008 from the January 31, 2007 as the majority of the working capital generated by our
operations was invested in additional lease pool equipment.

Cash flows provided by operating activities amounted to approximately $31.0 million in fiscal 2008 as
compared to approximately $3.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $11.2 million in fiscal 2006. For fiscal 2008 the primary
sources of cash provided by operating activities were net income of $11.4 million and non-cash charges, including
depreciation and amortization totaling approximately $11.9 million, deferred tax expense of approximately
$1.1 million and stock-based compensation of approximately $2.3 million. These amounts were offset by the
gross profit from the sale of lease pool equipment of approximately $2.5 million. The net change in other current
assets and liabilities increased net cash provided by operating activities for fiscal 2008 by approximately
$7.5 million. Included within this net change were several significant items. Increases in trade accounts and
contracts receivable resulted in a decrease of approximately $4.5 million. These changes were due to increased
revenues and the resulting increase in trade accounts receivable and sales of new seismic equipment during the year
with expanded payment terms (see “Results of Operations” above). The improvement in cash flows from operating
activities during fiscal 2008 were driven by an increase of approximately $7.6 million in accounts payable, accrued
liabilities and other current liabilities and by an increase of approximately $2.9 million in income taxes payable.
Income taxes payable increased because during fiscal 2008 we utilized our remaining net operating loss carryovers
in the United States and became a current taxpayer in that jurisdiction. The change in accounts payable, accrued
liabilities and other current liabilities related primarily to the effect of lease pool equipment purchases.

In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 we acquired approximately $26.0 million, $25.5 million and $8.2 million,
respectively of new lease pool equipment; however, the cash expenditures for these purchases did not all occur within
those respective periods. As of January 31, 2008 included in accounts payable was approximately $8.6 million related to
lease pool purchases. These amounts were settled in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. As of January 31, 2007 the amount in
accounts payable related to lease pool purchases was approximately $12.6 million. Accordingly, our Consolidated
Staterments of Cash Flows for the years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 indicated purchases of equipment held
for lease of approximately $30.0 million, $12.9 million and $8.2 million, respectively. During fiscal 2008 we added
significant amounts of new land seismic equipment, including approximately 20,000 new land recording channels. Other
equipment added to our lease pool during this period included marine compressors, gun controllers manufactured by our
Seamap segment. marine streamer sections, as well as an assortment of other land and marine equipment. Our purchases
of lease pool equipment are generally made in response to specific customer demand. Accordingly, we cannot accurately
predict future levels of lease pool purchases. Based on current conditions within our industry, we expect to continue to
make significant investments in new lease pool equipment. However, we can not predict if future purchases, including
those made in fiscal 2009, will be of a similar magnitude to the purchases made in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, or if
purchases in fiscal 2009 will exceed those levels.

Cash flows from investing activities for each of the three years ended January 31, 2008 reflect proceeds of
approximately $3.5 million, $4.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively, from the sale of used lease pool equipment,
We generally do not seek to sell our lease pool equipment; however, from time to time we will do so in response to
particular customer demand. In determining whether or not to sell lease pool equipment we weigh expected future
leasing revenues from that equipment versus the potential proceeds that may be received upon the sale of the
equipment.

In fiscal 2008, we paid the former shareholders of Seamap $1.0 million in settlement of the final earn-out
payment due in connection with the acquisition of Seamap in fiscal 2006. We made an identical earn-out payment in
fiscal 2007. Also, in fiscal 2008, we paid approximately $2.8 million 1o purchase an entity that owned the

25




intellectual property related to software utilized on one of Seamap’s primary products, GunLink. In addition to the
intellectual property, this entity held an account receivable from Seamap in the amount of approximately
$2.1 million arising from royalties from the use of that intellectual property. Accordingly, our expenditure related
to the acquisition of Seamap and related activities amounted to approximately $3.8 million in fiscal 2008,
$1.0 million in fiscal 2007 and $2.5 million in fiscal 2006. The amount expended in fiscal 2006 represents the cash
portion of the purchase price for Seamap, net of cash acquired.

Financing activities include the issuance of common stock upon the exercise of stock options. These
transactions resulted in cash infusions of $356,000, $861,000 and $1.6 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. In fiscal 2006 we utilized $918,000 in cash for the repayment of borrowings.

On February 1, 2007, we extended our $12.5 million revolving loan agreement with First Victoria National
Bank (the “Bank”) which we originally entered into on June 27, 2005. The agreement amended the arrangement to
provide for a maturity date of February 1, 2009. All other terms of the agreement remain unchanged. The facility
bears interest at the prime rate. Amounts available under the facility are subject to a borrowing base comprising
eligible accounts receivable and eligible lease pool equipment. We believe that the full amount of the facility is
available for borrowing based on these criteria. Interest on any outstanding principle balance is payable monthly,
while the principal is due at the end of the two-year term, The revolving loan agreement alse contains certain
financial covenants that require, among other things, that we maintain a debt 1o shareholders’ equity ratio of a
maximum of 1.3 to 1.0, maintain a current assets to current liabilities ratio of a minimum of 1.25 to 1.0, and not
incur or maintain any indebtedness or obligations or guarantee the debts or obligations of others in a total aggregate
amount which exceeds $1.0 million without the prior written approval of the Bank, except for indebtedness incurred
as a result of the Seamap acquisition and other specific exceptions. During the first quarter of fiscal 2008, we
borrowed and subsequently repaid $4.5 million pursuant to this revolving credit facility. We used the proceeds to
partially fund the purchase of lease pool equipment. In February 2008 we borrowed $3.0 million, also to partially
fund the purchase of lease pool equipment. As of April 7, 2008, there is $4.0 million outstanding under the facility.
We intend to utilize this facility from time to time to fund short term working capital needs, such as rhe purchase of
lease pool equipment.

In connection with the July 2005 Seamap acquisition, we issued $3.0 million in promissory notes payable to
the former shareholders of Seamap. The notes bear interest at 5% annually with interest payable annually at each
anniversary date of the notes. Principal is payable in two equal installments on the second and third year anniversary
of the notes. In July 2007 we made a $1.5 million principal payment on these notes. The final $1.5 million
installment is due in July 2008.

We believe that our liquidity needs will be met from cash on hand, cash provided by operating activities and
from proceeds of our existing working capital facility. Our current revolving credit facility matures on February 1,
2009. We expect to extend this facility or to replace it with a similar facility prior to its maturity. However, should
our liquidity or capital needs increase because of significant additional purchases of lease pool equipment or the
acquisition of another business; we may seck other sources of capital. These other sources could include the
issuance of equity securities, the issuance of debt securities, other long-term debt arrangements, an expanded
revolving credit facility, or a combination of these various sources.

As of January 31, 2008, we had deposits in foreign banks equal to approximately $7.7 million, These funds
may generally be transferred to our accounts in the United States without restriction. However, the transfer of these
funds may result in withholding taxes payable to foreign taxing authorities. Any such transfer taxes generally may
be credited against our federal income tax obligations in the United States. Additionally, the transfer of funds from
our foreign subsidiaries to the United States may result in currently taxable income in the United States.
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The following table sets forth estimates of future payments of our consolidated contractual obligations as of
January 31, 2008 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-termdebt..................... $1,575  $1,575 5 — $ — § —
Operating leases .. ... ............... 2,831 811 1,056 593 371
Purchase obligations ... ... ........... 3,101 3,101 — — —
Total. . oo $7,507 $5,487 $1,056 $593 $371

At January 31, 2008 we had unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $5.0 million related to uncertain tax
positions, including approximately $3.4 million of non-current income taxes payable. We are not able to reasonably
estimate when, if ever, these obligations will be paid.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Significant estimates made by us in the accompanying consolidated financial siatements relate to
the allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable and inventory obsolescence; the useful lives of our lease pool
assets and amortizable intangible assets and the impairment assessments of our lease pool and various intangible
assets. Other areas where we have made significant estimates include the valuation of stock options and the
assessment of the need for a valuation atlowance related to deferred tax assets and the assessment of uncertain tax
positions.

Critical accounting policies are those that are most important to the portrayal of a company’s financial position
and results of operations and require management’s subjective judgment. Below is a brief discussion of our critical
accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

* Leases — We recognize lease revenue ratably over the term of the lease unless there is a question as to
whether it is collectible. Commission income is recognized once it has been paid to us. We do not enter into
leases with embedded maintenance obligations. Under our standard lease, the customer is responsible for
maintenance and repairs to the equipment, excluding normal wear and tear. We provide technical advice to
our customers as part of our customer service practices.

» Equipment Sales — We recognize revenue and cost of goods sold from equipment sales upon agreement of
terms and when delivery has occurred, unless there is a question as (o its collectibility. We occasionally offer
extended payment terms on equipment sales transactions. These terms are generally one to two years in
duration.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
We make provisions to the allowance for doubtful accounts periodically, as conditions warrant, based on
whether such receivables are estimated to be cullectible.

Long-Lived Assets

We carry our lease pool of equipment and other property and equipment at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation, and compute depreciation on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property
and equipment, which range from two 10 10 years. Cables are depreciated over lwo years, geophones over three
years, channel boxes over five to seven years and earth vibrators and other heavy equipment are depreciated over a
10-year period. Buildings are depreciated over 40 years, property improvements are amortized over 10 years and
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leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of useful life and the life of the lease, Intangible assets are
amortized from three to 15 years.

The estimated useful lives for rental equipment are based on our experience as to the economic useful life of its
products. We review and consider industry trends in determining the appropriate useful life for our lease pool
equipment, including technological obsolescence, market demand and actual historical useful service life of our
lease pool equipment, Additionally, to the extent information is available publicly, we compare our depreciation
policies to those of other companies in our industry for reasonableness. When we purchase new equipment for our
lease pool, we begin to depreciate it upon its first use and depreciation continues each month uatil the equipment is
fully depreciated, whether or not the equipment is actualiy in vse during that entire time period.

Our policy regarding the removal of assets that are fully depreciated from our books is the following: if an asset
is fully depreciated and is still expected to generate revenue, then the asset will remain on our books. However, if a
fully depreciated asset is not expected to have any revenue generating capacity, then it is removed from our books.

In accordance with SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assers, we perform a
review of our lease pool assets for potential impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be fully recoverable. We typically review all major categories of assets (not each
individual asset) in our consolidated lease pool with remaining net book value to ascertain whether or not we belicve
that a particular asset group will generate sufficient cash flow over their remaining life to recover the remaining
carrying value of those assets. Assets that we believe will not generate cash flow sufficient to cover the remaining
net book value are subject to impairment. We make our assessments based on customer demand, current market
trends and market value of our equipment to determine if it will be able to recover its remaining net book value from
future leasing or sales. During fiscal 2008 and 2007 we recorded no impairment charge related to the valuation of
our seismic equipment lease pool, while during fiscal 2006 we recorded an impairment charge of approximately
$600,000.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We carry our amortizable intangible assets at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization is computed
on a straight-line method over the estimated life of the asset. Currently, proprietary rights are amortized overa 12.5
to 15-year period, while covenants-not-to-compete are amortized over a three-year period. The basis for the
proprietary right lives are generally based upon the results of valuation reports commissioned from third parties.
Covenants-not-to-compete are amortized over the term of the contract. Goodwill is not subject to systematic
amortization, but rather is tested for impairment annually.

Under SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we perform an impairment test on geodwill and other
intangibles on an annual basis and at any time circumstances indicate that an impairment may have occurred.
Impairment testing compares the carrying amount of the goodwill and other intangible assets with their fair value,
Fair value is estimated based upon discounted cash flows. When the carrying value of the goodwill and other
intangible assets exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recorded. The estimation of discounted future cash
flows requires us to exercise judgment and make significant estimates.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and labilities are determined based on temporary differences between income and
expenses reported for financial reporting and tax reporting. We have assessed, using all available positive and
negative evidence, the likelihood that the deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income.

Under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, an enterprise must use judgment in considering the
relative impact of negative and positive evidence, The weight given to the potential effect of negative and positive
evidence should be commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. The more negative
evidence that exists (i) the more positive evidence is necessary and (ii) the more difficult it is to support a conclusion
that a valuation allowance is not needed for some portion, or all, of the deferred 1ax asset. Among the more
significant types of evidence that we consider are:
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= taxable income projections in future years;
» whether the carryforward period is so brief that it would limit realization of tax benefits;

« future sales and operating cost projections that will produce more than enough taxable income to realize the
deferred tax asset based on existing sales prices and cost structures; and

* our earnings history exclusive of the loss that created the future deductible amount coupled with evidence
indicating that the loss is an aberration rather than a continning condition.

In determining the valuation allowance, we consider the following positive indicators:

* the current level of worldwide oil and gas exploration activities resulting from historicatly high prices for oil
and natural gas;

= increasing world demand for oil;

* our recent history of profitable operations in various jurisdictions;

* our anticipated positive income in various jurisdictions; and

* our existing customer relationships.

We also considered the following negative indicators:

» the risk of the world oil supply increasing, thereby depressing the price of oil and natural gas;
+ the risk of decreased global demand for oil; and

= the potential for increased competition in the seismic equipment leasing and sales business.

Based on our evaluation of the evidence, as of January 31, 2008 we have not provided a valuation allowance against
our deferred tax assets.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48™).
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in incoine taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in
accordance with SFAS 109 and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statemenl recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, FIN 48 also
provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure
and transition.

The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with FIN 48 is a two-step process. The first step is recognition:
The enterprise determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination,
including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. In
evaluating whether a tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the enterprise should
presume that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority that would have full knowledge of all
relevant information. The second step is measurement: A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold is measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements.
The tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. Differences between tax positions taken in a tax return and amounts recognized in the financial
statements will generally result in (1) an increase in a liability for income taxes payable or (2) a reduction of an
income tax refund receivable or a reduction in a deferred tax asset or an increase in a deferred tax liability or both
(1) and (2). The evaluation of tax positions and the measurement of the related benefit require significant judgment
on the part of management.

We adopted FIN 48 effective February 1, 2007. As a result of the adoption we recorded a reduction in our
deferred tax assets in the amount of approximately $3.4 million, recognized a liability for unrecognized tax benefits
of approximately $1.2 million and decreased the February 1, 2007 balance in retained earnings by approximately
$4.6 million. (See Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.)
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Stock-Based Compensation

Effective February 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, uvsing the modified prospective
transition method. Under this method, stock-based compensation expense recognized for share-based awards
during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2007 includes: (i) compensation expense for all stock-based compensation
awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, February 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 1237),
and (ii) compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted subsequent to February 1, 2006,
based on the grant date fair vatue estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R.

Determining the grant date fair value under both SFAS 123R and SFAS 123 requires management to make
estimates regarding the variables used in the calculation of the grant date fair value. Those variables are the future
volatility of our common stock price, the length of time an optionee will hold their options until exercising them (the
“expected term™), and the number of options or shares that will be forfeited before they are exercised (the “forfeiture
rate”). We utilize varicus mathematical models in calculating the variables. Share-based compensation expense
could be different if we used different models to calculate the variables.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577), to define fair
value, establish a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about the use of fair value to measure
assets and labilities. SFAS 157 requires quantitative disclosures using a tabular format in all periods (interim and
annual} and qualitative disclosures about the valuation techniques used to measure fair value in all annual periods.
SFAS 157 will be effective for our fiscal year beginning February 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the effect that
the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on our consolidated financial position and results of operalions.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159). SFAS 159 expands opportunities to use fair value measurements in financial reporting and
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS 159 will
be effective for us on February 1, 2008. We are currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 157 will
have on our consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB revised SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”), which is
effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Early application is not permitted before that date.
SFAS 141R requires assets and liabilities recorded in a business combination to be recorded at fair value and
replaces the cost-allocation process under the prior standard. In addition, SFAS 14|R requires separate recognition
of acquisition costs and requires recognition of contractual contingencies at fair value as of the acquisition date.
Further, the revised standard requires capitalization of research and development assets and requires fair value
recognition of contingent consideration as of the acquisition date. We are currently evaluating the impact of
adopting SFAS 159 will have on our consolidated financial statements, which will be effective for our fiscal year
beginning February 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 160, Non-Controlling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, An Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51
(“SFAS 1607), which is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on
or after December 15, 2008. Early application is not permitted before that date. SFAS 160 changes the terminology
of minority interests, which will now be known as non-controlling interest and requires that non-controlling
interests be clearly identified within stockholders’ equity as a separate component from the parent company’s
equity and net income or toss attributable to non-controlling interests be clearly identified and presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of operations. In addition, the standard requires adequate disclosure between interests
of the parent company and interests of the non-controlling equity holders. We do not expect that this pronouncement
will have a significant impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 (“SFAS 1617), which
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is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after November 15, 2008.
Early application is encouraged. SFAS 161 changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and
hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about {a) how and why an entity uses
derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement
133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. The Statement requires that objectives for using
derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. In addition, the
standard requires tabular disclosure of fair value of derivative instruments and their gains and loss, requires
disclosure regarding credit risk related contingent features of the Company’s derivative instruments and requires
cross referencing within the footnote disclosures regarding information about derivative instruments. We do not
expect that this pronouncement will have a significant impact on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk, which is the polential loss arising from adverse changes in market prices and
rates. We have not entered, or intend to enter, into derivative financial instruments for hedging or speculative
puUrposes.

Foreign Currency Risk

We operate in a number of foreign locations which gives rise to risk from changes in foreign exchange rates. To the
extent possible, we attempt to denominate our transactions in foreign locations in U.S. dollars. For those cases in which
transactions are not denominated in U.S. dollars, we are exposed to risk from changes in exchange rates to the extent that
non-LLS. dollar revenues exceed non-U.S. dollar expenses related to those operations. Our non-U.S. dollar transactions
are denominated primarily in British pounds sterling, Russian rubles, Canadian dollars, Australian dollars and Singapore
dollars. As a result of these transactions, we generally hold cash balances that are denominated in these foreign
currencies. At January 31, 2008, our consolidated cash and cash equivalents included foreign currency denominated
amounts equivalent to approximately $4.5 million in U.S. dollars. A 10% increase in the U.S. dollar as compared to each
of these currencies would result in a loss of approximately $450,000 in the U.S. dollar value of these deposits, while a
10% decrease would result in an equal amount of gain. We do not currently hold or issue foreign exchange contracts or
other derivative instruments to hedge these exposures.

Some of our foreign operations are conducted through whoily owned foreign subsidiaries that have functional
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We currently have subsidiaries whose functional currencies are the Canadian
dollar, British pound sterling, Russian ruble, Australian dollar and the Singapore dollar. Assets and liabilities from
these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at each balance sheet date. The
resulting translation gains or losses are reflected as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the Share-
holders’ Equity section of our Consolidated Balance Sheets, Approximately 70% of our net assets were impacted by
changes in foreign currencices in relation to the U.S. dollar. During the year ended January 31, 2008, the U.S. doltar
generally declined in value versus the above currencies. As a result of this decline, we have recognized an increase
of approximately $4.9 million in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, primarily related to changes in the
relative exchange rate of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar, British pound sterling and the Australian dollar.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this item appears beginning on page F-1 and is incorporated by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, we have evaluated, under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢)
and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Our disclosure controls
and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in
reports that we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate. to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
rules and forms of the SEC. Qur principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our
current disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of January 31, 2008 at the reasonable assurance level,

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d- 15(f) under the Exchange Act). Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As required by Rule 13a-15(c) under the Exchange Act, our management assessed the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2008, In making this assessment, we used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control
Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, our management concluded that, as of January 31, 2008, our
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Hein & Associates LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm who audited our consolidated
financial statements included in this Form 10-K, has issued a report on our internal control over financial reporting,
which is included herein.

Changes in Internat Control over Financial Reporting
There was no change in our system of internal control over financial reporting during our fourth fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal contrel over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Pursuant 10 General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this item the information to
be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which covers a wide range of business practices and
procedures. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics represents the code of ethics applicable to our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer or controller and persons performing
simitar functions (“senior financial officers™). A copy of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on
our website, hitp://www.mitchamindustries.com, and a copy will be mailed without charge, upon written request, to
Miicham Industries, Inc., P.O. Box 1175, Huntsville, Texas, 77342-1175, Aitention: Robert P. Capps. We intend to
disclose any amendments to or waivers of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on behalf of our senior financial
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officers on our website, at http://www.mitchamindustries.com promptly following the date of the amendment or
waiver.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

Pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this itern the information to
be disclosed in our definitive proxy statemeni for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this item the information to
be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this item the information to
be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Pursuant to General Instruction G to Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference into this item the information to
be disclosed in our definitive proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) List of Documents Filed
(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report are listed in “Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements” on page F-1

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(3) Exhibits
The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed in subparagraph (b) below.

33




(b) Exhibits

The exhibits marked with the cross symbol (1} are filed with this Form 10-K. The exhibits marked with the
asterisk symbol (*) are management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements filed pursuant to Item
601(b) 10)H(i1i) of Regulation S-K.

Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

10.1%

10.2%*

10.3%

10.4%

10.5%

10.6*

Document Description

Amended and Restated Articles
of Incorporation of Mitcham
Industries, Inc.

Second Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Mitcham Industries,
Inc.

Employment Agreement, dated
January 15, 1997, between
Mitcham Industries, Inc. and
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.

Separation Agreement and
Release, effective as of August 23,
2006, between Michael A. Pugh
and Mitcham Industries, Inc.

Mitcham Industries, Inc. 1994
Stock Option Plan

Mitcham Industries, Inc. 1994
Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan

Mitcham Industries, Inc. 1998
Stock Awards Plan

Amended and Restated 1998
Stock Awards Plan

Report or Registration Statement

SEC File or
Registration.
Number

Exhibit
Reference

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form
5-8, filed with the SEC on
August 9, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31,
2004, filed with the SEC on May
28, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Registration Statement on Form
S-1, filed with the SEC on
January 17, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 31, 2006, filed
with the SEC on September 12,
2606.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s proxy
staternent for the fiscal year
ended Januvary 31, 2007, filed
with the SEC on April 16, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s proxy
statement for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2007, filed
with the SEC on April 16, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s proxy
statement for the fiscal year
ended Janvary 31, 1998, filed
with the SEC on June 1, 1998,

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.
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000-25142

333-19997

000-25142

000-2514%

000-21542

000-25142

000-25142

3.1

3.2

10.4

10.1

10.3

10.4

Exhibit A

10.3




Exhibit
Number

10.7*%

10.8%

10.9*%

10.10*

10.11*

10.12%*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15%*

Document Description

Mitcham Industries, Inc. 2000
Stock Option Plan

Mitcham Industries, Inc. Stock
Awards Plan

Form of Nongualified Stock
Option Agreement under the
Mitcham Industries, Inc. Stock
Awards Plan

Form of Restricted Stock
Agreement under the Mitcham
Industries, Inc. Stock Awards
Plan

Form of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement under the Mitcham
Industries, Inc. Stock Awards
Plan

Form of Restricted Stock
Agreement

Form of Nonqualified Stock
Option Agreement

Form of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement

Form of Phantom Stock Award
Agreement :

Report or Registration Statement

Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit A of Mitcham Industries,
Inc.’s proxy statement for the
fiscal year ended January 31,
2000, filed with the SEC on May
26, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit A of Mitcham Industries,
Inc.’s proxy statement for the
fiscal year ended January 31,
2006, filed with the SEC on May
31, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 31, 2006, filed
with the SEC on September 12,
2006.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 31, 2006, filed
with the SEC on September 12,
2006.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 31, 2006, filed
with the SEC on September 12,
2006.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.'s
Current Report on Form 8-X,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-X,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.
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Exhibit

Number Reference
000-25142 Exhibit A
000-25142  Appendix A
000-25142 10.3
000-25142 10.4
000-25142 10.5
000-25142 10.1
000-25142 10.2
000-25142 10.4
000-25142 10.5




Exhibit
Number

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Document Description

Form of Stock Appreciation
Rights Agreement

Form of Incentive Stock Option
Agreement

Form of Nonqualified Stock
Option Agreement

Summary of Non-Employee
Director Compensation

Exclusive Lease Agreement,
dated Sepiember 12, 2006,
between Sercel, Inc. and
Mitcham Industries, Inc.

Loan Agreement, dated March 30,
2004, between Mitcham
Industries, Inc. and First Victoria
National Bank

Renewal Extension and
Modification Agreement, dated
January 31, 2007, between
Mitcham Industries, Inc. and First
Victoria Bank

Stock Purchase Agreement,
effective as of July 1, 2005,
between Mitcham Industries, Inc.
and Mark Welker, Tomoko
Welker, Chew Kok Lee
Pinnington, Michael Pinnington,
Timothy Pinnington and Phillip
Bull.

Amendment to Mitcham
Industries, Inc. 2000 Stock
Option Plan

Report or Registration Statement

SEC File or
Registration
Number

Exhibit
Reference

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
8, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.'s proxy
statement for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2007, filed
with the SEC on Apnil 16, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed with the SEC on September
12, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31,
2004, filed with the SEC on May
28, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s proxy
statement for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2007, filed
with the SEC on April 16, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form §-K,
filed with the SEC on July 15,
2005.

Incorporated by reference to
Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s proxy
statement for the fiscal year
ended January 31, 2007, filed
with the SEC on April 16, 2007.
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000-25142

000-25142

000-21542

000-25142

000-25142

000-21542

000-25142

000-21542

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.19

10.1

10.16

10.22

10.1

10.24




Exhibit
Number

10.25

10.26

21.1

23.1%

3L

31.2¢

32.1¢

32.2%

Document Description Report or Registration Statement

Form of Performance Award for Incorporated by reference to

the Mitcham Industries, Inc. Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s

Stock Awards Plan Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on October 21, 2007.

Form of Phantom Share Incorporated by reference to

Agreement for the Mitcham Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s

Industries, Inc. Stock Awards Current Report on Form 8-K filed

Plan on October 21, 2007.

Subsidiaries of Mitcham Incorporated by reference o

Industries, Inc. Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended January 31,
2006, filed with the SEC on May
10, 2006.

Consent of Hein & Associates
LLP

Cenification of Billy F. Mitcham,
Jr., Chief Executive Officer,
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act, as amended

Centification of Robenrt P. Capps,
Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to
Rule 13a-14{(a) and Rule 15d-14{a)
of the Securities Exchange Act, as
amended

Certification of Billy F. Mitcham,
Jr., Chief Executive Officer, under
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley
Act of 2002, 18 US.C. § 1350

Certification of Robert P. Capps,
Chief Financial Officer, under
Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley
Act of 2002, 18 US.C. § 1350
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 14th day of
April 2008.

MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.

By: /s/  Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.

Billy F. Mitcham, Jr.,
President and Chief Executive Qfficer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title/Capacity Date
/s/ BILLY F. MITCHAM, JR. President, Chief Executive Officer and April 14, 2008
Billy F. Mitcham, Jr. Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ ROBERT P. CAPPS Executive Vice President — Finance, April 14, 2008
Robert P. Capps Chief Financial Officer and Director

{Principal Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)

/s/ PETER H. BLUM Non-Executive Chairman of the Board April 14, 2008
Peter H. Blum

/s/ ROBERT J. ALBERS Director April 14, 2008
Robert J. Albers

/s/ JOHN F. SCHWALBE Director April 14, 2008
John F. Schwalbe

/s/  RANDAL DEAN LEWIS Director April 14, 2008
Randal Dean Lewis
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REerorT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors
Mitcham Industries, Inc.
Huntsville, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mitcham Industries, Inc. (the “Company™)
as of January 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and
comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2008. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basts, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Mitcham Industries, Inc. at January 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2008, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Mitcham Industries, Inc. internal control over financial reporting as of
January 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated April 15, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial staiements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, during the year ended January 31, 2007 and Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, during the year ended January 31, 2008.

Hein & Associates LLP

Houston, Texas
April 14, 2008




REerorT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

To the Board of Directors
Mitcham Industries, Inc.
Huntsville, Texas

We have audited Mitcham Industries, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2008,
based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal conirol over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a materiat effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements, Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of January 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Mitcham Industries, Inc. as of January 31, 2008 and 2007, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2008 and our report dated April 15, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Hein & Associates LLP

Houston, Texas
April 14, 2008
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MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 31,
2008 2007
(In thousands, except per
share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... ... ... i uiiiiuninrn it $ 13,884  $12,582
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,512 and $1,212 at

January 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively ........ ... ... .. i 12,816 11,823
Current portion of contracts receivable . ... ... .. ... o i o 2,964 1,787
INVEMLOTIES, NBL . o\ vt v s e e e e e e e et e ettt e et e e 6,352 7,308
Deferred tAX ASS8E . . o v vttt e et e e e e s 1,230 483
Prepaid expenses and other CUITent @SS€18 . . . ..o oottt 1,491 2,003

Total CUITENE ASSEIS . « « « v o v v vttt e e e e e e e ettt et e et e m et eee e e 38,737 35,986
Seismic equipment lease pool and property and equipment, net. .......... ... ... 53,179 35,432
Intangible assels, MEE . . ... ... .. it e 3,692 2,127
GoodWill . . . .. e e 4,358 3,358
Deferred taX ASSEE & o o o v vt e e e e e e e e 1,505 5,094
Long-term portion of contracts receivable and other assets .. .................. 2,430 1,305

TOAl ASSELS. © o v o v vt e e e e e e e e e e $103,901  $83,302

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current liabilities:

ACCOUNts payable. . . .. .. $ 16,729 $16,343
Current maturities — long-term debt. ... ... .. L 1,500 1,500
Income taxes pavable . .. ... .. s 1,967 328
Deferred TBVENUE . . .. .o ot e e s 872 948
Accrued expenses and other current Habilities . . ... oo 3,674 3,177

Total current Habilities . .. . .. . oo e 24,742 22,296
Non-currént income taxes payable . . ... . .. 3,301 —
Long-term debt . . ... ... e —_ 1,500

Total HabilIes . . . ..o i e 28,133 23,796
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11 & 15)
Shareholders™ equity:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 1,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding. . . ... e — —
Common stock $.01 par value; 20,000 shares authorized; 10,708 and 10,601 shares
issued at January 31, 2008 and January 31, 2007, respectively . ............. 107 106
Additional paid-in capital . . .. ... 71,929 67,385
Treasury stock, at cost (921 and 919 shares at January 31, 2008 and 2007,

FespPECtiVElY). . . oo e (4,805) (4,781)
Retained eamings (deficity . . ... o i e 662 (6,142)
Accumutated other comprehensive income . ... ... ... ... i e 7.875 2,938

Total shareholders” equity . . .. .. . i e 75,768 59,506

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . .... . ... it uan, $103,901  $83,302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Equipment 1easing . ... ...ttt $34.364  $24.942 322,104
Lease pool equipment sales. . . .. ...... ... ... ... . .. 3,488 4,297 5,218
Seamap equipment sales . . ... ... e 24,720 11,227 4,020
Other equipment sales . ........ ... ... ... i i 13.849 8,444 3,247
Total Tevenues . ... ..o e e e 76,421 48,910 34,589
Cost of sales:
Direct costs — equipment leasing . .. ... ... .. i 1,846 2,167 2,907
Direct costs — lease pool depreciation .. .............. ... ... ... 10,403 7612 8310
Cost of lease pool equipment sales . . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,019 1,961 950
Cost of Seamap and other equipment sales . ....................... 27,347 14,087 4,080
Impairment of lease pool assets. . ... ... . ... ... . . — — 617
Total cost of sales. . . .. ... ... .. ... ... 40,615 25,827 16,864
Gross profit. .. oo e e 35,806 23,083 17,725
Operating expenses:
General and administrative ... ... . 17.425 14,970 9437
Provision for doubtful accounts. . ... ... ... ... ... ...l 460 251 188
Depreciation and amortizalion. .. ... ... ... ... o e 1,476 1,307 648
Tolal Operating eXpenses . . . ... v vt ittt ian e i 19,361 16,528 10,273
Operating inCOME. . . . ... .. ... et 16,445 6,535 7,452
Other income (expense):
INterest INCOME. . . . ... e e e e 687 987 528
Interest EXPENSE . . . . o (208) (151) (106)
Other, Nel. . .. e 3 66 17
Total other income (EXPENSE). . . .. . .. ...t 482 902 439
Income before income taxes. ... ... ... .. L e e s 16,927 7.457 7,891
Provision {benefit) for income taxes .. . . ... . .. . i 5,488 (1.823) (2,964)
NetINCOME . ..ot e e e e e e $11,439 $ 9,285  $10.855
Net income per common share:
BasiC . L e e $ 1.18 § 097 § L19
Diluted. . . .. s $ LI & 093 % 1.10
Shares used in computing income per common share:
BasiC . . . 9,698 9,596 9.126
Diluted. .. .o 10,282 10,026 9.844

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Balances, January 31,2005, . ... ... .....
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income
Foreign currency transtation. . . .........

Comprehensive income. .. .. ..........

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
OPUONS. . oot e e
Amortization of restricted stock, net of
cancellations
Stock-based compensation. . . ..........
Balances, January 31,2006, .. ..........
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Netincome ......................
Foreign currency translation. . ..........

Comprehensive income . . .............

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
options, net of stock surrendered as
payment of option price. . ... ..... ...

Restricted stock issued . . ... ....... ...

Reclass of deferred compensation

Stock-based compensation. . .. ...... ...

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .

Balances, January 31,2007 .. ...........
Adjustment tp retained earnings upon
adoption of FIN 48 (Note 10)
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Netincome . ............. ..o
Foreign currency translation. . ... ..... ..

Comprehensive income . ... ...........

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
OPHONS . . ...t e

Issuance of commen stock upon exercise of
WATAMS . o\ v v e e en s
Restricted stock issued
Shares surrendered for payment of taxes
upon vesting of restricted stock . .. ... ..
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
and vesting of restricted stock . . . ... . ..
Stock-based compensation. . . ..........

Balances, January 31,2008. .. ... .......

Years Ended January 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

Accumulated
Other
Additional Retained Comprehensive
_Common Stock  “pyid.ln  Treasury (Deficit)  Deferred Income
Shares Amount Capital Stock  Earnings Compensation (Loss) Total
{In thousands)

9894 $99 $62,702 $(4,686) $(26,282) $(94) $2,138 $£33.877
— - — 10855 — — 10,855
— — — -— —_ 926 926

11,781
471 5 1,635 — — — — 1,640
3 - )] — — 86 —_ 77
= 76 - - = = _7
10,360 104 64,404  (4,686) (15427) 6] 3,064 47,451
- — — — 9,285 — — 9,285
- — — — — - (126) (126}
9,159

204 2 954 (95) — — — 861
37 — — —_ —_ — - —

- — (8) — — 3 — —
— — 1,645 — — — — 1,645
10,601 106 67,385 (4,781} (6,142) — 2,938 59,506
— — — — (4,635) — (4,635)

— — — — 11,439 — — 11,439
—_— — — — — — 4937 4937
16,376

65 l 281 — — — — 282

23 —_ 98 98

19 — 274 — — — —_ 274
— — — (24} — — — (24)

- — 1,912 — — — — 1,912
- = 1,979 — — = — 1,979
10,708 $107  $71,929 $(4,805) § 662 S;: $7.875 $75,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F-6




MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended January 31,
2008 2007 2006
{In thousands)

Cash flows from coperating activities:

NelinCOme . ... .. i i i e e e s $11,439  § 9285 $10,855
Adjustments to reconcile net income 10 net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization. . . ... ... ... ... i 11,879 8919 8,058
Impairment of lease pool assets. ... ...... ... ... . ... ... . ... .. — — 617
Stock-based compensation . ......... ... .. oo 2,253 1,645 153
Provision for doubtful accounts. . ........ ... ... ... ... ..., 461 251 188
Provision for inventory obsolescence. . . ........... ... . ... .. ... 348 144 —
Gross profit from sale of lease pool equipment .. ................ (2,469) (2,336) (4,268)
Excess tax benefit from exercise of non-qualified stock options . . .. .. (1,912) (390) —
Provision for deferred income taxes . ......................... 1,103 {2,523) (3,000)
Non-current income taxes payable. . ... ........ ... .. ....... 406 — —
Changes in:
Trade accounts and contracts receivable . ...................... (4,454) (6,778) (892)
INVENIONES . . .o e B47 (5,088) (268)
Current assets of discontinued operations, net . . ................. — 354 35
Income taxes payable . . ... ... ... ... ... . .. 2,924 295 2
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities . . . . . 7,627 1,054 (1,093
Prepaids and other, met .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... ... 552 (1,246) (86)
Net cash provided by operating activities. . . . ...... ... ....... 31,004 3,536 11,201
Cash flows from investing activities:
Sales from used lease pool equipment. . ........ ... ... . ... ... 3,488 4,297 5218
Acquisition of subsidiaries . .. .. ... ... .. ... L L (3,784) (1,000 (2,537
Purchases of short-term investments . . . ......................... — — {6,000)
Redemptions of short-term investments. . . ....................... — 2,550 3,450
Purchases of seismic equipment held for lease .................... (29,967) (12,868) (8,186)
Purchases of property and equipment . .......................... (886) (1,677) (784)
Long-term assets of discontinued operations . ... .................. — — 216
Net cash used in investing activities .. ...................... (31,149) (8,698) (8,623)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings . ....... ... ... .o il 4,500 — —_
Payments on borrowings. . .. ... .. i (6,000) — (918}
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of options and
warrants, net of shares surrendered during exercises .............. i56 861 1,640
Excess tax benefit from exercise of non-qualified stock options. ... . ... 1.912 390 —
Net cash provided by financing activities. . .. ................. 768 1,251 722
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents . . 679 5 —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. .. ............... 1,302 (3,856) 3,300
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ... .................... 12,582 16,438 13,138
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year. . ...................c.... ... $13,884 $12582 $16,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Mitcham Industries, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands, except for per share amounts)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization — Mitcham Industries, Inc., a Texas corporation (the “Company”™), was incorporated in 1987.
The Company, through its wholly owned Canadian subsidiary, Mitcham Canada, Ltd. ("MCL”") and its wholly
owned Russian subsidiary, Mitcham Seismic Eurasia LLC (*“MSE”), provides full-service equipment leasing, sales
and service to the seismic industry worldwide. The Company, through its wholly owned Australian subsidiary,
Seismic Asia Pacific Pty Ltd. (“SAP™), provides seismic, oceanographic and hydrographic leasing and sales
worldwide, primarily in Southeast Asia and Australia. The Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Seamap
International Holdings Pte, Ltd. (“Seamap”), designs, manufactures and sells a broad range of proprietary products
for the seismic, hydrographic and offshore industries with product sales and support facilities based in Huntsville,
Texas, Singapore and the United Kingdom. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Revenue Recognition of Leasing Arrangements — The Company leases various types of seismic equipment to
seismic data acquisition companies. The majority of leases at January 31, 2008 and 2007 are for one year or less,
Lease revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the lease. The Company does not enter into leases with
embedded maintenance obligations. The standard lease provides that the lessee is responsible for maintenance and
repairs 1o the equipment, excluding normal wear and tear. The Company provides technical advice to its customers
without additional compensation as part of its customer service practices. Repairs or maintenance performed by the
Company is charged to the lessee, generally on a time and materials basis,

Revenue Recognition of Equipment Sales — Revenues and cost of goods sold from the sale of equipment is
recognized upon acceptance of terms and when delivery has occurred, unless there is a question as to its
collectibility. In cases where the equipment sold is manufactured by others, the Company believes it is appropriately
reporting revenues at gross because the Company (1) is the obligor in the sales arrangement; (2) has full latitude in
pricing the product for sale; (3) has general inventory risk should there be a problem with the equipment being sold
to the customer or if the customer does not complete payment for the items purchased; (4) has discretion in supplier
selection if the equipment ordered is not unique to one manufacturer: and (5) assumes credit risk for the equipment
sold to its customers.

Presentation — In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ratified Emerging Issues
Task Force 06-3 (“EITF 06-3") How Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities
Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation), 10 address the presentation
of taxes in the income statement. Qur accounting policy is to present the taxes within the scope of EITF 06-3 on a net
basis. Our adoption of EITF 06-3 at the beginning of fiscal 2008 had no impact on our consolidated results of
operations.

Contracts receivable — In connection with the sale of seismic equipment, the Company will from time to time
accept a contract receivable as partial consideration. These contracts bear interest at a market rate and generally
have terms of less than two years. Interest income on contracts receivable is recognized when accrued, unless there
is a question as to collectibility in which case it is recognized when received.

Allowance for doubtful accounts — Trade receivables are uncollateralized customer obligations due under
normal trade terms. The carrying amount of trade receivables and contracts receivable is reduced by a valuation
allowance that reflects management’s estimate of the amounts that will not be collected, based on historical
experience with specific customers and general economic and industry conditions. Amounts are written-off when
collection is deemed unlikely. Past due amounts are determined based on contractual terms.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three
months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Short-term Investments — The Company considers all highly liguid investments with an original maturity
greater than three months, but less than twelve months, to be short-term investments.
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Mitcham Industries, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Inventories — Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost (which approximates first-in, first-out) or
market. An allowance for obsolescence is maintained to cover any materials or parts that may become obsolete.
Inventories are periodically monitored to ensure that the reserve for obsolescence covers any obsolete items.

Seismic Equipment Lease Pool — Seismic equipment held for lease consists primarily of recording channels
and peripheral equipment and is carried at cost, net of accumutated depreciation. Depreciation is computed on the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the equipment, which are five to seven years for channel
boxes and two to ten years for other peripheral equipment. As this equipment is subject to technological
obsolescence and wear and tear, no salvage value is assigned to it. The Company continues to lease seismic
equipment after it has been fully depreciated if it remains in acceptable condition and meets acceptable technical
standards. This fully depreciated equipment remains in fixed assets on its books. Fully depreciated asset that are not
expected to generate future revenues are removed from its books.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment.
The estimated useful lives of equipment range from three to seven years. Buildings are depreciated over 40 years
and property improvements are amortized over 10 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of
useful life or the life of the respective leases. No salvage value is assigned to property and equipment.

Intangible Assers — Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization is
computed on a straight-line method over the estimated life of the asset. Covenants-not-to-compete are amortized
over a three-year period. Proprietary rights are amortized over a 12.5 to 15-year period.

Impairment — The Company applies Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) 144, Account-
ing For the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS 1447}, to its long-lived assets, including its
amortizable intangible assets. SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued operations.

The Company, under guidance of SFAS 142 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, performs an impairment test
on goodwill on an annual basis. No impaitment charges related to goodwill were recorded during fiscal 2006, 2007 or 2008.

Income Taxes — The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method, whereby the Company
recognizes, on a current and long-term basis, deferred tax assets and liabilities which represent differences between
the financial and income tax reporting bases of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on temporary differences between income and expenses reported for financial reporting and tax
reporting. The Company has assessed, using all available positive and negative evidence. the likelihood that the
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income.

Under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Tuxes (“SFAS 1097) an enterprise must use judgment in
considering the relative impact of negative and positive evidence. The weight given to the potential effect of
negative and positive evidence should be commensurate with the extent to which it can be objectively verified. The
more negative evidence that exists (a) the more positive evidence is necessary and (b) the more difficult it is to
support a conclusion that a valuation allowance is not needed for some portion of, or all of, the deferred 1ax asset.
Among the more significant types of evidence considered are:

* taxable income projections in future years;
* whether the carry forward period is so brief that it would limit realization of tax benefits;

« future sales and operating cost projections that will produce more than enough taxable income 1o realize the
deferred tax asset based on existing sales prices and cost structures; and

 earnings history exclusive of the loss that created the future deductible amount coupled with evidence
indicating that the loss is an aberration rather than a continuing condition.

Effective February 1. 2007, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48
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Mitcham Industries, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

requires that the financial statement effects of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return to be
recognized in the financial statements when it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the position
will be sustained upon examination. The cumulative effect of applying FIN 48 was $4.635 and was recorded as an
adjustment to the February 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings,

Use of Estimates — The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the Company’s management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in these consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Estimates are used for, but not limited to allowance for doubtful accounts, lease pool
valuations, valuation allowance on deferred tux assets, depreciable lives of fixed assets and intangible assets,
impairment of fixed assets and intangible assets and the valuation of stock options. Future events and their effects
cannot be perceived with certainty. Accordingly, these accounting estimates require the exercise of judgment. The
accounting estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements will change as new events
occur, as more experience is acquired, as additional information is obtained and as the Company’s operating
environment changes. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Substantial judgment is necessary in the determination of the appropriate levels for the Company’s allowance
for doubtful accounts because of the extended payment terms the Company often offers to its customers and the
limited financial wherewithal of many of these customers. As a result, the Company’s allowance for doubtful
accounts could change in the future, and such change could be material to the financial statements taken as a whole.
The Company must also make substantial judgments regarding the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets. The
Company is required to record a valuation allowance to reduce its net deferred tax assets to the amount that the
Company believes is more likely than not to be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the
Company has considered all positive and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities,
prudent and feasible tax planning strategies, projected future taxable income and recent financial performance.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Company’s financial instruments consist of trade receivables,
contracts receivable and accounts payable. Due to the short maturities of these financial instruments, the Company
believes that their fair value approximates their carrying amounts. In connection with the Seamap acquisition, the
Company has $1,500 in promissory notes payable to the shareholders of Seamap. The Company believes the
carrying value of the notes payable approximates the estimated fair value because of the short maturity of the notes
payable.

Foreign Currency Translation — All balance sheet accounts of the Canadian, Australian, Singapore, United
Kingdom and Russian subsidiaries have been translated at the current exchange rate as of the end of the accounting
period. Statement of operations items have been translated at average currency exchange rates. The resulting
translation adjustment is recorded as a separale component of comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity.

Stock-Based Compensation — Effective February 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R") using the modified
prospective transition method. Under this method, stock-based compensation expense recognized for share-based
awards during the fiscal year ended January 31, 2008 and 2007 includes: (a) compensation expense for all stock-
based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, February 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair
value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation (“SFAS 123™); and (b) compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted
subsequent to February 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 123R. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, results for the prior periods have not
been restated. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“"APB
257y and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS 123,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)

Earnings Per Share — Net income per basic common share is computed using the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Net income per diluted common share is computed using the
weighted average number of common shares and potential common shares outstanding during the period. Potential
common shares result from the assumed exercise of outstanding common stock options having a dilutive effect
using the treasury stock method, from unvested shares of restricted stock using the treasury stock method and from
outstanding common stock warrants. For the fiscal years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the following
table sets forth the number of dilutive shares that may be issued pursuant to options, restricted stock and warrants
outstanding used in the per share calculations.

Year Ended January 31,
008 2007 2006

SOck OPtONS. . . . oo e 554 409 706
Restricted stock . . . .. . .. e 23 10 —
W arrants . e 7 1 12

Total dilutive shares . . . ... ... .. . 584 430 718

Anti-dilutive weighted shares of common stock of 138, 137 and 43 for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively, have been excluded from the effect of dilutive shares.

Reclassifications — Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the results of operations or comprehensive income,

2. New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements (“'SFAS 1577), to define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value and expands
disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities, SFAS 157 requires quantitative disclosures
using a tabular format in all periods (interim and annual} and qualitative disclosures about the valuation technigues
used to measure fair value in all annual periods. SFAS 157 will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning
February 1, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of SFAS 157 will have on its
consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In February 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 expands opportunities to use fair value measurements in financial reporting and
permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS 159 will
be effective for the Company on February 1, 2008, The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
SFAS 159 on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB revised SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R™), which is
effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008. Early application is not permitted before that date.
SFAS 141R requires assets and liabilities recorded in a business combination to be recorded at fair value and
replaces the cost-allocation process under the prior standard. In addition, SFAS 141R requires separate recognition
of acquisition costs and requires recognition of contractual contingencies at fair value as of the acquisition date.
Further, the revised standard requires capitalization of research and development assets and requires fair value
recognition of contingent consideration as of the acquisition date. The Company is currently evaluating the impact
of adopting SFAS 159 on its consolidated financial statements, which will be effective for the Company on
February 1, 2009,

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 160, Non-Conrrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, An Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51
(“SFAS 160™), which is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on
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or after December 15, 2008. Early application is not permitted before that date. SFAS 160 changes the terminology
of minority interests, which will now be known as non-controlling interest and requires that non-controlling
interests be clearty identified within stockholders’ equity as a separate component from the parent company’s
equity and net income or loss attributable to non-controlling interests be clearly identified and presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of operations. In addition, the standard requires adequate disclosure between interests
of the parent company and interests of the non-controlling equity holders. The Company does not expect that this
pronouncement will have a significant impact on its financial condition or results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 (“SFAS 1617}, which
is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after November 15, 2008,
Early application is encouraged. SFAS 161 changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and
hedging activities. Entities are required to provide enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why an entity uses
derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instrumenis and related hedged items are accounted for under Statement
133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. The Statement requires that objectives for using
derivative instruments be disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. In addition, the
standard requires tabular disclosure of fair value of derivative instruments and their gains and loss, requires
disclosure regarding credit risk related contingent features of the Company’s derivative instruments and requires
cross referencing within the footnote disclosures regarding information about derivative instruments. The Company
does not expect that this pronouncement will have a significant impact on its financial condition or results of
operations.

3. Supplemental Statements of Cash Flows Information

Supplemental disclosures of cash flows information for the years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are
as foilows:

Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006
Interest paid . .. .. ... .. ... . $ 233 % 157 $ 22
Taxes paid, NEL . . . ... . i e e 968 239 —
Note payable issued to prior owners of Seamap ... .............. — — 3,000
Seismic equipment acquired in exchange for cancellation of accounts
receivable . ... ... ... — — 192
Seismic equipment purchases included in accounts payable at year-end .. 8,566 12,600 —
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4. Inventories

Inventories stated at the lower of average cost (which approximales first-in, first-out) or market consisted of the
following:

As of January 31,

2w8 27
Raw matenials . ... ... .. . . i i e e $3.565  $3,996
Finished goods . . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... e 898 2,023
Work i Progress . .. .. . e e e (2,693 1,686

Costof INVentories . .. ... ... ... ittt it i e 7,156 7,705
Less allowance for obsolescence . . ... . oottt i e e e e _ (804 _ (397)

Netinventonies . . ...t e $6,252  §7.308

5. Contracts Receivable

Contracts receivable consisted of $3,360, due from five customers as of January 31, 2008 and $3,077 due from
three customers as of January 31, 2007, These contracts bear interest ranging from 8% — 12% with repayment
terms ranging from 12 to 24 months. All contracts are secured by the equipment sold. All of the contracts receivable
are considered collectible, and no allowances have been established for them.

6. Seismic Equipment Lease Pool and Property and Equipment

Seismic equipment lease pool and property and equipment consisted of the following as of:
As of January 31,

2008 2007

Recording channels . . ......... ... ... ... i $ 60,287 $ 44,148
Other peripheral equipment . .. ... ... . . i 56,389 44,153

Cost of seismic equipment lease pool .. ........ ... ... ... ........ 116,676 88,301
Landand buildings .. ..... ... . ... .. .. . . . . 366 366
Fumniture and fixtures. . .. ... ... . L e 5,026 4,347
Autos and (TUCKS . . ... ... e 605 382

Cost of property and equipment . .............. ... .. .. 5,997 5,095
Cost of seismic equipment lease pool and property and equipment . ... .. .. 122,673 93,396
Less accumulated depreciation . . ... ........ ... .. .. ... ... ... (69.494)  (57,964)

Net book value of seismic equipment lease pool and property and

LT o 1 =1 o $ 53,179 $ 35432
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As of January 31,

2008 2007
Location of seismic equipment lease pool and property and equipment:
UNIted SEALES . o o oo v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $19,602  $12,969
Canada . . . . o e e e e e e 27,108 18,062
AUSITAIIA. © . . ot e e e e e e e e e e e 1,861 1,057
RUSS A & ot vt e e et e e e e e e e e e e 3,399 1,965
I aPOTE . . . . o e e e 634 623
United Kingdom . . . .. ... .. s 575 756
BT $53,179  $35.432
7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Weighted As of January 31, 2008 As of January 31, 2007
Average (iross Net Gross Net

Remaining  Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Life at 1/31/08 Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Goodwill . ................. $4,358 $3,358

Proprietary rights. . ... ....... 12.5 $388 5 (333) $3.553 $1.850 $(195)  $1,655
Covenants not-to-compete . . . .. 0.4 1,000 (861) 139 1,000 (528) 472
Amortizable intangible assets. . . $4,886  $(1,194) $3,692 $2,850 $(723)  $2,127

In December 2007, the Company acquired all intellectual proprietary rights related to the source controller
software utilized in the Seamap GunLink product line from Tanglesolve Instrumentation Ltd. (Tanglesolve) for
£1,400 or approximately $2,784. This software had been developed by Tanglesolve under a cooperation agreement
with Seamap. The acquired proprietary rights were assigned a life of 12.5 years, which equates to the remaining life
of the GunLink design, as the software is an integral part of the design.

Amortizable intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives of three to 15 years using the
straight-line method. Aggregate amortization expense was $471, $457 and $266 for the years ended January 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of January 31, 2008, future estimated amortization expense related to
amortizable intangible assets is estimated to be:

For fiscal year ended January 31,

2000 L e s $ 425
2000 o e 286
0 S I 286
11 286
2013 and thereafter .. ... ... ... . e e _2,409

TOtal . . ot e e $3.692

As of January 31, 2008, the Company had goodwill of $4,358. No impairment has been recorded against the
goodwill account. The Company increased goodwill by $1,000 during fiscal 2008 for the earn-out payment paid to
the former shareholders of Seamap in July 2007,
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8. Long-Term Debt and Notes Payable

On June 27, 2005, the Company entered into a $12,500 revolving loan agreement with First Victoria National
Bank (the “Bank™), On February 1, 2007, the facility was amended to extend its term to February 1, 2009. The
facility bears interest at the prime rate. Amounts available for borrowing under the facility are determined by a
borrowing base. The borrowing base is computed based on certain outstanding accounts receivable, certain portions
of the Company’s lease pool and any lease pool assets that are to be purchased with proceeds of the facility.
Borrowings under the facility are secured by essentially all of the Company’s domestic assets. Interest on any
outstanding principal balance is payable monthly, while the principal is due at maturity. The loan agreement also
contains certain financial covenants that require, among other things, that the Company maintain a debt to
shareholder’s equity ratio of a maximum of 1.3 to 1.0, maintain a current assets to current liabilities ratio of a
minimum of 1.25 to 1.0, and not incur or maintain any indebtedness or obligations or guarantee the debts or
obligations of others in a total aggregate amount which exceeds $1,000 without the prior written approval of the
Bank, except for indebtedness incurred as a result of the Seamap acquisition and other specific exceptions. As of
January 31, 2008, no amounts were outstanding under this arrangement. In March 2008 we borrowed $4,000 under
this facility.

In connection with the Seamap acquisition in July 2005, the Company issued $3,000 in promissory notes
payable to the former shareholders of Seamap. The notes bear interest at 5%, which is payable annually on the
anniversary of the notes. The first principal payment of $1,500 was paid in July 2007 and the remaining principal
balance is due in July 2008.

9. Shareholders’ Equity

The Company has 1,000 shares of preferred stock authorized, none of which were outstanding as of January 31,
2008 and 2007. The preferred stock may be issued in multiple series with various terms, as authorized by the
Company’s Board of Directors. The Company has 20,000 shares of common stock authorized, of which 10,708 and
10,601 are issued as of January 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In July 2001, in exchange for services, the Company issued warrants to an investment banking firm to purchase
20 shares of its common stock for $5.00 per share. As a result of the anti-dilution provisions of those warrants, the
exercise price of the warrants was reduced to $4.42 per share and the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
warrants increased by approximately 3 shares. The 23 warrants were exercised in July 2007.

During fiscal 2008, approximately 2 shares were surrendered in exchange for payment of taxes due upon the
vesting of restricted shares. The shares had an average fair value of $16.36.
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Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense {benefit) were as follows:
Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006
Income before income taxes is attributable to the following
jurisdictions:
DOMESHC .ot e e $6297 $3,143 3550668
FOreign. . o i e e 10,630 4,314 2,223
Total ... e e $16,927 $7457 §$7,891
The components of income tax expense (benelit) were as follows:
Current: )
Federal . ... ... .. . e $291 $ 406 35 130
Foreign . ... ... ... . 1,078 289 (94)
Non-current taxes payable . . ........... ... ... .. ...... 406 — —
4,385 695 36
Deferred:
Federal . ...... ... . .o (898) 316 (1,169)
Foreign . .. ... ... .. 2,001 (2,839 (1,831)
Income tax expense (benefit). . ....... ... ... ... ... ...... $ 5488  $(1,828) $(2,964)

The following is a reconciliation of expected to actual income tax (benefit) expense:
Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006

Federal income tax expense at 34%. . . ... ... ... ... ... ..... $5,755 $12534 %2683
Tax credit uiliZation . . . . ..ot e e e e — —_ (105)
Utilization of valuation allowance . . ........ ... ... — — (2,921)
Reversal/release of valuation allowance . . .. ................... — (5,954) (3,000)
Decrease in foreign effective tax rate. . .. ... ....... ... ...... 26 1,032 —
Foreign exchange gain ... ........ ... ... ... iy 76 631 —
Permanent differences. . .. . ... ... . ... ... ... ... 42 (131 27
Foreign effective tax rate differential . . .. ........ .. .. ... .. ... (567) (198) 258
Other ... e e e (250) 258 94
Potential tax, penalties and interest resulting from uncertain tax

POSIHONS . . L L e e 406 — —

$5.488  $(1,828) $(2,964)
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The components of the Company’s deferred taxes consisted of the following as of:

As of January 31,

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets:
Foreign net operating loss carry forwards .. .......... ... ... ... . .... $2210 $3472
U.S. net operating loss carry forward attributable to excess stock option
deductions . . ...ttt — 1,582
Tax credit carry forwards ... ... ... .. 2,107 1,115
Stock option book expense under FAS 123R . ................... ..... 1,276 524
Depreciation difference. . ... .. ... .. L 481 482
Allowance for doubtful accounts. .. ....... ... ... . it 450 376
Allowance for inventory obsolescence. .. ........ ... ... .. ... 236 68
Impairment of fixed assets .. ....... ... .. . .. . e — 166
Accruals not yet deductible for tax purposes . . ..... ... ... .. ... 543 137
Gross deferred tax asSels ... oottt 7,303 7,922
Valuation allowance . ... .. .. e - (1,583)
Deferred tax 88818 . . . .. vttt e e e 7,303 6,339
Deferred tax liabilities:
Undistributed eamnings of controlled foreign corporations not permanently
reinvested . . . ... .. e (2,312) (664)
Non-deductible intangible assets . ... ....... ... ... ... ... (606) —
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (loss) . ............ ... ... ... .... — (98)
Deferred tax liabilities . .... ... ... . ... ... .. .. ... ... ... ... . ... (2,918) (762)
Effect of uncertain tax positions . . ....... ... .. . ... . . i (1,650) —
Fotal deferred tax assets, MEL. . . ...t v i vt e e e e e, $2735  §$5577

The Company had Canadian net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $5,933 (Canadian $5,946) as
of January 31, 2008. The Canadian net operating losses will begin to expire in 2020. The Company had
United Kingdom net operating toss carry forwards of approximately $1,056 (£531) as of January 31, 2008, which
carry forward indefinitely.

The Company had Australian foreign tax withholding credit carry forwards of approximately $174 (Australian
$194) as of January 31, 2008. The Australian foreign tax withholding credits will begin to expire in 2011. The
Company also recorded a deferred tax asset for potential foreign tax credits associated with undistributed earnings
of controlled foreign corporations not permanently reinvested of approximately $1,933.

The Company reduced its valuation allowance of approximately $1,583 as of January 31, 2007 to zero at
January 31, 2008. The valuation allowance as of January 31, 2007 related to the U.S operating loss carry forward
attributable to excess stock option deductions. The U.S. net operating loss carry forward is fully utilized as of
January 31, 2008 and the benefit of the excess stock opticn deductions realized. Therefore, the valuation allowance
related to the U.S. net operating loss carryforward has been reversed, and the benefit of the excess stock option
deduction has been credited to additional paid-in-capital.

As of January 31, 2008, the Company had unrecognized tax benefits amounting to approximately $5,041
attributable to uncertain tax positions. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters
as a component of income tax expense. The unrecognized tax benefits attributable to uncertain tax positions include
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accrued interest and penalties of $1,163. Income tax expense for the year ended January 31, 2008 includes $406
attributable to uncertain tax positions, including $390 of potential penalties and interest.

The Company’s U.S. federal income tax returns for certain prior periods will close during the year ended
January 31, 2009, unless extended by examination or agreement. Also, the tax returns of MCL, the Company’s
Canadian subsidiary, for the years ended January 31, 2004 through the year ended January 31, 2007 are being
examined by Canadian federal tax authorities. Accordingly, it is reasonably possible that some uncertain tax
positions wili be resolved within the next twelve months. Should these uncertain tax positions be resolved, the
amount of unrecognized tax benefits would decrease by up to approximately $1,835.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding potential
penalties and interest, is as follows:

Year Ended
January 31, 2008

Unrecognized tax benefits as of February 1, 2007 . ... ... ... ... oo oot $(3,862)
Increases as a result of tax positions taken in prior years . . .. ................. (16)
Increases as a result of tax positions taken in current year . . . .. ... ... ... ..... —_
SellEmMEIIS . . . L. e —
Lapse of statute of limitations. . .. ...... ... .. ... ... . .. . ., —
Unrecognized tax benefits as of Janvary 31,2008 .. ................... .. ... $(3,878)

Recognition of the unrecognized tax benefits of $3,878 would have an effect on the effective tax rate.

The Company files U.S. federal income tax returns as well as separate returns for its foreign subsidiaries within
their local jurisdictions. The Company’s tax returns may be subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS™) for fiscal year ending January 31, 2005 through 2007. Additionally, any net operating losses that were
generated in prior years and utilized in these years may also be subject to examination by the IRS. The Company’s
tax returns may also be subject to examination by state and local revenue authorities for fiscal years ended
January 31, 2005 through 2007.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Purchase Obligations — At January 31, 2008, the Company had approximately $3,101 in purchase orders
outstanding. The purchase orders were issued in the normal course of business, and are expected 10 be fulfilled
within 180 days of January 31, 2008.

12, Stock Option Plans

Effective February 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified prospective
transition method. Under this method, stock-based compensation expense recognized for share-based awards
during the year ended January 31, 2008 includes: (i) compensation expense for all stock-based compensation
awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, February 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123; and (ii) compensation expense for all stock-based com-
pensation awards granted subsequent to February 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, results for the
prior periods have not been restated. Prior to the adoption of SFAS {23R, the Company recognized stock-based
compensation expense in accordance with APB 25 and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS 123.

At January 31, 2008, the Company had stock-based compensation plans as described in more detail below. The
total compensation expense related to stock-based awards granted under these plans during the years ended
Janvary 31, 2008 and 2007, was approximately $2,253 and $1,645, respectively. The total compensation expense
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related to stock-based awards granted under these plans during the year ended January 31, 2006, reflecting
compensation expense recognized in accordance with APB 25, was approximately $86. Effective February 1, 2006,
the Company recognized stock-based compensation costs net of a forfeiture rate for only those shares expected to
vest over the requisite service period of the award. The Company estimated the forfeiture rate tor fiscal 2008 and
2007 based on its historical experience regarding employee terminations and forfeitures.

The fair value of each option award is estimated as of the date of grant using a Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing formula. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock over a preceding period
commensurate with the expected term of the option. For fiscal year 2008, the expected term was based upon
historical exercise patterns. The “simplified” method described in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 was used
to determine the expected term of the options for fiscal 2007. The risk-free rate for the expected term of the option is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend yield was not considered in
the option pricing formula since the Company does not pay dividends and has no plans to do s in the future, The
weighted average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
was $9.79, $8.53 and $5.88, respectively. The assumptions for the periods indicated are noted in the following table.

Weighted average Black-Scholes-Merton fair value assumptions
Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006
Risk free interestrate .. .. ...................... 29-49% 4.7-52% 3.0%
Expected life .. ...... ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ... 34-59 yrs 39-6.3 yrs 8 yrs
Expected volatility . ........................... 53 - 58% 54 -67% 67 - 68%
Expected dividend yield .. ........ ... ... ... .. ..., 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

In addition, prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company presented all tax benefits related 1o deductions
resulting from the exercise of stock options, if any, as operating activities in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. SFAS 123R requires that cash flows resulting from tax benefits attributable to tax deductions in excess of the
compensation expense recognized for those options {excess tax benefits) be classified as financing in-flows and
operating out-flows. The Company had excess tax benefits of approximately $1.912 and $390 during the years
ended January 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company has share-based awards outstanding under five different plans: the 1994 Stock Option Plan
(“1994 Plan™), the 1998 Amended and Restated Stock Awards Plan (1998 Plan™), the 2000 Stock Option Plan
(+2000 Plan™), the Mitcham Industries, Inc. Stock Awards Plan (“2006 Plan™) and the 1994 Non-Employee Director
Plan {**Director Plan™), (collectively, the “Plans™). Stock options granted and outstanding under each of the plans
generally vest evenly over three years {except for the Director Plan, under which options generally vest afier one
year) and have a 10-year contractual term. The exercise price of a stock option generally is equal to the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the option grant date. All Plans except for the 2006 Plan have been closed
for future grants. All shares available but not granted under the 1998 Plan and the 2000 Plan as of the date of the
approval of the 2006 Plan were transferred to the 2006 Plan. As of January 31, 2008, there were approximately
636 shares available for grant under the 2006 Ptan, The 2006 Plan provides for awards of nonqualified stock options,
incentive stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and phantom stock. New shares are issued for
restricted stock and upon the exercise of options.
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Stock Based Compensation Activity

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s stock option activity for the year ended January 31,
2008:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Price Term (In Years) Value
Outstanding, January 31,2007 . ................ 1,208 $ 7.57
Granted . ... ... e e 257 18.67
Exercised . . ..o v it i e e (72) 3,88
Forfeited .. ... . e (2) 13.19
Expired . ..... .. i (1} 16.64
Qutstanding, Janvary 31, 2008. . ................ 1,390 $ 9.80 6.59 $10,304
Exercisable at January 31,2008. .. .............. 899 § 635 5.30 $ 9,481
Vested and expected to vest at January 31,2008 . ... 1276 $10.03 7.11 $10,240

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference
between the Company’s closing stock price on the last trading day of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and the
exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options on January 31, 2008. This amount changes based upon the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock. Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the years ended
January 31, 2008 and 2007 was $1,064 and $2,863, respectively. The fair value of options that vested during the
years ended January 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately $1,017 and $1,153, respectively. For the year ended
January 31, 2008, approximately 137 options vested.

As of January 31, 2008, there was approximately $2,390 of total unrecognized compensation expense related
to unvested stock options granted under the Company’s share-based compensation plans. That expense is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.32 years.

Cash received from option exercises for the year ended January 31, 2008 was an aggregate of approximately
$278. During the year ended January 31, 2008, income taxes payable were reduced by approximately $1,912 as a
result of the tax deduction from option exercises, of which amount approximately $1,583 came from utilization of
related net operating losses.

Restricted stock awards as of January 31, 2008 and changes during the year ended January 31, 2008 were as
follows:

Year Ended Januvary 31, 2008

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested, beginning of period .. ....... .. ... ... ... . ... 38 $13.10
Granted . ... . e e e 18 i9.46
Vested . .. ... e e e (14) 13.61
Canceled . ... e e e e — —
Unvested, end of period .. .. ........ ... .. . ool 42 $15.60

As of January 31, 2008, there was approximately $303 of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense
related to unvested restricted stock awards. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
1.1 years.
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Had compensation cost for options granted prior to February 1, 2006 been determined based on the grant date

fair value as prescribed by SFAS 123, the Company’s pro forma net income and pro forma net income per share
would have been as follows:

Year Ended
January 31, 2006

Pro ferma impact of fair value method
Reported income from continuing operations attributable to common shareholders . . $10,855
Less: fair value impact of employee stock compensation . .................... {1,104)
Pro forma income from continuing operations attributable to common

Shareholders . . . . . . o % 9751
Reported net income . .. ... ... . . e $10,855
Income (loss) per common share
Basic —as reported net income . .. .. ... L. $ 119
Diluted — as reported NELINCOME . . .. . ... .o ittt et $ 110
Basic —pro forma nel inCome . .. ... ... .. ... .. e $ 107
Diluted —pro forma net income. . . . ... ..o ittt e e $ 099

13. Segment Reporting

The following information is disclosed as required by SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information.

The Equipment Leasing segment offers for lease or sale, new and “experienced” seismic equipment to the oil
and gas industry, seismic contractors, environmental agencies, government agencies and universities. The Equip-
ment Leasing segment is headquartered in Huntsville, Texas, with sales and services offices in Calgary, Canada;
Brisbane, Australia; Ufa, Bashkortostan, Russia.

On July 12, 2005, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common stock of Seamap. Seamap is
engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of state-of-the-art seismic and offshore telemetry systems. Manu-
facturing, support and sales facilities are maintained in the UK and Singapore with a sales office in Huntsville,
Texas.

Financial information by business segment is set forth below net of any allocations (in thousands):

As of January 31, 2008 As of January 31, 2007 As of January 31, 2006
Equipment Equipment Equipment
Leasing  Seamap Consolidated Leasing Seamap Consolidated Leasing  Seamap Consolidated
Fixed assets, net . .. ..... 52560 $1209 $53,179 $34,523 $1,378 $35432 $19694 $§ 230 $19294
Intangible assets, net . . . . . — 3,692 3,692 — 2,127 2,127 — 2,584 2,584
Goodwill ............. — 4,358 4,358 — 3,358 3,358 — 2,358 2,358
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For the Year Ended

January 31, 2008 January 31, 2007 January 31, 2006
Equipment Equipment Equipment
Leasing  Seamap Consolidated Leasing Seamap Consolidated Leasing Seamap Consolidated

Revenmes . .............. $51,701  §25383  $76,421 $37.683  $12274  $43910 $30,569  $4,020  $34,589
Interest income (expense), net . . 720 (235) 479 925 (89 836 418 4 422
Income (loss) before taxes .. .. 15422 1,562 16,927 10,793 (2,869) 7457 8322 (431) 7,891
Capital expenditures . ....... 31,013 407 30,853 13,591 1,423 14,545 8,857 113 8.970
Depreciation and amortization

EXPENSE . . o v v e 10,948 1,075 11,879 8,074 857 8,919 8,649 309 8,958

Approximately $663 and $1,047 related to sales from Seamap to the Equipment Leasing segment is eliminated
in the consolidated revenues for the fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively. Consolidated income before taxes
reflect the elimination of $57 and $416 of profit from intercompany sales for the fiscal years 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Capital expenditures and fixed assets are reduced by approximately $567 and $469 for the fiscal years
2008 and 2007, respectively, which represents the difference between the sales price and the cost to manufacture the
equipment.

14, Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year April 30 July 31 October 31 January 31

Netrevenues: . ........ccoovvaee-- 2008 $23,014  $15,399 $17.205 $20,803
‘ 2007 14,115 10,959 12,741 11,095
Grossprofit: ......... ... ... ..... 2008 10,104 6,573 9,276 9,853
2007 7,297 5,132 5910 4,744
Income before income taxes: ........ 2008 5,809 2,651 4,014 4,453
2007 3,623 1,204 2,539 91
Incomes taxes (benefit): ......... ... 2008 1,869 930 1,583 1,106
. 2007 184 (49) (1,324) (639

Net iNCOME; .. . vt e it iieenan 2008 3,940 1,721 2,431 3,347
2007 3,439 1,253 3,863 730
Income per common share — basic: . . . 2008 $ 041 $ 018 % 025 5 034
2007 $ 036 § 0.13 $ 040 $ 008

Income per common share —
diluted: ........ ... . ... .. ... 2008 $ 039 § 0.17 $ 024 $ 032
2007 $ 033 % 012 $ 038 $ 007

15. Leases

The Company leases seismic equipment to customers under operating leases with non-cancelable terms of one
year or less. These leases are generally renewable on a month-to-month basis. All taxes (other than income taxes)
and assessments are the contractual responsibility of the lessee. To the extent that foreign taxes are not paid by the
lessee, the relevant foreign taxing authorities might seek to collect such taxes from the Company. Under the terms of
its lease agreements, any amounts paid by the Company to such foreign taxing authorities may be billed and
collected from the lessee. If the Company is unable to collect the foreign taxes it paid on behalf of its lessees, the
Company may have foreign tax credits in the amounts paid which could be applied against its U.S. income tax
liability subject to certain limitations. The Company is not aware of any foreign tax obligations as of January 31,
2008 and 2007 that are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The Company leases seismic equipment, as well as other equipment from others under operating leases. Lease

expense incurred by the Company in connection with such leases amounted to $749, $659 and $1,104 for the years
ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company leases its office and warehouse facilities in Canada, Australia, Singapore, United Kingdom and
Russia under operating leases. Office rental expense for the years ended January 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was
$731, $524 and $326, respectively.

Aggregale minimum lease payments for operating leases are as follows:

For fiscal years ending:

2000 L e e e e e $811
2000 e e e $587
11 1 1 $469
.1 $364
2013 and thereafter . . . .. . . e e e e e $599

16. Concentrations

Credit Risk — As of January 31, 2008 and 2007, amounts due from customers that exceeded 10% of
consolidated accounts receivable amounted to an aggregate of approximately $2,861 and $2,247, respectively
from one customer.

The Company maintains deposits and certificates of deposit with banks which exceed the Federal Deposit
[nsurance Corporation {“FDIC”} insured limit and money market accounts which are not FDIC insured. In addition,
deposits aggregating approximately $7,688 at January 31, 2008 are held in foreign banks. Management believes the
risk of loss in connection with these accounts is minimal.

Industry Concentration — The Company’s revenues are derived from seismic equipment leased and sold to
companies providing seismic acquisition services. The seismic industry is dependant in large part on the expected
future prices of oil and natural gas. The industry has recently enjoyved a period of growth due to increases in the
prices for oil and natural gas and the extended outlook for such pricing. However, the industry has experienced
significant volatility in the past and there can be no assurance that such volatility will not continue or that prices of
oil and natural gas will not decline significantly. Should such conditions arise, the Company could be subject to
significantly greater credit risk and declining demand for its products and services,

Supplier Concentration — The Company purchases the majority of its seismic equipment for its lease pool
from a small number of suppliers, each being an industry leader for its product. The Company believes that two of
its suppliers manufacture most of the land-based seismic systems and equipment in use. The Company has
satisfactory relationships with its suppliers. However, should those relationships deteriorate, the Company may
have difficulty in obtaining new technology requested by its customers and maintaining the existing equipment in
accordance with manufacturers’ specifications.
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17. Sales and Major Customers

A summary of the Company’s revenues from customers by geographic region, outside the U.S., is as follows:
Year Ended January 31,

2008 2007 2006

Canada . . .. e e $ 6820 $ 8302 § 8914
UK/BUIOPE « o . oot it i e it it et 27,892 9,318 2,355
South America ........ . v e 4,153 3,050 3,220
Asia/South Pacific . .. .. ... e 9,431 9713 10,479
| ST 1 T 10,180 4,998 —_
Other. .. e e 4,119 1,940 233

1] 5 ) - $62,595  $37.321  $25,201

During fiscal 2008 and 2006, one customer exceeded 10% of total revenues. No customer exceeded 10% of
fiscal 2007 total revenues.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PusLiC ACCOUNTING FirM’s REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors
Mitcham Industries, Inc.
Huntsville, Texas

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting referred to in
our report dated April 14, 2008 (included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K) also included the financial
statement schedule (Schedule 11-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) of Mitcham Industries, Inc. (the “Company™),
listed in Ttem 15(a) of this Form 10-K. This schedule is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion based on our audits of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

Hein & Associates LLP

Houston, Texas
April 14, 2008
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SCHEDULE II
MITCHAM INDUSTRIES, INC,

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Col. A Col. B Col. C(I) Col. C(2) Col. D Col. E
Balance at Charged to Charged to
Beginning of Costs and Other Deductions  Balance at End
Description Period Expenses Accounts Describe of Period
(In thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Janvary 31,2008 . .............. $1,212 460 5(a) (165)b) 51,512
Janwary 31,2007 .. ... ... ... ... $1,173 250 — (211)(b) $1,212
January 31,2006 .. ... ... ... .. $1,009 188 — (24)(b) 51,173
Allowance for obsolete equipment
and inventory
January 31,2008 . ... ... .. .. .. $ 553 448 59 (16)(c) $1,044
January 31,2007 ............... $ 351 248 23) (23)c) $ 553
January 31,2006............... $ 519 77 2(A) (247)(c) $ 351

{a) Represents translation differences.
(b) Represents recoveries and uncollectible accounts written off.
{c) Represents sale or scrap of inventory and obsolete equipment,
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